Public Document Pack

Notice of meeting and agenda

Regulatory Committee

2.00 pm, Thursday, 29th September, 2022

City Chambers

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome to attend or watch the
webcast live on the Council’s website.

The law allows the Council to consider some issues in private. Any items under “Private
Business” will not be published, although the decisions will be recorded in the minute.

Contacts
Email: rachel.gentleman@edinburgh.gov.uk / matthew.brass@edinburgh.gov.uk
Tel: 0131 529 4107

*€DINBYRGH-*

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL




1. Order of Business

1.1 Including any notices of motion and any other items of business
submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting.

2. Declaration of Interests

21 Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests
they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying
the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.

3. Deputations

3.1 If any.

4. Minutes

4.1 Minute of the Regulatory Committee of 27 June 2022 — submitted 5-6
for approval as a correct record

5. Rolling Actions Log

5.1 Rolling Actions Log 7-14

6. Business Bulletin

6.1 Regulatory Committee Business Bulletin 15 - 22

7. Executive Decisions

71 Short Term Lets Licensing - Update After Consultation — Report 23 -478

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022 Page 2 of 4



by the Executive Director of Place

8. Routine Decisions

8.1 Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues - Application Fees — 479 - 482
Report by the Executive Director of Place

8.2 Houses in Multiple Occupation - Fees Update — Report by the 483 - 494
Executive Director of Place

9. Motions

9.1 None.

Nick Smith

Service Director, Legal and Assurance

Committee Members

Councillor Neil Ross (Convener), Councillor Jack Caldwell, Councillor James Dalgleish,
Councillor Denis Dixon, Councillor Catherine Fullerton, Councillor Martha Mattos
Coelho, Councillor Joanna Mowat and Councillor Susan Rae

Information about the Regulatory Committee

The Regulatory Committee consists of 9 Councillors and is appointed by the City of
Edinburgh Council.

This meeting of the Regulatory Committee is being held in the City Chambers, High
Street, Edinburgh and virtually by Microsoft Teams.

Further information

If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact
Rachel Gentleman, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council, Business Centre
2.1, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh EH8 8BG, Tel 0131 529 4107,
email rachel.gentleman@edinburgh.gov.uk / matthew.brass@edinburgh.gov.uk.

The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting and all the main Council
committees can be viewed online by going to the Council’s online Committee Library.

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022 Page 3 of 4


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Live and archived webcasts for this meeting and all main Council committees can be
viewed online by going to the Council’'s Webcast Portal.

Webcasting of Council meetings

Please note this meeting may be filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s internet site — at the start of the meeting the Convener will confirm if all or part
of the meeting is being filmed.

The Council is a Data Controller under current Data Protection legislation. We
broadcast Council meetings to fulfil our public task obligation to enable members of the
public to observe the democratic process. Data collected during this webcast will be
retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy including, but not limited to,
for the purpose of keeping historical records and making those records available via the
Council’s internet site.

Generally the public seating areas will not be filmed. However, by entering the Council
Chamber and using the public seating area, individuals may be filmed and images and
sound recordings captured of them will be used and stored for web casting and training
purposes and for the purpose of keeping historical records and making those records
available to the public.

Any information presented by individuals to the Council at a meeting, in a deputation or
otherwise, in addition to forming part of a webcast that will be held as a historical
record, will also be held and used by the Council in connection with the relevant matter
until that matter is decided or otherwise resolved (including any potential appeals and
other connected processes). Thereafter, that information will continue to be held as
part of the historical record in accordance with the paragraphs above.

If you have any queries regarding this, and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or
storage of any particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial
damage or distress to any individual, please contact Committee Services
(committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk).

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022 Page 4 of 4


https://edinburgh.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Regulatory Committee
9.30am, Monday 27 June 2022

Present

Councillors Neil Ross (Convener), Caldwell, Dixon, Mattos Coelho and Mowat.

1. Minutes

Decision

To approve the minute of the Regulatory Committee of 31 March 2022 as a correct
record.

2. Rolling Actions Log

The Rolling Actions Log for June 2022 was presented.
Decision
1) To agree to close the following actions:

e Action 5 — Air Weapons and Licensing (Scotland) Act 2015 — Sexual
Entertainment Venues — Proposed Resolution, Policy and Conditions.

2) To note the remaining outstanding actions.
(Reference — Rolling Actions Log, submitted.)

3. Licensing Service Update and Draft Regulatory Committee Work
Programme

The proposed future work programme for the Regulatory Committee was presented.
The Programme included existing work streams and additional issues officers had
identified following Local Government Elections.

An update was also provided on the challenges faced by Licensing Services as a result
of the pandemic, and the steps taken to address these.

Decision

1) To note the update on the working of the Licensing Service

2) To note the current issues and agree the proposed work programme for
Committee, as outlined in Appendix 1.

3) To confirm that the format and frequency of updates on the Licensing Service
workload will include details of the backlogs in application processing across the

Page 5 *€EDINBVRGH:

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL




4)
5)
6)
7
8)

9)

10)

11)

main licensing categories and be reported to each meeting of the Committee via
the Business Bulletin.

To agree the proposed training programme for Committee members.

To provide an annual update to the work programme.

To conduct a review of the Council’s policy on parades and processions.

To review the operation of the scheme of delegation as it applies to licensing
matters.

To liaise with Group Spokespersons prior to the start of the second short-term
lets consultation.

To provide Committee sight of the proposed legislation on short-term lets before
discussions commence and a summary of the key issues raised in the
consultation responses received to date.

To include discussion on the interaction between Planning and Licensing
Services and clarity on the divide *of their legislative functions.

To include taxi stances out with the City Centre in the consultation exercise.

(Reference — Report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted.)

Regulatory Committee — 31 March 2022

Page 2 of 2

Page 6



Rolling Actions Log

Regulatory Committee
28 September 2022

No Date Report Title Action Action Expected Actual Comments
Owner completion completion
date date
1 121.10.19 Internal Audit To include expected completion | Executive Recommended for
Findings — dates of management actions Directors of closure
Timescales for identified in the Audit in the Place and
o Completion of Committee’s rolling actions log Corporate
g Management for ongoing monitoring of Services
@ Actions progress.
\l
1. Payments and Charges - | Executive October April 2022 Closed
Processes Director of 2022
Place

2. Payments and Charges — | Executive October April 2022 Closed
BACs payment Director of | 2022
Place

3. Payments and Charges - | Executive Dec 2021 February Closed
BACS payment reference | Director of 2022
Place

*€DINBVRGH

T'S wall epuaby

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL



https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s9742/7.8%20Internal%20Audit%20-%20referral%20from%20GRBV.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s9742/7.8%20Internal%20Audit%20-%20referral%20from%20GRBV.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s9742/7.8%20Internal%20Audit%20-%20referral%20from%20GRBV.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s9742/7.8%20Internal%20Audit%20-%20referral%20from%20GRBV.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s9742/7.8%20Internal%20Audit%20-%20referral%20from%20GRBV.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s9742/7.8%20Internal%20Audit%20-%20referral%20from%20GRBV.pdf

g abed

Report Title

Expected
completion

Actual
completion

Comments

Inspection Revisit Policy Executive March 2021 | March 2021 | Action complete
Director of
Place
Allocation of Inspection Executive November March 2021 | Action complete
Visits Director of 2019
Place
Inspection documentation | Executive October 29 January | Action complete
Director of 2019 2020
Place
Request Refund Policy Executive October 2 November | Action complete
Director of 2019 2020
Place
Reconciliation between Executive October 2 Action complete
physical applications and | Director of 2019 November
APP system Corporate 2020
Services
HMO Key Performance Executive February April 2022 Action closed
Indicators and Director of 2022 through risk
Performance Reporting Place acceptance

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022

Page 2 of 7




6 obed

Report Title

Expected
completion

Actual
completion

Comments

Action complete

Officers would undertake
necessary actions to
appoint an appropriately
experienced and skilled
external consultant to
undertake the required
research and analysis
work on taxi demand and
assessment of PHC
overprovision. A full
equalities impact
assessment would be
required with regard to any
recommendations that the

10.  Training and Guidance Executive November 18 January
documentation Director of 2020 2021
Place
11.  HMO application Executive December | 2 November | Action complete
processing procedures Director of 2019 2020
Place
2 |09.03.20 Private Hire Car To instruct officers to undertake Executive November A report will be on
Overprovision the actions as detailed in section | Director of 2022 the agenda for
5 of the report: Place Committee in

November.

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022

Page 3 of 7



https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s18473/7.1%20-%20Private%20Hire%20Car%20Overprovision.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s18473/7.1%20-%20Private%20Hire%20Car%20Overprovision.pdf

0T obed

Report Title Expected Actual Comments

completion completion
date date

consultant submitted to
the Council.

e In addition, officers would
continue to engage
directly with relevant
stakeholders.

e Upon conclusion of any
research and analysis
completed by an
appointed contractor,
officers would present the
collected data and any
supporting information to
the committee.

¢ |twas intended to
undertake consultation
with a wider group,
including making the
results of the research and
any recommendations
brought forward by
officers, available for
public consultation.

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022 Page 4 of 7



TT obed

Report Title Expected Actual Comments

completion completion

date date
3 |18.01.21 Licensing Policy To agree that the Convener Convener/ | April 2023 A further report will
Development — would write to the Executive Executive be brought forward in
Street Trading Director of Place to request a Director of April 2023.
Update short-term plan which would Place

consider opportunities for street
trading, including the use of
vacant properties, and to
consider a longer term plan to
facilitate street trading.

4 |23.08.21 House in Multiple | 1) To agree the change in Executive September Report on agenda
Occupation — process in relation to Director of | 2022 dealing with points
Service Update property inspections with Place 2), 3) and 4).

the introduction of a risk-
based inspections model.

2) To agree that decisions on
whether to make one and
three year grants of HMO
Licences would continue
to be delegated to the
Executive Director of
Place and that three year
licences would only be
suitable for properties
which were fully compliant
and which had had no

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022 Page 5 of 7


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s30394/7.2%20-%20Licensing%20Policy%20Development%20Street%20Trading%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s30394/7.2%20-%20Licensing%20Policy%20Development%20Street%20Trading%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s30394/7.2%20-%20Licensing%20Policy%20Development%20Street%20Trading%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s30394/7.2%20-%20Licensing%20Policy%20Development%20Street%20Trading%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s36455/7.3%20-%20Houses%20in%20Multiple%20Occupation%20Service%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s36455/7.3%20-%20Houses%20in%20Multiple%20Occupation%20Service%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s36455/7.3%20-%20Houses%20in%20Multiple%20Occupation%20Service%20Update.pdf

2T obed

Report Title

Expected

completion
date

Actual
completion
date

Comments

3)

4)

problems in the previous
licensed period.

To agree that a review of
the current structure for
HMO application fees
would be undertaken.

That the Executive
Director of Place report
back to Committee in one
year with an update on
progress.

5 |27.06.22

Licensing Service

Update and Draft

Regulatory
Committee Work

Programme

1)

2)

To liaise with Group
Spokespersons prior to
the start of the second
short-term lets
consultation.

To provide Committee
sight of the proposed
legislation on short-term
lets before discussions
commence and a
summary of the key issues
raised in consultation

Executive
Director of
Place

July 2022

25 July
2022

Recommended for
closure

Meeting took place
on 14 July 2022 and
consultation went
live on 25 July 2022.

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022

Page 6 of 7



https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf

¢T obed

Report Title Expected Actual Comments

completion completion
date date

responses received to

date.
27/06/2022 | Licensing Service | 1) That the following items would June 2023 An update will be
Update and Draft be added to the Committee’s included in the
Regulatory workplan: Business Bulletin for
Committee Work committee in
Programme a) to conduct a review of the September.

Council’s policy on parades
and processions;

b) to review the operation of
the Scheme of Delegation as
it applies to licensing matters

2) That the Executive Director of June 2023
Place will report back to
Committee in one year with an
update on progress

3) to include details of the Ongoing
backlogs in application
processing across the main
licensing categories at each
meeting of the Committee via
the Business Bulletin.

Regulatory Committee - 29 September 2022 Page 7 of 7


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46865/7.1%20Licensing%20Service%20Update%20and%20Draft%20Regulatory%20Committee%20Work%20Programme.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Business Bulletin

Regulatory Committee

2.00pm, Thursday, 29 September 2022
Dean of Guild Court Room, City Chambers, High Street, Edinburgh

Page 15 *€DINBVRGH:®

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL




Regulatory Committee

Convener: Members: Contact:
Convener Councillor James Caldwell Matthew Brass
Councillor Neil Ross Councillor James Dalgleish Committee Services
Councillor Denis Dixon matthew.brass@edinbur
Councillor Martha Mattos- gh.gov.uk
Coelho

Councillor Joanna Mowat
Councillor Susan Rae
Councillor Catherine Fullerton

Regulatory Committee — 29 September 2022|:)age 16 Page 2


mailto:matthew.brass@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.brass@edinburgh.gov.uk

Recent News

Licensing Forum recruitment

A recruitment exercise to appoint
community and trade representatives to
the Licensing Forum was paused in early
2020 as a result of the global pandemic.
In order to comply with statutory
requirements, the recruitment exercise re-
commenced in Spring 2022,

Interviews took place during August 2022,
which resulted in 11 appointments of
community and trade representatives to
the Forum. Statutory members have been
asked to nominate representatives.

An informal ‘meet and greet’ session has
taken place with community and trade
representatives. It is intended that the first
official meeting of the reconstituted Forum
will take place in Autumn 2022.

Background

The Licensing (Scotland)
Act 2005 requires a local
Licensing Authority to
establish a Licensing
Forum.

* to keep under review
the operation of the
Licensing (Scotland)
Act 2005 within the
Local Authority’s area,

* to oversee the
Licensing Board’s
exercise of its powers
under the Act; and

* to give general advice
to the Board on the
exercise of its functions
and the operation of
the Act.

Contact

Andrew Mitchell
Head of
Regulatory
Services
Manager

0131 469 5822

Changes to application process for
certain licence types

The UK Government plans to introduce
legislation in a Finance Bill to make the
renewal of certain licences in Scotland
conditional on applicants completing
checks that confirm appropriate
registration for tax.

In Scotland these licences include:

e Taxi and Private Hire Driver; and
e Private Hire booking offices.

From April 2023, applicants must
complete a check and provide a unique
reference number to the Council. Without
this number the Council will be unable to
grant the licence.

The Finance Act 2021
introduced a tax check
for similar licences in
England and Wales
effective from April 2022,
and the draft Finance Bill
2022 will amend the
2021 Act and will
introduce new clauses
specific to Scotland.

Andrew Mitchell
Head of
Regulatory
Services
Manager

0131 469 5822

Regulatory Committee — 29 September 2022 Page 17

Page 3



mailto:andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk

Licensing workload

Current position

The Licensing Service currently has 8,250
applications in its processing backlog. The
comparative number pre-pandemic was
4,500. This is a significant improvement
from the end of 2021, when the number of
applications peaked at 18,000, with a
backlog at that time of 13,500.

When Licensing staff returned to the
office, output increased significantly.
However, it is anticipated that it will take
until 1 April 2023 to resolve the backlog.

Challenges resulting from the pandemic

e The Licensing Service liaises with both
internal and external consultees. During
the pandemic period, consultees
struggled to meet statutory timescales.

e As previously reported, during the
pandemic period the Service
administered two business recovery
grants to taxi and private hire drivers,
which paid out £14 million to licence
holders in the city.

e The administration of outdoor permits
for licence holders to support their
recovery by using outdoor space was
also carried out by the Service.

Current Workload

In addition to the annual and longer term
licensing workload, the Service has been
involved in:

e Work for Homes for Ukraine and Super
Sponsor projects.

e The return of the full Edinburgh Festival
and all associated temporary licence
applications (please see attached table
at Appendix 1 for a table comparing
application numbers since 2019).
Although this is an expected part of the
annual workload, delivering this along
with additional projects and the ongoing
work to reduce the licence applications
backlog has been very challenging.

The current ICT system
used to process
applications is not
conducive to remote
working.

During the first lockdown
period Customer
contacts rose to 800 per
day, with customers
requesting advice,
guidance and knowledge
checking rather than
licensing advice.
Customers were calling
about restrictions on
trading, the possibility of
reopening, and grants.

The Service was entirely
paper-based before the
pandemic. Moving to
electronic submissions to
support business
continuity created an
enormous workload, as
applications which
previously were limited
to five pages were now
being submitted via
photograph by mobile
phones and were not
complete, accurate or
traceable. As a result,
the time needed to
complete a licensing
application was
estimated to take ten
times longer than when
staff were office based.

Andrew Mitchell
Head of
Regulatory
Services

0131 469 5822

Regulatory Committee — 29 September 2022|:)age 18

Page 4



mailto:andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk

Future Challenges

e The introduction of short term let
licensing.

e The planned implementation of the first
part of the Service’s ICT upgrade in
October 2022.

Taxi Driver — Taxi Driver Skills
Development Programme: Foundation
Course

To date, 18 training courses have been
delivered to over 500 new taxi and private
hire car (PHC) drivers entering the trade.
The courses have been well received.
Feedback from one attendee was as
follows:

The whole course in general was very
useful. It gave a good understanding
of what is expected from Taxi/PHC
drivers and how to keep yourself right
by following the licensing rules. It also
gave a good understanding of the
Do's and Don'ts while on the road and
dealing with the public.

The foundation course is providing
invaluable support to new drivers entering
the trade, while raising standards within
the sector.

The course is designed to be a precursor
to rolling out full training to all drivers in
2023 to raise standards and improve
quality of service

The Foundation Course
for new taxi and PHC
drivers was approved by
the Regulatory
Committee on 2
November 2020.-
Coronavirus (COVID-19)
— Contingencies
Measures — Update

report

The online format
training is delivered in
real time and allows
participants to learn in a
safe and convenient
setting. The course
provides opportunities for
all to participate in group
tasks and discussions.

Andrew Mitchell
Head of
Regulatory
Services
Manager

0131 469 5822

End of ‘Coronavirus’ amendments to
legislation — impact on Licensing

The temporary changes to the Civic
Government (Scotland) Act 1982 which
were made by the Coronavirus (Scotland)
Act 2020 will expire on 30 September
2022. There will be transitional provisions
put in place by way of statutory
Regulations, but these are yet to be
finalised and published.

Andrew Mitchell
Head of
Regulatory
Services
Manager

0131 469 5822

Regulatory Committee — 29 September 2022 Page 19

Page 5



https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s28391/7.1%20-%20Coronavirus%20COVID-19%20Contingency%20Measures%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s28391/7.1%20-%20Coronavirus%20COVID-19%20Contingency%20Measures%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s28391/7.1%20-%20Coronavirus%20COVID-19%20Contingency%20Measures%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s28391/7.1%20-%20Coronavirus%20COVID-19%20Contingency%20Measures%20Update%20Report.pdf
mailto:andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk

The expiry of the 2020 Act provisions
means that the determination period for
most licences considered under the 1982
Act will revert to nine months instead of
12 months. Officers will advise Committee
of the relevant timescales for individual
applications where these are referred to
Committee for determination.

The only amendment made by the 2020
Act which will be retained on a permanent
basis is now included within the provisions
of the Coronavirus (Recovery and
Reform) (Scotland) Act 2022. This Act
comes into effect on 1 October 2022 and
retains (with some adjustments) the ability
for Councils to hold on-line/hybrid
hearings for licensing applications. It also
includes a requirement for councils to take
into account the views of participants in
this regard when considering whether to
hold an online/hybrid meeting.

New Licensing enforcement resource

The Council approved funding for
additional licensing enforcement for the
current financial year. This new resource
will focus on out of hours enforcement in
relation to civic and miscellaneous
licensing, mainly on taxis and Private Hire
Cars and Late Hours Catering licensing,
as these sectors can be hard to regulate
outwith normal business hours. The new
team will increase regulatory capacity,
helping to ensure compliance from
Edinburgh licence holders, keeping
people safe and helping businesses to
recover from the COVID-19 pandemic.
The team has been appointed and the
four Licensing Enforcement Officers are
due to start operations after a short period
of training in October 2022.

Andrew Mitchell
Head of
Regulatory
Services
Manager

0131 469 5822

Regulatory Committee — 29 September 2022|:)age 20

Page 6



mailto:andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Temporary Licences

Year

sl e
0 2 0 1

Licence Type

Cinema Licence

Late Hours Catering Exemption Licence 3 6 0 9
Late Hours Catering Licence 0 0 0 3
Market Operators 77 65 16 105
Outdoor Area Permits 307 306 160 0
Occasional Licences 2,404 2,425 952 1,972
Premises Extended Hours Applications 44 26 1 268
Public Charitable Collection Licence 21 8 2 61
Marches and Parades 43 27 5 65
Public Entertainment Licences 97 60 7 86
Street trader licences 12 3 0 359
Street Trader Employee Licence 4 3 0 149
Fireworks Dispensation 1 1 0 1
Hypnotism Licence 1 0 0 0
Indoor Sports Licence 1 0 0 0
Second Hand Dealers Licence 0 0 0 4
Totals 3,015 2,932 1,143 3,083

Regulatory Committee — 29 September 2022 Page 21 Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Committee

2.00pm, Thursday, 29 September 2022

Short Term Lets Licensing - Update After
Consultation

Executivel/routine
Wards All
Council Commitments

1. Recommendations

1.1 Regulatory Committee is asked to:

1.1.1 Note the contents of this report and the responses to two rounds of
public consultation on the licensing of Short Term Lets (STL);

1.1.2 Consider the separate legal advice paper provided by the Council’s
Legal Services;

1.1.3 Agree to the proposed policy and additional STL licensing conditions set
out at Appendix 5;

1.1.4 Agree that the policy shall include a statement that secondary letting in
tenement or shared main door accommodation is considered as
unsuitable and that there will be a rebuttable presumption against the
grant of a licence in such circumstances;

1.1.5 Agree that, as part of the policy, the Council will adopt additional licence
conditions for STL licences;

1.1.6 Agree that temporary exemptions and temporary licences will be
introduced for STL as part of the licensing scheme;

1.1.7 Approve the proposed fee structure in relation to applications for STL
licences; and

1.1.8 Note that, if the proposed policy is approved, officers will advertise as
necessary, noting in accordance with the legislation that a licensing
scheme for Short Term Lets will open on 1 October 2022.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: Andrew Mitchell, Head of Regulatory Services

E-mail: andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 4208
Page 23




Report

Short Term Lets Licensing - Update After
Consultation

Executive Summary

2.1

2.2

This report provides Committee with an update on the new powers given to local
authorities to regulate short term lets (STL) by means of a licensing scheme.
This follows the commencement of the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982
(Licensing of Short Term Lets) Order 2022 (‘the 2022 Order’), which brings STL
within the scope of licensable activities covered by the statutory provisions of
the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (‘the 1982 Act’).

In March 2022, Committee instructed statutory consultation on a draft policy for
STL. Two public consultations on the proposed policy and additional licensing
conditions framework have now been completed, and this report provides a
summary of the responses received. The report recommends that Committee
approves the proposed STL licensing policy, additional licensing conditions and
application fee structure.

Background

3.1

3.2

The Council has previously called for additional regulation of the STL sector
through changes to planning classifications and the introduction of a licensing
system.

As previously reported to the Council and this Committee, complaints received
regarding STL cover a number of broad types including:

3.2.1 Impact on available housing supply within the city;

3.2.2 Erosion of sense of community in areas with dense concentrations of
STL;

3.2.3 STL is generally not suitable for tenement properties;

3.2.4 Properties which are used as STL may not meet the same safety
standards as other types of visitor accommodation;

3.2.5 Noise and anti-social behaviour created by guests using STL; and

3.2.6 STL which operate on a commercial basis may not be paying rates or
other Council charges required.

Page 24



Main report

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Licensing Scheme

The 2022 Order brings STL within the scope of the 1982 Act and requires local
authorities to implement a licensing scheme for STL, in order to improve safety
and mitigate the impact on communities.

As directed by Committee on 31 March 2022, a two-stage consultation exercise
began in April 2022. An initial consultation on the proposed changes was
published on the Council’'s Consultation Hub between 15 April and 10 June
2022. The aim was to gather a broader understanding of community and
business views in relation to what a STL licensing policy should include, and
whether the Council should adopt any discretionary licensing powers. That
consultation received 1,902 responses as detailed in the summary report
attached at Appendix 1. The response rate far exceeds the normal response
rates for a licensing consultation with the next nearest being 900 approximately
responses in 2019.

Following consideration of the results from the initial consultation, a draft
statement of policy and a framework of additional licence conditions were
developed (Appendix 5). A second period of consultation took place between 25
July and 5 September 2022, asking for views on the proposed policy and
conditions. The second consultation received 1,039 responses and a summary
is attached at Appendix 2.

During the consultation period, the Council received a significant number of
written responses. In order to efficiently collate these comments, a series of
additional papers grouping comments by question type across both consultation
periods, have been included as Appendices 3 and 4.

The background and need for use of the discretionary licensing powers

Members will recall from previous reports to committee and motions agreed at
Full Council expressing concern about the negative impacts of the growth of
STL accommodation within the city, a STL Working Group of cross-party elected
members was set up to consider the impact on the city. After hearing from
officers and interested parties, the working group was able to reach a number of
conclusions in relation to STLs operating in tenements or shared main door
accommodation.

A Short Term Lets Virtual Team was also established in 2018 to co-ordinate
action using existing powers across several services in order to address issues
with STLs. The virtual team reviewed all complaints received about STL
premises and, where possible, identify and implement a response to address
poor practice or take enforcement action against those premises operating on a
commercial basis. The majority of the complaints which the team dealt with
involved secondary letting in tenement or shared main door properties.
Typically, the core of the concerns were the intensive use of these properties
which offered residents no respite it there was a problem and the fact there was
no staff member or owner of the property on site to deal with any concerns.

Page 25



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Data on the types of STL complaints being broken down into the types of
complaints and which was submitted to the Scottish Government as part of their
consultation process in 2019 was as follows:

Area Period Cases
Planning Enforcement January - December 117
2018

January - June 2019 109

Private Rented Sector | June 2017 — June 2018 21
Enforcement and
Trading Standards June 2018 — June 2019 20
Family and Household April — July 2019 22
Support

Environmental Health July 2018 — July 2019 5

Total 294*

* note: a small number of cases required investigation by more than one
service area

The concerns noted above, as well as the positive aspects of STLs, formed part
of the Council’s response to the Scottish Government consultation on a
regulatory framework for STLs in 2019, which is available here. It is clear from
the Scottish Government report on this consultation, available here, that similar
concerns were expressed by a number of respondents.

In March 2020 and again in December 2020, the STL sector was largely closed
as lockdown measures were implemented as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic. During the periods which the sector was re-opened prior to
December 2021, STL operations were significantly restricted and severely
impacted by restrictions of international travel. Therefore, a meaningful
comparison with complaint data during this time is not possible. The Council
continued to received complaints but more commonly about breach of planning
permission or breach of lockdown rules.

The Planning Service continue to take enforcement action against those STLs
operating without the required planning permissions. As planning legislation has
been the only realistic enforcement tool that the Council has, the complaints
typically raise concerns about the negative impact of secondary letting and urge
the Council to use planning enforcement as a tool to address this. Absent any
other regulatory powers until the introduction of the licensing system it remains
the most accurate barometer of public concern of the sector. Members will be
aware of concerns that the level of complaints are likely to be under reported.

Page 26


https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/26365/response-to-the-consultation-on-short-term-lets
https://www.gov.scot/publications/short-term-lets-consultation-regulatory-framework-scotland-analysis-consultation-responses/

411

4.12

4.13

414

4.15

The number of enforcement cases in respect of STL accommodation, remain at
a high level.

Financial Year No of STL Planning Enforcement
Cases in respect of Secondary
Letting
2018/19 114
2019/20 228
2020/21 83
2021/22 107
2022/23 (to date) 93

Across both periods of consultation held on the licensing of STLs in Edinburgh,
an analysis of the responses has demonstrated a significant level of concern on
this issue, despite the pandemic pause. Members have been provided both a
summary and the complete set of comments made in response to the
consultation.

The Council had also previously commissioned research into any potential
negative impacts of the Edinburgh short-term rental market which has been
taken into account. This formed part of the Council’s case to Scottish
Government arguing for new licensing powers, see paragraph 4.8 above.

The paper also shows that some of the more serious cases of problems within
secondary letting which the Council has struggled to deal with use previous
powers, including the case of having to obtain two management control orders
for problem premises and one case where a secondary letting operator was
using a flat within a tenemental block as a house keeping unit which was
disruptive for other neighbouring flats.

This research, and additional research carried out by others, demonstrated that
the majority of STL are in tenemental properties, concentrated in areas of the
city which already have high demand for housing. The Council has heard, and
members will be familiar with persistent concerns that the regular use of any
tenement/shared main door accommodation as a STL is unsuitable due to its
character, location, and the risk of creating undue nuisance. Concerns also exist
in relation to the risk that anti-social behaviour may be exacerbated within this
type of accommodation, given the close proximity of other residential properties
and communal areas. This is particularly acute on issues such as noise,
neighbours being disturbed by door buzzers or similar and STL residents
arriving or leaving at times not normally conducive to tenemental life.

It is also recognised that the shared or collaborative economy has many positive
aspects. Any measures taken should therefore recognise the importance of
visitors to the city’s economy, in particular the importance with providing

Page 27



4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

421

additional accommodation during certain times of the year such as during the
summer festivals.

Secondary letting in Tenement/Shared Main Door Accommodation

The initial STL consultation asked respondents whether tenements or other
accommodation with a shared main door would be suitable for use as STLs.
59% or those responding to this question thought that STLs are unsuitable in
this type of property, and only 39% thought that they were suitable. This is
consistent with the concerns raised with the Council over many years about the
negative impacts of these.

After consideration of the responses to the initial consultation, two options were
put in the second consultation exercise;

4.9.1 Option A) Secondary letting in tenement or shared main door
accommodation is considered as unsuitable and there will be a rebuttable
presumption against the grant of a licence in such circumstances.

OR

4.9.2 Option B) There will be a rebuttable presumption against the grant of a
licence for secondary letting in tenement or shared main door
accommodation, unless the applicant can demonstrate they have
consent from the owners of all accommodation within the stair/close in
which their accommodation is situated.

In practice and for the purposes of this policy, a rebuttable presumption means
that where an application falls outside of policy or is otherwise inconsistent with
it, that an applicant understands that this in effect places a practical onus on
them to show why their application should still be granted notwithstanding the
policy.

As part of the second consultation, respondents were asked which option they
considered was most suitable. The responses demonstrate that there is no
clear, overall preference between the two options. 41% considered Option A to
be the most suitable way to deal with STL applications for tenement/shared
main door accommodation, while 29% considered Option B to be the most
appropriate.

Trade groups affected have argued strongly that the presumption against these
options would amount to a de facto ban on secondary letting within tenements.
Members will be aware from their training and experience that with any licensing
policy, any application would be required to be considered on its individual
merits and applicants would be entitled to make a case for exemption from
either of the options presented above. For example, the Licensing Sub-
Committee could consider an application for a secondary letting STL licence for
accommodation within tenement or shared main door accommodation and
would have to determine whether a case had been made by an applicant to be
considered an exception to the terms of the policy.

After consideration of the consultation responses, it is recommended that the
Committee agrees that Option A as the most suitable approach in respect of
secondary letting in tenement or shared main door accommodation. Option A

Page 28



4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

sets a clear policy direction which has public support. Moreover, legal advice
has been sought on the robustness of both options and it is considered that
there is a lower risk of successful legal challenge if Option A was included within
the policy.

Secondary letting is distinct from home letting or home sharing in that the
accommodation would typically be operated commercially and therefore likely
more intensively used than home letting or sharing. Furthermore, the licence
holder does not live on the premises. Concerns around the management of
such accommodation, especially in tenemental or shared main door properties
has been expressed consistently throughout the consultation periods. Whereas
home owners will either be present during home sharing or present for extended
periods in the scenario of home letting. From experience in regulating a range of
businesses it is much more likely that the home owner will have a relationship
with their neighbours and much more responsive to any issues that arise.

In order to assist applicants and licence holders to understand what factors
might be relevant in determining an exemption request, information has been
added to paragraph 4.15 of the proposed licensing policy which sets out the
factors which the Licensing sub-committee may consider as relevant factors
when determining an application for secondary letting in tenement or shared
main door accommodation. This further information will assist applicants, who
may want to be considered an exception to policy, in understanding the criteria
which might be considered relevant by the Licensing Sub-committee.

Lastly the period of licence, which was proposed to be 12 months, for secondary
letting has been raised as a concern. As discussed above secondary letting is
likely to be more intensive and the need to ensure that the properties are and
remain of a safe standard also justifies the need for more regular inspections
and scrutiny. This is particularly important in the early stages of the licensing
regime where the licensing authority has had no chance to check the
compliance standards. It is therefore recommended secondary letting licences
will only be issued for a period of one year but that this be reviewed in 18
months’ time to allow the committee to examine whether a longer period for a
renewal might be appropriate. This one year licence at initial grant is consistent
with the existing Council policy where new licences are not normally granted for
longer than one year.

Temporary Licences

The 1982 Act gives the Council powers to issue temporary licences for STL
accommodation. The legislation allows that a temporary licence may be granted
for a duration of up to six weeks. Furthermore, if an applicant has applied for a
full licence, any temporary licence granted to them will last until their full
application is finally determined.

During the initial consultation, respondents were asked whether the Council
should introduce temporary licences. 46% agreed that temporary licences
should be issued, while 53% disagreed.

Respondents were also asked to give views on whether temporary licences
should be subject to any additional conditions, and what issues those conditions

Page 29



4.28

4.29

4.30

431

4.32

4.33

should seek to address. The responses to those questions are attached at
Appendix 1 and in the additional papers which contain the comments made by
respondents in respect of temporary licences.

After consideration of the responses, it is proposed that the Council issues
temporary licences, as is set out in paragraphs 4.17-4.23 of the proposed STL
licensing policy. This will give first time hosts the flexibility and opportunity to
apply for a temporary licence in order to try out short-term letting their
accommodation prior to making a full licence application.

The application process for temporary licences does not provide the opportunity
for public objections. The proposed policy states that temporary licences are
considered unsuitable for secondary letting accommodation. Where a temporary
licence has been granted or where an applicant has lodged an application for a
‘full’ secondary letting STL licence, a temporary licence application may be
lodged in respect of the same premises while the “full’ application is considered.
Consequently, this would have the effect of the STL being able to operate for
many months either as a series of temporary licences or with a pending
application without the opportunity to consider any objections or for the Council
to consider the suitability of the accommodation for many months. This is
considered inappropriate, and it is therefore recommended that there is a
rebuttable presumption against temporary licences being issued in respect of
secondary letting accommodation

Temporary licences will also be subject to the mandatory and additional licence
conditions, in order to satisfy the Council that the accommodation is regulated to
an appropriate standard and to ensure that mitigations are in place with regard
to any potential impact on residential amenity.

Temporary Exemptions

The 1982 Act gives local authorities the ability to grant temporary exemptions to
the requirement to have a licence. Furthermore, the legislation states that
temporary exemptions can be issued for a specified single continuous period
not exceeding six weeks in any period of 12 months. The six week limit is a
maximum and not a default. Licensing authorities must publish a temporary
exemptions policy statement and review it every three years at a minimum.

As part of the consultation process, respondents were asked whether the
Council should grant temporary exemptions for STLs. 63% thought that the
Council should not issue temporary exemptions, whilst 36% thought that it
should. In contrast, Committee’s attention is drawn to the feedback from festival
organisers who point out the need for such temporary accommodation for the
peak festival season and this is a significant consideration.

Respondents to the consultation were asked for their views on what reasons
would justify the Council granting temporary exemptions for STLs. The majority
of those responding to this question considered the below reasons as
appropriate:

o Major sporting events such as the Six Nations, Commonwealth Games,
European Finals or similar;

Page 30



4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

o Major international events such as CoP26 or similar; and

o For home sharing or home letting to give first time operators the chance to
try out STL before making a full application.

Importantly, a number of respondents did not answer this question due to the
fact that they had indicated in the previous question that they did not think the
Council should issue temporary exemptions.

Having considered the feedback received, it is proposed that the Council
exercises its discretion to issue temporary exemptions to the requirement to
obtain a STL licence, where appropriate and in line with the circumstances set
out in paragraphs 4.24-4.30 of the proposed STL policy.

Reflecting on the feedback from, in particular, trade groups it is proposed that
temporary exemptions would be available to secondary letting, home sharing
and/or home letting STL accommodation and be subject to the mandatory and
additional conditions of licence. It is considered appropriate that the policy
allows for extra accommodation to be available for times of the year where there
is increased demand for STL accommodation, such as during the summer
festivals, major sporting events, festive period etc. It would however prevent the
risk highlighted in paragraph 4.29 above that the STL could operate for an
extended period before the full consideration of its suitability is determined.

Temporary Exemptions in Secondary Lets

Notwithstanding the recommended presumption against the grant of a licence
for secondary letting within a tenemental properties as set out on paragraphs
4.21 above. The legislation provides that a temporary exemption can be granted
for a maximum single continuous period of 6 weeks in a 12 month period in
these types of properties. An example could be a licensed HMO where the
licence holder wants to offer a limited period of short term letting. Recognising
that the policy proposes that temporary exemptions will be subject to both the
mandatory and additional licence conditions, it is proposed that temporary
exemptions may be issued to secondary lets to help meet increased demand
during certain periods of the year. This position will be kept under review.

STL in HMO Licensed Properties

Respondents to the consultation were also asked whether short term letting
should be permitted in properties which are also licensed as Houses of Multiple
Occupation (HMO). 59% of respondents considered HMO properties to be
unsuitable to be used as STLs, while 36% thought that they were suitable.
Some respondents highlighted anecdotal concerns that this could lead to
tenants being forced to leave their properties during certain periods of the year
when there is high demand for STL accommodation.

Some respondents thought that HMOs would provide additional accommodation
during periods of high demand for STL accommodation. It was also highlighted
that a significant proportion of HMO licensed properties in Edinburgh are used
by the city’s student population, who typically vacate during the summer months

anyway.

Page 31



4.40

441

4.42

4.43

4.44

4.45

At this stage, it is recommended that no specific restriction is placed upon HMO
licensed properties holding a STL licence. This is predicated on the assumption
that a significant proportion of this type of accommodation will be available
during periods of the year where demand is high, i.e., due to the term time
schedules of higher education establishments. This policy position will be kept
under review.

Adopting Additional Conditions

As per the 2022 Order, there are mandatory conditions of licence which will
apply to all short-term lets across Scotland (Appendix 6). These conditions
cover issues such as:

e Fire safety;

e Gas safety;

e Electrical safety;

e Water safety;

e Planning permission; and
e Maximum occupancy.

In addition to the mandatory conditions of licence, the Council may set
additional licence conditions by virtue of the 2022 Order in order to help
licensing authorities to respond to local challenges and concerns.

The Council has broad powers with respect to which premises will have
additional conditions attached to them. However, the Council cannot use
additional conditions to contradict, modify or dilute mandatory conditions.
Different additional conditions may be determined:

e Inrespect of different licences, or different types of licence; or
e Otherwise for different purposes, circumstances or cases.

As part of the initial consultation, respondents were asked if the Council should
adopt additional conditions. 79% agreed that the Council should adopt
additional conditions, while 20% disagreed. When asked what issues additional
conditions should cover, the percentage of the 1,893 who responded to this
guestion answered as follows:

4.44.1 Noise — 75%

4.44.2 Anti-social behaviour — 75%

4.44.3 Waste Management — 71%

4.44.4 Failure to maintain the property — 69%

4.44.5 Failure to maintain/contribute to communal repairs — 72%
4.44.6 Damage or alteration to property — 67%

4.44.7 Unlawful activity — 73%

Having considered the responses to the consultation process, it is clear that
there is significant support for the Council to adopt additional licence conditions.

Page 32



4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

4.50

451

Furthermore, the written responses to both consultations clearly indicate a
number of issues which additional conditions should address.

As part of the review of the consultation responses, detailed legal advice has
also been taken on the proposed additional conditions. As a result, draft STL1 of
the proposed conditions (which referred to the maintenance of fire precautions,
gas, drainage etc) has been removed from the recommended additional
conditions as it was considered that this replicated the terms of the mandatory
conditions set by the 1982 Act, which could result in a legal risk to the policy.

It was further considered that draft conditions STL3, (which referred to visitor
access and egress times) and STL6 (which referred to key boxes) of the
originally drafted policy may present a legal risk to the Council. Therefore, draft
conditions STL3 and 6 has been removed and a revised condition STL2 has
been included in the policy. The revised condition seeks to address the same
issues as the draft STL3 and STL6 conditions, whilst minimising the risk of legal
challenge to the Council.

Accordingly, the revised of additional conditions have been drafted as set out in
Appendix 2 of the draft STL licensing policy and recommended for approval by
the committee.

Maximum Occupancy - Children

The Council has the discretion to specify on a licence that guests may bring a
certain number of children under a specified age limit, and these would not
count towards the occupancy of the premises. Children above the stated age
limit and any additional children of any age would count towards the occupancy.

During the consultation process, respondents were asked whether children
under 10 years of age should count towards the total occupancy of STL
accommodation. 65% of respondents thought that children under 10 should
count towards the maximum occupancy of STL accommodation, while 34%
thought that they should not. In the context of the Housing (Scotland) Act 1987,
children under 10 are not counted towards the total maximum occupancy of a
property. Whilst the majority view of the consultation is that children under 10
should count towards maximum occupancy, it is considered that there is
insufficient evidence to treat STL accommodation differently to other forms of
housing in this regard. Consequently, it is proposed that children under 10 will
not count towards the maximum occupancy of STL accommodation at this
stage. This will be kept under review.

Cap on number of nights for Home Letting

As part of the second consultation, respondents were asked whether the
Council should adopt discretionary powers to set an additional licence condition
which would limit the number of nights which accommodation may be used for
‘home letting’ per year.

For the avoidance of doubt, the 2022 Order does not give the Council the power
to impose a similar condition for accommodation being used for ‘secondary
letting’.

Page 33



4.52

4.53

4.54

4.55

76% of respondents thought that the Council should introduce such a cap for
home letting, whilst 23% disagreed with this approach. Respondents were also
asked how long any cap should be:

e 32% thought that a cap of four weeks in any 12 month period, should be
introduced;

e 20% thought that a cap of six weeks in any 12 month period should be
introduced; and

e 20% of respondents thought that there should be no limit set.

It is therefore clear that there is support for a cap on the number of nights,
which accommodation may be used for home letting, being introduced.
However, taking into account that it is recommended that temporary licences
and temporary exemptions should be made available, it is considered too
restrictive to introduce a cap of this kind. Additionally, it is considered that there
Is insufficient evidence on which to base a decision to set a cap and that there
would be a significant risk of legal challenge if one were to be introduced.
Committee are advised that further work would be required before any further
recommendations could be brought forward on this matter.

Summary of Key Policy Recommendations

A number of key policy recommendations have been made, after consideration
of the responses to both rounds of consultation, on the licensing of STL it is
recommended that:

4.54.1 The licensing policy should include a statement that secondary letting in
tenement or shared main door accommodation is considered as
unsuitable, and there will be a rebuttable presumption against the grant
of a licence in such circumstances. Furthermore, the policy should set
out a non-exhaustive list of factors which the Committee may consider
as good reason to exempt a property from this part of the policy;

4.54.2 Temporary licences for STL are introduced but not for secondary letting

4.54.3 Temporary exemptions for STL are introduced including secondary
letting;

4.54.4 The Council adopts discretionary powers to introduce additional
conditions for STL;

4.54.5 Children under 10 should not count towards the maximum occupancy of
a STL; and

4.54.6 A cap on the number of nights for which accommodation may be used
for home letting is not introduced at this stage.

Short Term Let Control Areas

On 27 July 2022, the Scottish Government approved plans that the whole of the
City of Edinburgh Council area will become Scotland’s first designated STL
Control Area, after it approved proposals from the Council which were submitted
earlier this year. This means that the change of use of an entire dwelling that is

Page 34



4.56

4.57

4.58

4.59

not someone’s principal home to a STL will require planning permission. It does
not apply to home sharing or home letting.

The STL Control Area was publicised on 5 August 2022 by the Council and
subsequently came into force on 5 September 2022.

Application Fees

Ahead of the opening of the licensing scheme for STLs, the Council as licensing
authority is required to agree a fee structure for STL applications, which
includes fees for both grant and renewal of licences.

The Council’s functions as a licensing authority are funded directly by income
raised from licence application fees. The fees currently charged are normally
approved by the Council as part of the annual budget process. This Committee
also has the power to agree a licence fee structure or amend any existing
structure.

The fees are intended to fully recover the costs of delivering a licensing scheme.
After consideration of the anticipated costs of administering and enforcing a
licensing regime for STLs, officers propose application fees as outlined at
Appendix 7. In order to give some context, the fee for a three person occupancy
secondary letting application equates to a cost of £12.56 per week to the
applicant. For the same type of application with a 21 person occupancy, the cost
of the application equates to £113 per week.

5. Next Steps

5.1 Itis recommended that Committee adopts the proposed licensing policy,
additional conditions framework and application fees.

5.2 If Committee approves the recommendations in this report, officers will take the
necessary steps to advertise the policy, conditions framework and fees.

5.3 A further report highlighting the Council’s approach to the enforcement of STL
and the associated costs will be brought forward in due course.

6. Financial impact

6.1  Any costs incurred by implementing policy are, at present, not included within
the service budget. The draft fees (as outlined in Appendix 7) are intended to
recover these costs.

7. Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1  Key stakeholders which could be affected by a STL policy were written to and

advised of the consultation process. This included trade bodies, business
groups, community councils, HMO licence holders and agents and other
interested parties, to ensure that all views were taken into account when forming
a draft policy statement and licensing conditions framework. Officers have also

Page 35



held meetings with the online platform Airbnb to discuss the proposed policy
and the implementation of the licensing scheme.

7.2 Afull equalities impact assessment has been completed as part of the statutory
consultation process and is attached at Appendix 8.

8. Background reading/external references

8.1 The Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of Short Term Lets)
Order 2022

8.1  Short Term Lets: New Licensing Powers Consultation — Regulatory Committee
— 31 March 2022

8.2  Short Term Letting in Edinburgh Update — Corporate Policy and Strategy
Committee — 14 May 2019

9. Appendices

9.1 Appendix 1 - STL Initial Consultation - Summary Report

9.2  Appendix 2 - STL Second Consultation - Summary Report

9.3  Appendix 3 — Summary of Written Responses to First Consultation

9.4  Appendix 4 — Summary of Written Responses to Second Consultation

9.5 Appendix 5 - Proposed STL Licensing Policy

9.6 Appendix 6 — Mandatory Conditions of Licence for STL

9.7  Appendix 7 — Proposed Application Fees

9.8  Appendix 8 - Integrated Impact Assessment

9.9 Appendix 9 — Written Response to Second Consultation — Association of
Scotland’s Self Caterers

9.10 Appendix 10 — Written Response to Second Consultation — Edinburgh Council
Policy Challenge Group

9.11 Appendix 11 — Written Response to Second Consultation — Federation of Small
Businesses

9.12 Appendix 12 — Text of Petition delivered by Living Rent in Response to Second
Consultation

9.13 Appendix 13 — Written Response to Second Consultation — Edinburgh Festivals

9.14 Appendix 14 — Consultation Comments (B Agenda)

Page 36


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2022/32/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2022/32/contents/made
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s45931/7.2%20Short%20Term%20Lets%20-%20New%20Licensing%20Powers%20Consultation%20v0.7%20directorate.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/Data/Corporate%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%20Committee/20190514/Agenda/item_72_-_short_term_lets.pdf

Appendix 1 - STL Initial Consultation - Summary Report

Short Term Lets 2022

https://consultationhub.edinburgh.gov.uk/sfc/short-term-lets-2022

This report was created on Thursday 15 September 2022 at 11:34
The activity ran from 15/04/2022 to 10/06/2022

Responses to this survey: 1902

1: Your details

First name

There were 1902 responses to this part of the question.

Surname

There were 1902 responses to this part of the question.

Email address

There were 1902 responses to this part of the question.

Postcode
There were 1902 responses to this part of the question.
Yes, | consent to being contacted about this consultation

There were 1278 responses to this part of the question.

Page 37



4 N
Yes
No
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- J
Option Total Percent
Yes 1278 67.19%
No 624 32.81%
2: Which of the following apply to you?
Respondent category
There were 1893 responses to this part of the question.
4 N

Short term let operator
Short term let customer
Short term let neighbour -
Live in Edinburgh _
Visitor to Edinburgh I
-
B

Work in Edinburgh

Other (e.g. trade group - please give de
tails below)

Not Answered

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600/

Page 38



Option Total Percent
Short term let operator 446 23.45%
Short term let customer 170 8.94%
Short term let neighbour 342 17.98%
Live in Edinburgh 1522 80.02%
Visitor to Edinburgh 55 2.89%
Work in Edinburgh 664 34.91%
Other (e.g. trade group - please give details below) 80 4.21%
Not Answered 9 0.47%
Other respondent type

There were 146 responses to this part of the question.

3: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be
suitable or not suitable as short term lets, and give us your reasons why.

Property types - Tenements or other properties with main door

There were 1869 responses to this part of the question.

4 N\

Suitable

Not Answered F

0 200 400 600 800 1000 12|oo
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 743 39.06%
Not suitable 1126 59.20%
Not Answered 33 1.74%

Page 39



Property types

- Detached

There were 1820 responses to this part of the question.

4 ] ™\
Suitable
Not suitable _
Not Answered F
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 1414 74.34%
Not suitable 406 21.35%
Not Answered 82 4.31%
Property types - Semi-detached
There were 1816 responses to this part of the question.
4 ] ™\
Suitable
Not Answered F
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 964 50.68%
Not suitable 852 44.79%
Not Answered 86 4.52%

Page 40




Property types - Bungalow

There were 1805 responses to this part of the question.

4 ] N
Suitable
Not Answered F
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 1331 69.98%
Not suitable 474 24.92%
Not Answered 97 5.10%
Property types - Terraced
There were 1818 responses to this part of the question.
4 ] N
Suitable
Not Answered F
9 0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000
Option Total Percent
Suitable 877 46.11%
Not suitable 941 49.47%
Not Answered 84 4.42%

Page 41




Property types - New build

There were 1780 responses to this part of the question.

4 )

Suitable

Not Answered _

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 )

.
Option Total Percent
Suitable 915 48.11%
Not suitable 865 45.48%
Not Answered 122 6.41%
Reasons

There were 1552 responses to this part of the question.

4: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be
suitable or not suitable as short term lets, and give us your reasons why.

Property type - Basement

There were 1832 responses to this part of the question.

Page 42



4 ) N
Suitable
Not Answered F
9 6 1(|)0 2(|)0 360 4(|)0 560 6(I)0 760 8(I)O 9(|)0 10|00
Option Total Percent
Suitable 910 47.84%
Not suitable 922 48.48%
Not Answered 70 3.68%
Property type - Ground floor
There were 1828 responses to this part of the question.
/ _ N
Suitable
Not Answered F
0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 906 47.63%
Not suitable 922 48.48%
Not Answered 74 3.89%

Property type - Top floor

There were 1829 responses to this part of the question.

Page 43



4 ) N
Suitable
Not Answered F
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 735 38.64%
Not suitable 1094 57.52%
Not Answered 73 3.84%
Property type - Other floor
There were 1812 responses to this part of the question.
/ _ N
Suitable
Not Answered F
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 749 39.38%
Not suitable 1063 55.89%
Not Answered 90 4.73%

Reasons

There were 1434 responses to this part of the question.

Page 44




5: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be
suitable or not suitable as short term lets, and give us your reasons why.

Property type - Licensed House in Multiple Occupation (HMO)

There were 1809 responses to this part of the question.

4 )

Suitable

Notsuitable |

Not Answered F

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200

\ %
Option Total Percent
Suitable 687 36.12%
Not suitable 1122 58.99%
Not Answered 93 4.89%

Property type - Private rented property which is not a HMO

There were 1801 responses to this part of the question.

4 )

Suitable

Not Answered F

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200
- /

| Option | Total | Percent |

Page 45



Suitable 763 40.12%

Not suitable 1038 54 57%

Not Answered 101 5.31%
Reasons

There were 1298 responses to this part of the question.

6: Is there any other type of property that you think would not be suitable as a
short term let? Please tell us why you think this.

Other property type unsuitable

There were 866 responses to this part of the question.

7: Should the Council adopt additional conditions?

Conditions?

There were 1893 responses to this part of the question.

4 N
Yes
No
Not Answered
L 0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600
Option Total Percent
Yes 1507 79.23%
No 386 20.29%
Not Answered 9 0.47%

Page 46



8: Which issues should the conditions cover?

conditions - which issues

There were 1500 responses to this part of the question.

-

Noise

Anti-social behaviour

Waste management

Failure to maintain the property

Failure to maintain/contribute to
commun...

Damage or alteration to property

Unlawful activity

Other (please give details below)

il

Not Answered

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600

- J
Option Total Percent
Noise 1419 74.61%
Anti-social behaviour 1433 75.34%
Waste management 1349 70.93%
Failure to maintain the property 1313 69.03%
Failure to maintain/contribute to communal repairs 1374 72.24%

Page 47




Damage or alteration to property 1281 67.35%

Unlawful activity 1381 72.61%

Other (please give details below) 425 22.34%

Not Answered 402 21.14%
Other issue

There were 611 responses to this part of the question.

9: Should children under the age of 10 count towards the occupancy of a
premises?

Under 10s?

There were 1879 responses to this part of the question.

4 N\

Yes

vo |

Not Answered F

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

- J
Option Total Percent
Yes 1235 64.93%
No 644 33.86%
Not Answered 23 1.21%

Page 48



10: Should temporary licences be introduced?

Temp licences?

There were 1885 responses to this part of the question.

4 ) N
Yes
v |
Not Answered F
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200
- J
Option Total Percent
Yes 877 46.11%
No 1008 53.00%
Not Answered 17 0.89%
11: Should there be additional conditions for temporary licences?
additional conditions for temps?
There were 872 responses to this part of the question.
/ i} N
Yes
vo |
Not Answered
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200
- J
Option Total Percent
Yes 459 24.13%

Page 49




No

413

21.71%

Not Answered

1030

54.15%

12: What additional conditions should be attached?

Temp issues

There were 449 responses to this part of the question.

-

Noise

Anti-social behaviour

Waste management

Failure to maintain the property

Failure to maintain/contribute to
commun...

Damage or alteration to property

|'|III

Unlawful activity

Other (please give details below)

Not Answered

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600
- J
Option Total Percent
Noise 424 22.29%
Anti-social behaviour 420 22.08%
Waste management 391 20.56%
Failure to maintain the property 364 19.14%
Failure to maintain/contribute to communal repairs 376 19.77%

Page 50




Damage or alteration to property 376 19.77%
Unlawful activity 411 21.61%
Other (please give details below) 118 6.20%

Not Answered 1453 76.39%

Other issues - temporary licences

There were 162 responses to this part of the question.

13: Should temporary exemptions be introduced?

If you answer 'yes', the next question will ask you about the event types for

which you think an exemption would be appropriate.
Temp exemptions?

There were 1890 responses to this part of the question.

4 I
Yes
No
Not Answered
0 600 800 1000 1200 1400
9 0 200 40 )
Option Total Percent
Yes 687 36.12%
No 1203 63.25%
Not Answered 12 0.63%

Page 51



14: What reasons do you think would justify an exemption?

Exemption justification

There were 677 responses to this part of the question.

/

Major sporting events (e.g. Six Nations,
Commonwealth Games, European...

Major international events (e.g. CoP26 o
r similar)

For home sharing or home letting to give
first time operators the chance to try...

Other (please give details below)

I
o

0 200 400 600

800 1000 1200 1400

-
Option Total Percent
Major sporting events (e.g. Six Nations, Commonwealth 568 29.86%
Games, European Finals etc)
Major international events (e.g. CoP26 or similar) 601 31.60%
For home sharing or home letting to give first time 419 22.03%
operators the chance to try out Short Term Letting before
making a full application
Other (please give details below) 232 12.20%
Not Answered 1225 64.41%

Other reason justifying temporary exemption

There were 299 responses to this part of the question.

15: Should temporary exemptions have additional conditions?

temp exemptions additional conditions?

There were 685 responses to this part of the question.

Page 52




4 ) N
Yes
vo. |
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- J
Option Total Percent
Yes 325 17.09%
No 360 18.93%
Not Answered 1217 63.99%

16: What additional conditions should be attached to temporary exemptions?

Conditions - temp exemption

There were 316 responses to this part of the question.

Page 53




Noise

Anti-social behaviour

Waste management

Failure to maintain the property

Failure to maintain/contribute to
commun...

Damage or alteration to property

Unlawful activity

Other (please give details below)

Not Answered

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600 1800

-

Option Total Percent
Noise 289 15.19%
Anti-social behaviour 292 15.35%
Waste management 265 13.93%
Failure to maintain the property 245 12.88%
Failure to maintain/contribute to communal repairs 251 13.20%
Damage or alteration to property 258 13.56%
Unlawful activity 285 14.98%
Other (please give details below) 63 3.31%

Not Answered 1586 83.39%

Other conditions - temporary exemptions

There were 71 responses to this part of the question.

Page 54




17: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be
suitable or not suitable for temporary exemption, and give us your reasons
why.

Property types not suitable for exemption - Tenements or other properties with
main door

There were 656 responses to this part of the question.

4 N\

Suitable

Not suitable -

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

. %
Option Total Percent
Suitable 516 27.13%
Not suitable 140 7.36%
Not Answered 1246 65.51%

Property types not suitable for exemption - Detached

There were 652 responses to this part of the question.

4 N\

Suitable

Not suitable I

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- /

Page 55



Option Total Percent
Suitable 624 32.81%
Not suitable 28 1.47%
Not Answered 1250 65.72%
Property types not suitable for exemption - Semi-detached
There were 646 responses to this part of the question.
/ _ ™
Suitable
Not suitable .
6 2(|)o 460 6(I)O 8(I)0 10|00 12|oo 14loo
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 576 30.28%
Not suitable 70 3.68%
Not Answered 1256 66.04%
Property types not suitable for exemption - Bungalow
There were 650 responses to this part of the question.
/ i} ™
Suitable
Not suitable I
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- J

Page 56




Option Total Percent
Suitable 610 32.07%
Not suitable 40 2.10%
Not Answered 1252 65.83%
Property types not suitable for exemption - Terraced
There were 648 responses to this part of the question.
4 i} N
Suitable
Not suitable -
6 2(|)o 460 6(I)O 8(I)0 10|00 12|oo 14loo
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 557 29.28%
Not suitable 91 4.78%
Not Answered 1254 65.93%
Property types not suitable for exemption - New build
There were 638 responses to this part of the question.
/ i} ™
Suitable
Not suitable -
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- J

Page 57




Option Total Percent

Suitable 541 28.44%

Not suitable 97 5.10%

Not Answered 1264 66.46%
Reasons

There were 316 responses to this part of the question.

18: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be
suitable or not suitable for temporary exemption, and give us your reasons
why.

Property types - Basement

There were 647 responses to this part of the question.

4 )

Suitable

Not suitable -

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

. %
Option Total Percent
Suitable 536 28.18%
Not suitable 111 5.84%
Not Answered 1255 65.98%

Property types - Ground floor

There were 648 responses to this part of the question.

Page 58



4 ) N
Suitable
Not suitable -
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 551 28.97%
Not suitable 97 5.10%
Not Answered 1254 65.93%
Property types - Top floor
There were 645 responses to this part of the question.
/ _ ™
Suitable
Not suitable -
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 500 26.29%
Not suitable 145 7.62%
Not Answered 1257 66.09%

Property types - Other floor

There were 642 responses to this part of the question.

Page 59




Suitable

Not suitable -

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

. J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 502 26.39%
Not suitable 140 7.36%
Not Answered 1260 66.25%

Reasons

There were 273 responses to this part of the question.

19: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be
suitable or not suitable for temporary exemption, and give us your reasons
why.

Property types - Licensed House in Multiple Occupation (HMO)

There were 642 responses to this part of the question.

4 )

Suitable

Not suitable -

Not Answered _

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- /

Page 60



Option Total Percent
Suitable 416 21.87%
Not suitable 226 11.88%
Not Answered 1260 66.25%

Property types - Private rented property which is not a HMO

There were 641 responses to this part of the question.

4 N

Suitable

Not suitable -

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400
- J
Option Total Percent
Suitable 449 23.61%
Not suitable 192 10.09%
Not Answered 1261 66.30%

Reasons

There were 271 responses to this part of the question.

20: Is there any other type of property that you think would be unsuitable for a
temporary exemption? Please tell us why you think this.

Reasons why unsuitable for temporary exemption

There were 127 responses to this part of the question.

Page 61



21: What are the positives of short term letting?

Positives of short term lets

There were 1669 responses to this part of the question.

22: What are the negatives of short term letting?

negatives short term letting

There were 1723 responses to this part of the question.

23: Are there any further comments that you would like to make on any aspect
of the licensing of short term lets?

Any other comments

There were 1083 responses to this part of the question.

24: What do you feel is your national identity?
National identity

There were 1832 responses to this part of the question.

Page 62



Scottish

English

Northern Irish

Welsh

Other, please write in

Prefer not to say

|

ritish [
I
I

Not Answered

9 (I) 260 460 6(I)O 8(I)0 10|00 12|oo 14|00
Option Total Percent
Scottish 1166 61.30%
English 129 6.78%
Northern Irish 23 1.21%
Welsh 12 0.63%
British 547 28.76%
Other, please write in 187 9.83%
Prefer not to say 134 7.05%
Not Answered 70 3.68%

Other, please write in:

There were 207 responses to this part of the question.

Page 63



25: What is your age?

Age

There were 1847 responses to this part of the question.

4 ] N

16 - 24

25-34

35-44 |

455+ [

55-64 [

6s-7+ |

75 and over -
Prefer not to say _
Not Answered -
0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450
- J

Option Total Percent
Under 16 0 0.00%
16 - 24 58 3.05%
25-34 405 21.29%
35-44 402 21.14%
45 - 54 355 18.66%
55 - 64 314 16.51%
65 -74 183 9.62%
75 and over 39 2.05%
Prefer not to say 91 4.78%
Not Answered 55 2.89%

Page 64




26: What is your sex?

Sex

There were 1838 responses to this part of the question.

4 )

Female

male [
Prefer not to say -

Not Answered F

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000

-
Option Total Percent
Female 886 46.58%
Male 820 43.11%
Prefer not to say 132 6.94%
Not Answered 64 3.36%

27: Do you consider yourself to be trans, or have a trans history?

Trans

There were 1779 responses to this part of the question.

Page 65



No

Yes

Prefer not to say -

Not Answered F
0

200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600 1800

-
Option Total Percent
No 1581 83.12%
Yes 35 1.84%
Prefer not to say 163 8.57%
Not Answered 123 6.47%

If you would like to, please describe your trans status (for example non-binary,
trans man, trans woman):

There were 65 responses to this part of the question.

Page 66



Appendix 2 — STL Second Consultation — Summary Report

Short Term Lets 2022 - Consultation 2

https://consultationhub.edinburgh.gov.uk/sfc/short-term-lets-2022-consultation-2

This report was created on Thursday 15 September 2022 at 11:35
The activity ran from 25/07/2022 to 05/09/2022

Responses to this survey: 1039

1: Your details

First name

There were 1039 responses to this part of the question.

Surname

There were 1039 responses to this part of the question.

Email address

There were 1039 responses to this part of the question.

Postcode
There were 1039 responses to this part of the question.
Yes, | consent to being contacted about this consultation

There were 729 responses to this part of the question.

Page 67


https://consultationhub.edinburgh.gov.uk/sfc/short-term-lets-2022-consultation-2

4 N
Yes
No
0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800
- J
Option Total Percent
Yes 729 70.16%
No 310 29.84%
2: Which of the following apply to you?
Respondent category
There were 1036 responses to this part of the question.
4 ~ )
Short term let operator
Short term let customer
Short term let neighbour _
Live in Edinburgh |
Visitor to Edinburgh I
Work in Edinburgh _
Other (e.g. trade group - please give de .
tails below)
Not Answered
0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800
- J

Page 68



Option Total Percent
Short term let operator 384 36.96%
Short term let customer 99 9.53%
Short term let neighbour 201 19.35%
Live in Edinburgh 740 71.22%
Visitor to Edinburgh 31 2.98%
Work in Edinburgh 356 34.26%
Other (e.g. trade group - please give details below) 50 4.81%
Not Answered 3 0.29%
Other respondent type

There were 100 responses to this part of the question.

3: In terms of section 4.16 of the proposed policy in relation to short-term
letting in tenement properties, we have set out two options. Please indicate
which option you consider to be most suitable for Edinburgh.

“Secondary letting” means a short-term let consisting of an agreement for
the use of accommodation which is not, or not part

of, the licence holder’s only or principal home.

"Rebuttable presumption” means that the applicant has to justify why their
application should be granted as an exemption to this policy.

Option 1 or 2

There were 1026 responses to this part of the question.

Page 69



Option 1

Option 2

Neither (please comment below)

Not Answered

9 0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 500/
Option Total Percent
Option 1 429 41.29%
Option 2 298 28.68%
Neither (please comment below) 299 28.78%
Not Answered 13 1.25%

Neither option 1 or 2 reasons

There were 368 responses to this part of the question.

4: Should the Council limit the number of nights for which short term let

accommodation may be used in each year?

limit number of nights

There were 1025 responses to this part of the question.

Page 70




Yes

v (I

Not Answered F
0

100 200 300 400 500 600 700
- J
Option Total Percent
Yes 602 57.94%
No 423 40.71%
Not Answered 14 1.35%

5: How many weeks should the limit be set at?

How many weeks

There were 1002 responses to this part of the question.

Page 71




4 ) N\
Four weeks
Six weeks
10 weeks -
12 weeks |
Nolimie |
Other (please give details below) _
Not Answered F
0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400
. J
Option Total Percent
Four weeks 227 21.85%
Six weeks 154 14.82%
10 weeks 58 5.58%
12 weeks 96 9.24%
No limit 372 35.80%
Other (please give details below) 95 9.14%
Not Answered 37 3.56%
Other

There were 234 responses to this part of the question.

6: If you have any comments on the proposed Short Term Lets Licensing Policy,

please provide these below.

Policy comments

There were 589 responses to this part of the question.

Page 72




7: Do you have any comments on the proposed policy in respect of temporary
licences? See 4.10 to 4.15 in the proposed policy below.

Temporary comments

There were 497 responses to this part of the question.

8: Do you have any comments on the proposed policy in respect of temporary
exemptions? 4.19 to 4.25 below.

Comments on exemptions

There were 568 responses to this part of the question.

9: If you have any comments on the proposed additional licence conditions,
please provide these below.

Additional conditions comments

There were 446 responses to this part of the question.

10: Are there any further comments that you would like to make on any aspect
of the licensing of short term lets?

Any other comments

There were 519 responses to this part of the question.

11: What do you feel is your national identity?

National identity

There were 998 responses to this part of the question.

Page 73



/ ) ™
Scottish
English
Northern Irish
Welsh |
erivisn |
Other, please write in -
Prefer not to say -
Not Answered F
(I) 1(|)0 260 3(|)0 4(|)0 5(|)0 6(I)0 7(|)0
- J
Option Total Percent
Scottish 612 58.90%
English 71 6.83%
Northern Irish 16 1.54%
Welsh 5 0.48%
British 312 30.03%
Other, please write in 99 9.53%
Prefer not to say 67 6.45%
Not Answered 41 3.95%

Other, please write in:

There were 102 responses to this part of the question.

Page 74




12: What is your age?

Age

There were 1004 responses to this part of the question.

4 ] N

16 - 24

25-34

35-44 [

ss-5+ [

s5-c+ [

6s-74 |

75 and over -
Prefer not to say _
Not Answered _
0 50 100 150 200 250
N\ J

Option Total Percent
Under 16 0 0.00%
16 -24 21 2.02%
25-34 179 17.23%
35-44 231 22.23%
45 - 54 189 18.19%
55 -64 189 18.19%
65 -74 114 10.97%
75 and over 32 3.08%

Page 75




Prefer not to say 49 4.72%
Not Answered 35 3.37%
13: What is your sex?
Sex
There were 994 responses to this part of the question.
/ i} N
Female
male [
Prefer not to say -
Not Answered F
0 100 200 300 400 500 600
- J
Option Total Percent
Female 436 41.96%
Male 485 46.68%
Prefer not to say 73 7.03%
Not Answered 45 4.33%

14: Do you consider yourself to be trans, or have a trans history?

Trans

There were 969 responses to this part of the question.

Page 76




No

Yes

Prefer not to say -

Not Answered F
0

100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

-
Option Total Percent
No 856 82.39%
Yes 18 1.73%
Prefer not to say 95 9.14%
Not Answered 70 6.74%

If you would like to, please describe your trans status (for example non-binary,
trans man, trans woman):

There were 39 responses to this part of the question.

Page 77



Appendix 3 — Summary of Written Responses to
First Consultation

The initial STL consultation attracted a significant number of written responses to various
guestions. Below is a brief summary of the written responses using common words, phrases
and themes which were identified.

Questions 3 — 6 asked for comments about the suitability of property types for use as
STLs.

e Security

e ASB - noise

e Increased maintenance of communal areas disproportionately affects permanent
residents

e Dedicated access needed to prevent problems in communal areas
e Shared main door properties inappropriate

e Any property type can be suitable if properly managed

e No community attachment thus no feeling of responsibility

e Eroding availability of affordable housing

e Assess on case-by case basis

Q8 asked for comments about which issues additional conditions should cover.

e Noise proofing

e Maximum days STL per year

e Limit no. STLs per building/area

e 24 hour local responsibility and response and loss of licence if this not met

e Enforcement of ‘tourist tax’

e Limit on STL properties owned per entity

e Additional payments for communal issues

e (Clear penalties for non compliance

e Hot tubs have a tendency to encourage regular late night noise, antisocial and
unsafe behaviour

e Forbid attaching key boxes to shared or public property

e Restrict hours for guest check-in/check-out

e STLs should pay commercial non-domestic rates rather than Council tax

e Owner/manager must establish contactable relationship with all neighbours

e Planning consent

Q12 asked for comments about what issues additional conditions for temporary licences

should cover.
e Contact number for owner

Page 78



e |nsurance

e Housekeeping instructions

e Restriction on period and duration

e Multiple occurrences of temporary licences not permitted
e No subletting

e No sexual services

e Safety standards

e Contribution to Council Tax

e Limit no. people in property

e Extra charge imposed

e Limit STLs being run by companies

e Eviction of tenants banned to allow STL for e.g. festivals
e No move to permanent licence if complaints received

e Individuals restricted to single temp licence

e Max occupancy

e No animals

e No subletting

e Rent control e.g. no massive price hikes during festivals
e Similar to HMO licence conditions

e Same conditions as permanent licence

e Tourist tax

Q14 asked for comments on what other reasons would justify a temporary exemption.

e Events bringing in visitors and their money

e Arts events, Hogmanay

e Anyone renting for under six weeks per year
e B&Bs where the owner is resident

e Christmas, Hogmanay, Easter

e Festivals

e Humanitarian crisis

e Emergency accommodation

e Lodgersin own home

e Single exemption per year

e Already complies with HMO standards

e Home exchanges (without payment)

e None

e All safety requirement should still be in place
e Need to allow four weeks for festivals plus two weeks at Christmas
e Party flats, stag/hen weekends

e Vacant period between tenants

Page 79



University Freshers Weeks, Graduation Weeks, End of Terms for parents collecting
possessions, Christmas Markets, Hogmanay...

Q16 asked for comments on what issues additional conditions for temporary exemptions
should cover.

A fee

Commitment to abide by licence conditions
Searchable public register

Frequency

Limit numbers of exemptions issued

Compulsory repairs for damage to communal areas
Fire alarms

All safety measures

Specified end date

Inform neighbours in advance and collect feedback afterwards
Limit no. exemptions in a specified time period
Neighbour notification

No re-application within specified time period
Occupancy limit

Annual but not more frequent

Qs 17 — 19 asked for comments on property suitability for temporary exemptions

All can be suitable if properly managed

None

Case-by-case basis

Consider concentration of STLs in area

One policy for all aspects

Yes for home sharing and home letting. No for commercial short term let properties -
secondary letting

Specific events

Case-by-case basis

Q20 asked for comments on unsuitable property types for temporary exemptions.

Housing close to vulnerable people
Caravans/tents
Yurts

Q21 asked for comments on the positives of short term letting.

Additional income
Affordability and choice for visitors
Income for cleaners etc

Page 80



e Supports Edinburgh economy and tourism

e Flexible use of housing stock that can be returned into the residential sector

e Generated income stays legal

e Boosts Edinburgh's reputation as a welcoming, cosmopolitan city and ideal family
destination

e None

e Brings visitors and their money to Edinburgh

e STLs are not just for tourists

Q22 asked for comments on the negatives of short term letting

e Disruption to neighbours

e No communal benefit

e Community fragmentation

e Reduces city housing stock

e Drives up long term accommodation prices

e Encourages foreign visitors — CO2 impact

e Waste disposal/recycling rarely completed appropriately
e Security compromised

Q23 asked for any further comments.

e Copy Amsterdam

e Exclusion zones

e Badidea

e Properinspection needed

e C(lear guidance for home sharers required

e A model contract could be suggested by the council

e Fartoo blunt a tool to solve a very specific problem

e Arefusal to grant a licence should be the norm

e The council needs to do more to prevent STL taking over the city. Stop giving out too
many licenses and enforce them more so people can't STL without one

e The council needs to take a pragmatic and balanced approach, rather than trying to
ban most STL operators from providing quality short term accommodation

e The licensing scheme needs an enforcement mechanism with real teeth - and | hope
that short-term lets in tenements will be banned outright

e Whatever you do, ENFORCE IT ! Use heavy fines and custodial sentences to stamp
out unregulated STL

e When licencing is introduced, then it must be supported by adequate resource to
manage and enforce that licencing. The Planning Team within the Council currently
lack the resources and leadership to enforce the most basic of planning conditions,
even when developers are operating on Council land (e.g. Christmas Marker in PSG).
There must be significant investment in staffing, and under performing senior
managers must be held accountable.

Page 81



Page 82



Appendix 4 — Summary of Written Responses to
Second Consultation

The second STL consultation again attracted a significant number of written responses to
various questions. Below is a brief summary of the written responses using common words,
phrases and themes which were identified.

Question 6 asked for comments about the proposed policy.

e Prioritise needs of permanent residents and locals

e STLs have destroyed community

e Need requirement for permanent notice of contact details for STL owners
e ASB

e Share applications with immediate neighbours

e No keyboxes in public areas

e No STLs without separate access

e Sufficient enforcement resources?

e Proposed conditions are heavy handed

e More than a specified number of complaints should lead to termination of licence
e Requirement for carpeting in secondary legislation is draconian
e Negative impact on small businesses

e Overkill

e Will be bad for tourism

e What if property already has planning permission?

e STLs should have same safety requirements as long term rentals
e End secondary letting, or treat the same as others

e No exceptions for Fringe etc

e Annual licence onerous and costly

e Should require commercial waste contract

e Balanced, flexible policy

e Require soundproofing assessment

e Requirement to display personal info is unacceptable

e Allow existing businesses to keep operating

Q7 asked for comments on the proposed policy in respect of temporary licences.
e Restrict to four weeks for home letting as owner is absent
e Creates loophole which favours profit over communities
e Resources to enforce?
e Impose annual limit (days/weeks)
e No renewal for specified period
e Number should be capped

Page 83



Unfair on secondary lets

Ensure no displacement of residents during temporary licence period
Should only be granted in very limited circumstances

Six weeks too long for home rental

Not for commercial operations, just home sharing

Restrict permitted number of renewals, after which annual licence should be
required

Circulate application to neighbours

Why not include secondary letting?

Not appropriate for tenements/shared entry properties

Instead of ‘six weeks’ say ‘in July and August’

This should not attract a fee

Not necessary/appropriate

Not appropriate for home letting

Q8 asked for comments on the proposed policy in respect of temporary exemptions.

Very risky for the inexperienced

Should only be allowed for home sharing

May make the whole licensing framework ineffective

Not necessary or appropriate

Should be limited for unforeseen circumstances such as emergency accommodation
Defeats the purpose of regulation

Period should be shorter and only once per year

Needs to protect long term tenants from eviction for this period
Will undermine the purpose of the legislation

Should be allowed for secondary letting too

Seems completely bonkers

Q9 asked for comments on the proposed additional licensing conditions.

Proper resourcing of effective enforcement needed

Phone number needs to be available to neighbours as well as Council

Start and finish must be supervised by owner/named person — no key safes
Owner must bear share of communal repairs (perhaps enhanced share)

Licence holder must be fit and proper

Limit number of STLs in each property and adjoining properties

Ensure that key safes used for non-STL purposes are not restricted (e.g. those used
by carers)

Don’t allow owner proxies for handovers

Carpets/noise reduction may not always be appropriate/should only apply to flats
Requirement for carpets/noise reduction requirements should be considered on
case by case basis

Hot tubs may need condition

Prohibit large gatherings/parties

Page 84



e Undue burden

e These are too weak

e STLs should match HMO requirements

e If not renewing, remove key box at end of licence period

e Why can’t the Council limit the number of STL night in a secondary let?
e There should be no additional conditions

e STL3 - time limits aren’t practical

Q10 asked for comments on any other aspect of the licensing of short term lets.

e Far too many STLs

e Should follow other major cities which have clamped down on STLs

e Need transparency re policy making

e [|'d like to see all applicants charged tax retrospectively on their earnings

e We need neighbours, not businesses!

e Enforcement will be key to whether this policy works

e This will ultimately result in a shortage of affordable visitor accommodation in the
city

e Itis not clear why an energy performance certificate is needed

e [t's very encouraging to see many of the concerns raised by lots of residents have
been addressed in the policy

e Too much reliance is placed on self-certification. There needs to be inspections by
Council Officers, ideally all but realistically on a random basis.

e Owners of STLs should pay an appropriate level of tax. | am strongly in favour of a
tourist tax.

e Not enough about numbers to be allowed per block/neighbourhood/city

e Far too much leeway for agencies still, and way too many exemptions.

e Would also stipulate that facilitators (sites which list properties) should also be held
liable so you can bill them also

e Prevent investment companies with multiple properties short term letting more than
1 property

e Exemptions listed in sections 4.20 to 4.29 are likely to undo a lot of the good work of
this proposal and should be reviewed

e Please stop licensing things. Stop governing things. Edinburgh could do with a
reduction in choking bureaucracy, not an ever-upwards ratcheting of smothering
regulation

e Why not a 3 or 5-year licence with the option to rescind if evidence of failure to
comply arises?

e This policy will restrict the provision of non-holiday short term lets, such as for
professionals or academics who are based in the city for three to six months
irrespective if the property is usually let our or is someone's home.

e Home share short term lets that are owner occupied should not need licensure

Page 85



e All properties should be treated in the same way. Temporary licences should be
available for all properties, not just homes. And all properties should have all
relevant certificates in place, such as landlord gas certificates

e Licences should be granted on a case by case basis

e Airbnb and other companies provide a traceable, tax paying and above board
observable rental platform, that has standards of quality. Rogue landlords have
already planned to bypass the new rules

e | would like to meet with my local councillors about this. Please have multiple
surgeries/meetings widely publicised

e This whole licensing scheme is going to diminish Edinburgh's reputation for
hospitality

e The city needs to allow short term lets and work on the basis of presumed consent
unless there is an active objection raised

e | object to the imposition of a licensing requirement for home sharing and home
letting

e This Policy is welcome and should be a stepping stone to further legislation

e Fit and proper people - those who have avoided their previous responsibility to
obtain permission for change of use, failed in duties such as arranging commercial
waste services for their properties, ignored complaints and failed to prevent anti-
social behaviour by their clients should be considered unfit and not be given licenses.

Over provision in specific areas should be considered.

Page 86



Appendix 5 - Proposed STL Licensing Policy

Draft Short Term Let Licensing Policy

Introduction

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

The City of Edinburgh Council (“the Council”) is required to regulate
short term lets (STLs) through the Civic Government (Scotland) Act
1982 (Licensing of Short Term Lets) Order 2022 (the 2022 Order),
which brings STL within the scope of licensable activities covered by
the statutory provisions of the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982
(the 1982 Act).

The Council’s Regulatory Committee agreed this policy on 29 September
2022 following two periods of public consultation.

The Council must prepare a statement of its policy with respect to the
exercise of its functions in relation to the licensing of STL. This policy
provides information on the following areas:

1.3.1 Licence Duration and Renewal

1.3.2 Temporary Licences

1.3.3 Temporary Exemptions

1.3.4 Additional Conditions which will apply
1.3.5 Compliance and Enforcement

This policy provides guidance for prospective applicants, existing licence
holders and those who may wish to object to an application. The Council
will have regard to the terms of its policy when determining applications.
This policy will be reviewed and revised when necessary.

The key aims of licensing are the preservation of public safety and order
and the prevention of crime. A specific licensing regime for STL allows the
Council to take into account local circumstances when setting out its
licensing policy and to exercise appropriate control and regulation to
ensure any STL premises licensed meet the requisite safety standard.

Key Dates
Owners or operators of STL accommodation should note the key dates for

the implementation of the STL licensing scheme set out below:

Page 87



Date

Hosts operating a STL
before 1 October 2022

Never operated a STL
before 1 October
2022

1 October 2022

e You can continue to

operate your
premises as a STL -
must comply with
existing laws and
regulations;

* You must apply to the
Licensing Authority
where your premises is
situated for a STL
licence before 1 April
2023; and

* If your STL Licence
application is refused
by the Licensing
Authority you must stop
using your premises as
a STL within 28 days of
the decision

e Must not operate a
STL without a licence
being granted by the
Licensing Authority
where your premises
IS situated,

e If you wish to operate
a STL you must apply
to the Licensing
Authority in which
your premises is
situated,

1 April 2023

» Can only operate
without a licence if a
STL licence application
has been submitted to
the Licensing Authority
where your premises is
situated, and it has not
been refused; and

* You must stop
operating as a STL if
your application is
refused by the
Licensing Authority,
subject to appeal

Same as above

1 July 2024

All hosts must have a
STL licence.

Same as above

Page 88




Definition of a Short Term Let as set out in the 2022 Order

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

As per the terms of the 2022 Order, “short term let” (STL) means the

use of residential accommodation provided by a host in the course of

business to a guest, where all of the following criteria are met —

2.1.1 The guest does not use the accommodation as their only or
principal home

2.1.2 The STL is entered into for commercial consideration

2.1.3 The guestis not —

*  Animmediate family member of the host,

+  Sharing the accommodation with the host for the principal
purpose of advancing the guest’s education as part of an
arrangement made or approved by a school, college or
further or higher education institution, or

*  An owner or part-owner of the accommodation

2.1.4 The accommodation is not provided for the principal purpose of
facilitating the provision of work or services by the guest to the
host or to another member of the host’s household

2.1.5 The accommodation is not excluded premises — link here, and

2.1.6 The STL does not constitute an excluded tenancy — link here.

“Secondary letting” means a short-term let consisting of the entering

into of an agreement for the use of accommodation which is not, or not
part of, the licence holder’s only or principal home.

“‘Home letting” means a short-term let consisting of the entering into of

an agreement for the use, while the host is absent, of accommodation
which is, or is part of, the host’s only or principal home.

“‘Home sharing” means a short-term let consisting of the entering of an

agreement for the use, while the host is present, of accommodation
which is, or is part of, the host’s only or principal home.

“Accommodation” includes the whole or any part of a premises.

“‘Host” means a person who is the owner, tenant or person who

otherwise exercises control over occupation and use, of the
accommodation which is the subject of a STL.

“Guest” means a person who occupies accommodation under a short-

term let.

It must be noted that the above definitions are set out in legislation and

the Council has no discretion in this regard.

For the purposes of this policy, a rebuttable presumption means that

where an application falls outside of policy or is otherwise inconsistent
with it that an applicant understands that this in effect places a practical
onus on them to show why their application should still be granted
notwithstanding the policy

Page 89



Types of Short Term Let Licence

3.1  The Council will consider licence applications for the following types:

Secondary Letting

Home Letting

Home Sharing or

Home Letting and Home Sharing

oo ow

STL Application Process

41  Where appropriate, the Council will grant a STL licence for the following
time periods:
a. Secondary Letting — 1 year
b. Home Letting — 3 years
c. Home Sharing — 3 Years
d. Home Letting and Home Sharing — 3 Years

4.2  An application for the grant, variation or renewal of a full licence must be
made to the Council together with the appropriate fee and layout plan, as
well as providing copies of the following certification — please only
provide copies of documents as originals will not be returned:

Annual Gas Certificate (for accommodation with a gas supply)
Current Electrical Installation Condition Report

Annual Portable Appliance Test Certificate

For secondary letting only, Planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (the 1997 Act) for the use of
the premises as a STL; or proof that an application for planning
permission has been made under the 1997 Act, which has not yet
been determined; or proof that planning permission is not required
(for example, a certificate of lawfulness).

oo oW

4.3  As part of the application process, applicants will be required to confirm,
by self-declaration, that the following documentation is held for the
accommodation:

a. Current Fire Safety Risk Assessment — (required for new and any
subsequent renewal applications or where there has been a change
to the number of occupants)

b. Current Energy Performance Certificate

Page 90



4.4

Current Building Insurance Certificate

Current Public Liability Insurance Certificate

Current legionella risk assessment

Annual Emergency Lighting Certificate (Secondary letting only, for
accommodation with 5 occupants and above)

~® a0

An application, whether for a new licence or the renewal of an existing
licence, will only be considered as complete if it comprises of the
completed application form accompanied by all copies of required
certificates and layout plan. Any applications deemed to be incomplete
will be returned and not processed.

Notice of Application (excluding temporary licences and temporary exemptions)

4.5

4.6

The applicant must display a notice of the application on or near the
premises where it can be conveniently read by the public. The notice
must be displayed for 21 consecutive days from the date the application
is lodged with the Council. A copy of a display notice can be downloaded
from the Licensing Service website. As soon as possible after the expiry
of the period of 21 days, the applicant shall submit to the Council a
certificate (available online) which states that a notice was duly exhibited
for the required period.

The notice will include the following information, as required by the 1982

Act:

a. The type of licence applied for (Secondary Letting, Home Letting,
Home Sharing or Home Letting and Home Sharing);

b. If applying as an individual, the applicant’s full name and address. If

not applying as an individual, the full name of the organisation

together with the registered or principal office address, names of
directors or persons responsible for the management of the
premises;

Person responsible for the day to day management of the premises

Address of the STL premises;

The number of bedrooms in the premises;

The maximum number of occupants for the premises;

Details of any other SLT licences that have been granted to the

applicant (included on the application form);

h. The name and address of the owner(s) where the applicant is not the
owner of the premises or on the land on which the premises is
located (included on the application form);

i. Confirmation that the owners consent to the application for the

@ ~oao

Page 91



property to be used as a STL (included on the application form);

]. Where objections and representations in relation to the application
can be made to, the 28 day timescale for submitting an objection or
representation and the statutory requirements of an objection or
representation (in writing, providing name and address etc).

4.7  The application fee table for licence applications can be found here (will
be added once determined by the Regulatory Committee)

4.8  Applicants should note that the application fee is non-refundable in the
event of the licence application being refused or being withdrawn prior to
determination. To view the Council’s policy on refunds, click here.

Evidence of Operation as a STL before 1 October 2022
4.9  Where an applicant has been operating a STL before 1 October 2022,
the applicant will be required to certify this when submitting a STL
licence application. Checks to confirm this may be made by the Council.

Links With Planning

4.10 On 27 July 2022, Scottish Ministers approved plans to designate the City
of Edinburgh Council area as a STL control area. It requires residential
accommodation owners wholly letting accommodation, which is not their
principal home, as a STL in the Council area, to apply for planning
permission for a ‘change of use’ to a STL. The designation came into
effect on 5 September 2022.

4.11 Itis a mandatory condition of licence that a host or operator has planning
permission or has made an application for planning permission where all
of the following conditions apply
a. The accommodation is in a STL control area;

b. The accommodation is being used for secondary letting; and

c. Itis a dwelling house. (Notwithstanding the definition of a dwelling
house in the Town and Country (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order
1997, the definition of dwelling house for the purposes of this policy
shall include flatted residential accommodation).

4.12 In these circumstances, the host or operator must have made an
application for planning permission or already have planning permission
or have proof that planning permission is not required before they apply
for a licence.

Tenement / Shared Main Door Accommodation

4.13 The Council has consistently called for the regulation of the STL sector

Page 92


file://///corpad.corp.edinburgh.gov.uk/departments/SfC/AuthorityPublicProtection/CommunitySafety/Licensing/Paperless%20Processing/Checking/Licensing%20Officer/Chris/Short%20Term%20Lets/Policy%20Drafts/Policy/edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/24281/licence-application-fee-refunds-policy

through the introduction of a licensing scheme, as noted here. The
Council believes that tenemental accommodation, or those with a shared
main door, are unsuitable for secondary STL due to their character,
location and risk of creating undue nuisance. The Council also has
concerns in relation to the risk that anti-social behaviour may be
exacerbated within tenement or shared main door accommodation given
the close proximity of other residential accommodation and communal
areas.

4.14 For the purposes of this policy, secondary letting in tenement or shared
main door accommodation is considered as unsuitable and there will be
a rebuttable presumption, as defined in paragraph 2.9 of this policy,
against the grant of a licence in such circumstances.

415 The Council may take certain factors into account when determining
whether an application for secondary letting in tenement or shared main
door accommodation be granted as an exception to its policy Factors
which may be considered include, but are not limited to the evidence of
the following:

e Neighbours consent/support

e Length of time previously operated

e Frequency of bookings or intensity of use of accommodation
e System to prevent neighbour concerns

e Low level of complaints

4.16 For the avoidance of doubt and for the purposes of this policy, the
definition of a tenement accommodation is taken from section 26 of the
Tenements (Scotland) Act 2004.

Temporary Licences
4.17 As per paragraph 7(1) of Schedule 1 of the 1982 Act, the Council can
issue temporary licences for STL, which may be granted for a duration of
up to 6 weeks.

4.18 The Council consider that the grant of temporary licences for STL may
be appropriate in the circumstances as set out below:

o For home sharing or home letting or home sharing and home letting to
give first time hosts the opportunity to try out STL, prior to making a full

application.

(The above circumstances are not intended to be exhaustive and should

Page 93


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/Data/Corporate%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%20Committee/20180807/Agenda/item_72_-_short_term_letting_in_edinburgh.pdf

4.19

4.20

421

422

4.23

only be treated as indicative.)

Temporary licences would normally be suitable for the following types of
let:

a. Home letting;
b. Home sharing; or
c. Home letting & Home sharing

It is considered unsuitable for temporary licences to be issued to
accommodation used for secondary letting. There will be a rebuttable
presumption, as defined in paragraph 2.9 of this policy, against the grant
of temporary exemptions in such circumstances.

Any temporary licence which is issued will be subject to the mandatory
conditions of licence, as set out in the 1982 Act.

Temporary licences will also be subject to the additional conditions set
out in the Council’s STL Conditions Framework.

The fee for temporary licence applications can be found here (will be
added once determined by the Regulatory Committee)

Temporary Exemptions

4.24

4.25

4.26

As per paragraph 1A of Schedule 1 of the 1982 Act, the Council can
grant a temporary exemption to the requirement to have a STL licence.
Under the terms of the 1982 Act, temporary exemptions can be issued
for a specified single continuous period not exceeding 6 weeks in any
period of 12 months. The 6 weeks limit on a licence is a maximum, and
not a default.

The Council may grant temporary exemptions to the requirement to
obtain a STL licence in certain circumstances as set out below:

a. During Edinburgh Festival Fringe and Edinburgh International
Festival

b. During Edinburgh’s Christmas & Hogmanay Festive Period

For Major Sporting Events

d. For Major International Events

o

Temporary Exemptions will be issued for the following types of let:

a. Home Letting;

Page 94



4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

b. Home Sharing;
c. Home Letting and Home Sharing; and
d. Secondary Letting

The licensing service will aim to process and determine a temporary
exemption application within 3 months of the application being received.

Any temporary exemption which is issued will be subject to the
mandatory conditions of licence, as set out in the 1982 Act.

Temporary exemptions will also be subject to the additional licence
conditions set out in the Council’'s STL Conditions Framework at
appendix two.

The fee for a temporary exemption application can be found here (link to
be provided in due course)

Accommodation Inspections

431

Inspections of STL accommodation, as part of the application process,
will be undertaken on a risk-based approach.

Making an Objection or Representation

4.32

4.33

4.34

It is possible for any person to submit an objection or representation in
respect of the grant of an application for a full STL licence. Objections
must be made in writing (emails are accepted) and sent to the Licensing
Service (licensing@edinburgh.gov.uk) within 28 days of the application
being advertised. If an objection is lodged out with this period, it must
explain why it has been lodged late. It would then be a matter for the
Council to consider the explanation and if it is satisfied that there is
sufficient reason why the objection was not made in the time required.

The 1982 Act does not provide for objections or representations in
respect of temporary licence applications or temporary exemption
applications.

To be considered as competent, objections or representations should
include the following information:

a. The name and address of the person or organisation making the
objection or representation

b. The accommodation to which the objection or representation relates

c. The grounds of objection or representation, and

Page 95


mailto:licensing@edinburgh.gov.uk

d. The objection or representation must be signed by the objector, or on
their behalf

Determining an Application

435 Each STL application will be considered on its own merits having regard

to the terms of the relevant statutory provisions, Scottish Government
guidance and this policy. The process by which an application is
determined will be in accordance with the Council’s Committee terms of
reference and the scheme of delegation.

Timescale for Determining Applications

4.36

4.37

Under the terms of the 1982 Act, the Council has 9 months in which to
determine a STL application from the date it is received with all the
required documentation.

For those applications which were received prior to 1 April 2023 where
the STL operated prior to 1 October 2022, the Council will have 12
months to determine the application.

Material Change in Circumstances

4.38

The licence holder must notify the Council in writing, as soon as is
reasonable, where there is a material change in circumstances affecting
the licence holder or the STL accommodation.

Compliance & Enforcement

4.39

4.40

441

4.42

The Council will seek to work with hosts, residents and other interested
parties to ensure compliance with legislative requirements and to be
satisfied the accommodation is safe for use.

General enforcement costs will be included in the fees for new and
renewal STL licence applications. The Council will charge a separate fee
to a licence holder for a visit to their accommodation, where the visit
results from their failure to comply with licence conditions or a complaint
relating to the accommodation. The Council notes the Scottish
Government guidance on frivolous or vexatious complaints in this regard.

Where complaints are received in relation to the operation of a licensed
STL accommodation, the Council will seek to resolve it through
engagement with the host or operator in the first instance.

Information on how to make a complaint in against a STL licence holder

or in respect of the operation of the licenced STL can be found on the
Licensing Service website.

Page 96



4.43

4.44

4.45

Where appropriate other enforcement options will be considered, which

include:

a. Additional licence conditions applied on determination of an
application or through variation of an existing licence;

b. Compliance notices;

Variation, suspension or revocation of licence; or

d. Report to the Procurator Fiscal of any alleged offences under the
1982 Act.

o

A fee will be charged for an inspection following a complaint, where it is
found that there are also compliance issues, whether or not those are the
issues that were the subject of the complaint.

Where a fee is charged for inspections, the Council will produce a report
of its findings to the host or operator within 28 days of the inspection.

Conditions

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

The Council can grant or renew a STL licence on such terms and
conditions as it considers appropriate. This will typically take the form of
the mandatory conditions, applicable to all STL accommodation by way of
the 2022 Order, as well as the additional conditions agreed by the
Council’'s Regulatory Committee on (to be inserted after Committee
approval).

Under the 2022 Order, there are specific conditions which the Council
must attach to all types of STL licence. These are known as the
“‘mandatory conditions” and are found at appendix one of this policy. It
should be noted that the Council has no power to amend these mandatory
conditions.

The 2022 Order affords the Council the power to set certain conditions,
where necessary, which can address any local concerns or issues. These
are known as “additional conditions”. These conditions are found at
appendix two and shall apply to every full licence granted, varied or
renewed by the Council, unless they have been expressly excluded or
varied. The additional conditions shall also apply to every temporary
licence or temporary exemption granted or varied by the Council.

It is an offence to operate a STL without a licence or contravene a

condition of any granted licence. Licence holders alleged to be breaching
the conditions of their licence may be referred to the Licensing Sub-

Page 97



Committee for consideration of suspension or revocation of the STL
licence.

Review

6.1  This policy will be reviewed every three years or more frequently, if required

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Mandatory Conditions

Agents
1. Only those named as a holder of the licence can carry out the day to day

management of the short-term let of the premises.

Type of licence
2. The holder of the licence may only offer the type of short-term let for which the
licence has been granted.

Fire safety
3. The holder of the licence must ensure the premises has satisfactory equipment

installed for detecting, and for giving warning of— (@) fire or suspected fire, and (b) the
presence of carbon monoxide in a concentration that is hazardous to health.

4. The holder of the licence must keep records showing that all upholstered furnishings
and mattresses within the parts of the premises which are for guest use, or to which
the guests are otherwise permitted to have access, comply with the Furniture and
Furnishings (Fire Safety) Regulations 1988.

Gas safety
5. Where the premises has a gas supply—

(a) the holder of the licence must arrange for an annual gas safety inspection of all
gas pipes, flues and appliances in the premises,

(b) if, after an annual inspection, any appliance does not meet the required safety
standard, the holder of the licence must not allow a short-term let of the premises until
the works necessary to bring the appliance to the required safety standard have been
carried out.

Electrical Safety

6. Where there are electrical fittings or items within the parts of the premises which
are for guest use, or to which the guests are permitted to have access, the holder of
the licence must— (a) ensure that any electrical fittings and items are in— (i) a
reasonable state of repair, and (ii) proper and safe working order, (b) arrange for an

Page 98



electrical safety inspection to be carried out by a competent person at least every five
years or more frequently if directed by the competent person, (c) ensure that, following
an electrical safety inspection, the competent person produces an Electrical
Installation Condition Report on any fixed installations, (d) arrange for a competent
person to— (i) produce a Portable Appliance Testing Report on moveable appliances
to which a guest has access, and (ii) date label and sign all moveable appliances which
have been inspected.

7. In determining who is competent, the holder of the licence must have regard to
guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers under section 19B(4) of the Housing
(Scotland) Act 2006.

Water Safety: Private Water Supplies

8. Where the premises are served by a private water supply, the licence holder must
comply with the requirements on the owners of private dwellings set out in the Water
Intended for Human Consumption (Private Supplies) (Scotland) Regulations 2017.

Water Safety: Legionella

9. The holder of the licence must assess the risk from exposure to legionella within the
premises, whether or not the premises are served by a private water supply.

Safety and Repair Standards

10. (1) The holder of the licence must take all reasonable steps to ensure the premises
are safe for residential use.

(2) Where the premises are subject to the requirements of Chapter 4 of Part 1 of the
Housing (Scotland) Act 2006, the holder of the licence must ensure that the premises
meet the repairing standard.

Maximum Occupancy
11. The licence holder must ensure that the number of guests residing on the premises
does not exceed the number specified in the licence.

Information to be Displayed

12. The holder of the licence must make the following information available within the
premises in a place where it is accessible to all guests—

(a) a certified copy of the licence and the licence conditions,

(b) fire, gas and electrical safety information,

(c) details of how to summon the assistance of emergency services,

(d) a copy of the gas safety report,

(e) a copy of the Electrical Installation Condition Report, and

(f) a copy of the Portable Appliance Testing Report.

Planning Permission

13. Where the premises is in a short-term let control area for the purposes of section
26B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 19971 ("the 1997 Act"), the
holder of the licence must, where the use of the premises for a short-term let requires
planning permission under the 1997 Act, ensure that either—

(a) an application has been made for planning permission under the 1997 Act and has
not yet been determined, or

(b) planning permission under the 1997 Act is in force.

Page 99



Listings

14. (1) The holder of the licence must ensure that any listing or advert (whether
electronic or otherwise) for the short-term let of the premises includes—

(a) the licence number, and

(b) a valid Energy Performance Certificate rating if an Energy Performance Certificate
is required for the premises, in accordance with the Energy Performance of Buildings
(Scotland) Regulations 2008.

(2) The holder of the licence must ensure that any listing or advert (whether electronic
or otherwise) for the short-term let of the premises is consistent with the terms of the
short-term let licence.

Insurance

15. The holder of the licence must ensure that there is in place for the premises—
(a) valid buildings insurance for the duration of the licence, and

(b) valid public liability insurance for the duration of each short-term let agreement.

Payment of Fees
16. The holder of the licence must pay any fees due to the licensing authority in respect
of the licence on demand.

False or Misleading Information
17. The holder of the licence must not provide any false or misleading information to
the licensing authority.

Interpretation for the Mandatory Conditions
In this schedule—

"Electrical Installation Condition Report" means a report containing the following
information—

(a) the date on which the inspection was carried out,

(b) the address of the premises inspected,

(c) the name, address and relevant qualifications of the person who carried out the
inspection,

(d) a description, and the location, of each installation, fixture, fitting and appliance
inspected,

(e) any defect identified,

(f) any action taken to remedy a defect,

"Energy Performance Certificate" means a certificate which complies with
regulation 6 of the Energy Performance of Buildings (Scotland) Regulations 2008,

"gas safety report" means a report containing the following information—

(a) the date on which the appliance or flue was checked,

(b) the address of the premises at which the appliance or flue is installed,

(c) a description of and the location of each appliance or flue checked,

(d) any safety defect identified,

(e) any remedial action taken,

(f) confirmation that the check undertaken complies with the requirements of an
examination of—

Page 100



(i) the effectiveness of any flue,

(if) the supply of combustion air,

(ii) subject to head

(iv), its operating pressure or heat input or, where necessary, both,

(iv) if it is not reasonably practicable to examine its operating pressure or heat input
(or, where necessary, both), its combustion performance,

(v) its operation so as to ensure its safe functioning,

(9) the name and signature of the individual carrying out the check, and

(h) the registration number with which that individual, or that individual's employer, is
registered with a body approved by the Health and Safety Executive for the purposes
of regulation 3(3) of the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998,

"holder of the licence" means any person to whom a short-term let licence has been
granted or jointly granted,

"home letting" means a short-term let consisting of the entering into of an agreement
for the use, while the host is absent, of accommodation which is, or is part of, the host's
only or principal home,

"home sharing” means a short-term let consisting of the entering into of an
agreement for the use, while the host is present, of accommodation which is, or is part
of, the host's only or principal home,

"premises"” means the accommodation which is the subject of an application for a
short-term licence or the subject of a short-term licence,

"repairing standard” means the steps which the holder of the licence is required to
take to comply with the obligations placed on the holder by Chapter 4 of Part 1 of the
Housing (Scotland) Act 20086,

"secondary letting" means a short-term let consisting of the entering into of an
agreement for the use of accommodation which is not, or is not part of, the licence
holder's only or principal home,

"short-term let" has the same meaning as in article 3 of the Civic Government
(Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of Short-term Lets) Order 2022,

"short-term let licence" means a licence for a short-term let, and

"type of short-term let" means one of the following purposes—
(a) secondary letting,

(b) home letting,

(c) home sharing, or

(d) home letting and home sharing.

Page 101



Appendix 2 — Additional Conditions

Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of Short
Term Lets) Order 2022 - Additional Short Term Let Licensing
Conditions

STL 1 The licence holder must ensure that advice to guests on action to be
taken in the event of an emergency is clearly and prominently
displayed within the accommodation.

STL 2 To secure and maintain public order and safety and to prevent

undue public nuisance, the licence holder must have in place, so far
as is reasonably practicable, arrangements, (such as the provision of
keys or other means of entry and egress) which at all times permits
the quiet and orderly entry to, and egress from, the licensed property
by any persons occupying the said property as a STL.

STL 3 The licence holder must make the licence, including any conditions,
available to guests within the accommodation where it can be
conveniently read.

STL 4  [The licence holder must take reasonable steps to manage the
accommodation in such a way as to prevent and deal effectively with
any anti-social behaviour by guests while in the STL or any shared
areas and while entering or leaving the accommodation or any shared
areas.

STL 5 The licence holder must take all reasonable steps to manage the
premises in such a way as to prevent undue nuisance to neighbours.
The licence holder must have due regard to the privacy and security
of neighbours.

The licence holder must ensure:

e Any particular rules applying to shared areas and entrances
are communicated to guests;

e Guests understand that shared doors should be quietly and
securely closed after use.

o

STL 6  |An emergency contact telephone number for the licence holder

and/or management shall be available and notified to

the Council for 24-hour contact purposes for emergencies or

antisocial behaviour from the accommodation.

Page 102



STL 7

The licence holder shall give a neighbour notification to every other
household in the same building as the STL accommodation, and any
adjoining premises within 28 days of the licence holder’s receipt of
the licence document, and annually thereafter while the
accommodation is licensed as a STL. This will advise of the name of
the licence holder or managing agent, a contact address, day-time
telephone number and an emergency contact number.

STL 8

The licence holder shall ensure that adequate facilities are provided
for the storage and disposal of refuse, and recycling. The licence
holder shall be responsible for advising residents of the refuse
collection day and for making arrangements for the presentation of
bins for collection at the appropriate time and day.

STL 9

For secondary lets only, the licence holder must ensure that the
bedrooms living room and hallway in the premises are covered by a
suitable floor covering such as a carpet or similar floor covering.

Page 103




Appendix 6 — Mandatory Conditions of STL Licences

Mandatory Conditions
Agents

1. Only those named as a holder of the licence can carry out the day to day
management of the short-term let of the premises.

Type of licence

2. The holder of the licence may only offer the type of short-term let for which the
licence has been granted.

Fire safety

3. The holder of the licence must ensure the premises has satisfactory equipment
installed for detecting, and for giving warning of— (a) fire or suspected fire, and (b)
the presence of carbon monoxide in a concentration that is hazardous to health.

4. The holder of the licence must keep records showing that all upholstered
furnishings and mattresses within the parts of the premises which are for guest use,
or to which the guests are otherwise permitted to have access, comply with the
Furniture and Furnishings (Fire Safety) Regulations 1988.

Gas safety
5. Where the premises has a gas supply—

(a) the holder of the licence must arrange for an annual gas safety inspection of all
gas pipes, flues and appliances in the premises,

(b) if, after an annual inspection, any appliance does not meet the required safety
standard, the holder of the licence must not allow a short-term let of the premises
until the works necessary to bring the appliance to the required safety standard have
been carried out.

Electrical Safety

6. Where there are electrical fittings or items within the parts of the premises which
are for guest use, or to which the guests are permitted to have access, the holder of
the licence must— (a) ensure that any electrical fittings and items are in— (i) a
reasonable state of repair, and (ii) proper and safe working order, (b) arrange for an

Page 104



electrical safety inspection to be carried out by a competent person at least every
five years or more frequently if directed by the competent person, (c) ensure that,
following an electrical safety inspection, the competent person produces an Electrical
Installation Condition Report on any fixed installations, (d) arrange for a competent
person to— (i) produce a Portable Appliance Testing Report on moveable
appliances to which a guest has access, and (ii) date label and sign all moveable
appliances which have been inspected.

7. In determining who is competent, the holder of the licence must have regard to
guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers under section 19B(4) of the Housing
(Scotland) Act 2006.

Water Safety: Private Water Supplies

8. Where the premises are served by a private water supply, the licence holder must
comply with the requirements on the owners of private dwellings set out in the Water
Intended for Human Consumption (Private Supplies) (Scotland) Regulations 2017.

Water Safety: Legionella

9. The holder of the licence must assess the risk from exposure to legionella within
the premises, whether or not the premises are served by a private water supply.

Safety and Repair Standards

10. (1) The holder of the licence must take all reasonable steps to ensure the
premises are safe for residential use.

(2) Where the premises are subject to the requirements of Chapter 4 of Part 1 of the
Housing (Scotland) Act 2006, the holder of the licence must ensure that the
premises meet the repairing standard.

Maximum Occupancy

11. The licence holder must ensure that the number of guests residing on the
premises does not exceed the number specified in the licence.

Information to be Displayed

12. The holder of the licence must make the following information available within the
premises in a place where it is accessible to all guests—

(a) a certified copy of the licence and the licence conditions,

Page 105



(b) fire, gas and electrical safety information,

(c) details of how to summon the assistance of emergency services,
(d) a copy of the gas safety report,

(e) a copy of the Electrical Installation Condition Report, and

(f) a copy of the Portable Appliance Testing Report.

Planning Permission

13. Where the premises is in a short-term let control area for the purposes of section
26B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 19971 ("the 1997 Act"), the
holder of the licence must, where the use of the premises for a short-term let
requires planning permission under the 1997 Act, ensure that either—

(a) an application has been made for planning permission under the 1997 Act and
has not yet been determined, or

(b) planning permission under the 1997 Act is in force.

Listings

14. (1) The holder of the licence must ensure that any listing or advert (whether
electronic or otherwise) for the short-term let of the premises includes—

(a) the licence number, and

(b) a valid Energy Performance Certificate rating if an Energy Performance
Certificate is required for the premises, in accordance with the Energy Performance
of Buildings (Scotland) Regulations 2008.

(2) The holder of the licence must ensure that any listing or advert (whether
electronic or otherwise) for the short-term let of the premises is consistent with the
terms of the short-term let licence.

Insurance
15. The holder of the licence must ensure that there is in place for the premises—
(a) valid buildings insurance for the duration of the licence, and

(b) valid public liability insurance for the duration of each short-term let agreement.

Payment of Fees

16. The holder of the licence must pay any fees due to the licensing authority in
respect of the licence on demand.

Page 106



False or Misleading Information

17. The holder of the licence must not provide any false or misleading information to
the licensing authority.

Interpretation for the Mandatory Conditions

In this schedule—

"Electrical Installation Condition Report" means a report containing the following
information—

(a) the date on which the inspection was carried out,
(b) the address of the premises inspected,

(c) the name, address and relevant qualifications of the person who carried out the
inspection,

(d) a description, and the location, of each installation, fixture, fitting and appliance
inspected,

(e) any defect identified,

(f) any action taken to remedy a defect,

"Energy Performance Cetrtificate” means a certificate which complies with regulation
6 of the Energy Performance of Buildings (Scotland) Regulations 2008 ,

"gas safety report” means a report containing the following information—
(a) the date on which the appliance or flue was checked,

(b) the address of the premises at which the appliance or flue is installed,
(c) a description of and the location of each appliance or flue checked,
(d) any safety defect identified,

(e) any remedial action taken,

(f) confirmation that the check undertaken complies with the requirements of an
examination of—

(i) the effectiveness of any flue,

(i) the supply of combustion air,

Page 107



(iii) subject to head
(iv), its operating pressure or heat input or, where necessary, both,

(iv) if it is not reasonably practicable to examine its operating pressure or heat input
(or, where necessary, both), its combustion performance,

(v) its operation so as to ensure its safe functioning,
(g) the name and signature of the individual carrying out the check, and

(h) the registration number with which that individual, or that individual's employer, is
registered with a body approved by the Health and Safety Executive for the purposes
of regulation 3(3) of the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998,

"holder of the licence" means any person to whom a short-term let licence has been
granted or jointly granted,

"home letting" means a short-term let consisting of the entering into of an agreement
for the use, while the host is absent, of accommodation which is, or is part of, the
host's only or principal home,

"home sharing” means a short-term let consisting of the entering into of an
agreement for the use, while the host is present, of accommodation which is, or is
part of, the host's only or principal home,

"premises"” means the accommodation which is the subject of an application for a
short-term licence or the subject of a short-term licence,

“repairing standard” means the steps which the holder of the licence is required to
take to comply with the obligations placed on the holder by Chapter 4 of Part 1 of the
Housing (Scotland) Act 2006,

"secondary letting" means a short-term let consisting of the entering into of an
agreement for the use of accommodation which is not, or is not part of, the licence
holder's only or principal home,

"short-term let" has the same meaning as in article 3 of the Civic Government
(Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of Short-term Lets) Order 2022,

Page 108



"short-term let licence" means a licence for a short-term let, and

"type of short-term let" means one of the following purposes—
(a) secondary letting,
(b) home letting,
(c) home sharing, or
)

(d) home letting and home sharing.

Page 109



Appendix 7 — Proposed Application Fees

Type of Licence

New (1 Year)

Renewal (3 Years)

Home Sharing

£120 per occupant

£360 per occupant

Home Letting

£120 per occupant

£360 per occupant

Home Sharing & Home
Letting

£120 per occupant

£360 per occupant

Secondary Letting (Maximum

New/Renewal (1 Year)

Occupancy)
1-3 £653
4-5 £1,089
6-10 £2,481
11-15 £3,872
16-20 £5,264
21 and over £5,869
Temporary Licence (Maximum Fee
Occupancy
1-5 £250
6-10 £350
11 and over £600
Temporary Exemption (Maximum Fee
Occupancy
1-5 £250
6-10 £350
11 and over £600

| Property with HMO licence in place | £120

Page 110




Appendix 8 — Integrated Impact Assessment

Integrated Impact Assessment

Summary Report Template

Each of the numbered sections below must be completed

Interim report Final report X (Tick as appropriate)

1. Title of proposal
City of Edinburgh Council Short Term Lets Licensing Policy
2. What will change as a result of this proposal?

On March 2022, the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of Short Term
Lets) Order 2022 (the 2022 Order) was enacted to introduce new powers for local
authorities to regulate short term lets through the introduction of a licensing scheme
under the provisions of the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (the 1982 Act).

As a result of the introduction of this mandatory legislation, all short term lets will
require to be licensed. The licensing scheme includes a new mandatory safety
requirement that will cover every type of short term let to ensure a safe, quality
experience for visitors. It will also include a ‘fit and proper’ person test to assess
whether the applicant is suitable to hold such a licence, as with all other types of
licensable activities under the 1982 Act. The Council also has the discretion to apply
further appropriate conditions to address any local concerns. Some operators will
also be required to demonstrate that they have planning permission in order to be
considered for a licence.

3. Briefly describe public involvement in this proposal to date and planned
The Council has engaged in public consultation throughout the process of
developing a licensing policy for short term lets. On 31 March 2022, the Regulatory

Committee instructed officers to carry out a two-stage consultation exercise on this
issue.

Page 111



An initial consultation was carried out from 15 April to 10 June 2022, in order to gain
a broader understanding of community and business views in relation to what a short
term let licensing policy should include and whether the Council should adopt any
discretionary powers. 1902 responses were received.

Following consideration of those responses, a draft statement of licensing policy was
developed. Subsequently, a second round of public consultation was carried out
between 25 July and 5 September 2022 to seek views on the draft policy. This round
of consultation received 1039 responses.

Both rounds of consultation were advertised on the Council’s website and Twitter
accounts. Furthermore, key stakeholders including trade bodies, online
accommodation platforms, community council’s and House of Multiple Occupancy
licence holders and agents were contacted directly or through the Scottish
Government’s Short Term Lets Working Group, to inform them of the proposed
policy and related consultations.

4. Is the proposal considered strategic under the Fairer Scotland Duty?
No.

5. Date of lIA

20 September 2022

Who was present at the IIA? Identify facilitator, lead officer, report writer and
any employee representative present and main stakeholder (e.g. Council, NHS)

Name Job Title Date of lIA
training

Christopher McKee Regulatory Team Leader

Co-facilitator Facilitator

Lead officer Lead officer

Report Writer Report Writer

Catherine Scanlin Licensing Manager

Jackie Mcinnes Senior Planning Officer 25 April 2018

Co-facilitator 3 May 2018
20 June 2018
5 September 2018
8 November 2018
9 March 2022

Page 112



Gordon Hunter

Regulatory Officer

2015

Morag Leck

Principal Solicitor -
Licensing

15 November
2018

Page 113




7. Evidence available at the time of the IIA

Evidence

Available - detail
source

Comments: what does the
evidence tell you with regard to
different groups who may be
affected and to the
environmental impacts of your
proposal

Data on populations
in need

Yes

¢ Consultation
Responses

The consultation responses gave
data on respondents ethnic group
or background, sexual orientation,
age, national identity, gender,
religion, religious denomination or
body

Data on service
uptake/access

Yes

¢ Consultation
Responses

Information on the service
uptake/access to STL
accommodation, through online
platforms, could be considered
commercially sensitive and
therefore the Council has not been
able to access this information.
However, the consultation process
has resulted in information being
received from the following groups:
Customers

STL Operators

STL Online Booking Platforms
Tourism Trade Bodies

Neighbours / Residents
Community Councils

Data on socio-
economic
disadvantage e.g. low
income, low wealth,
material deprivation,
area deprivation.

Yes

e Consultation
Responses

Information received during the
consultation process from STL
operators, STL online platforms,
and Tourism bodies stated that by
introducing a licensing policy which
restricts STL accommodation from
operating would result in a loss of
income for a number of people,
including operators, business which
serve STLs such as cleaners, and
the wider tourism economy in
Edinburgh as a whole. This would
create a socio-economic

Page 114




Evidence

Available - detail

Comments: what does the

source evidence tell you with regard to
different groups who may be
affected and to the
environmental impacts of your
proposal
disadvantage for those groups and
any dependents.
Data on equality Yes Women may be more likely to be
outcomes e Equal involved in short-term letting than

Opportunities: | men.

Impact of

Short-Term | Those employed in the tourism and

Regulations | re|ated services may be adversely

on Women — | aftected economically by a

ASSC licensing scheme being introduced

¢ Ezrg?t?“)ngelf- A number of small, local

catering in busipgsses serve the_STL ianstw.

Scotland: the Families and those with specific

economic needs are key users of STLs.

impact of

Short-term

letting on the

Scottish

Economy.

Association of

Scotland’s

Self Caterers

Research/literature
evidence

Yes

Rettie & Co —
Analysis of
the Impact of
the Edinburgh
Short Term
Rental Market
— 16 July
2018

The City of
Edinburgh
Council’s
Response to

The Business and Regulatory
Impact Assessment, prepared by
the Scottish Government in relation
to the introduction of a STL
licensing scheme, identifies a range
of benefits and costs to a wide
range of groups.

Reports prepared by the Scottish
Government highlights issues with
STLs. This includes impacts on:
o Affordability and availability
of housing;

Page 115




Evidence

Available - detail
source

Comments: what does the
evidence tell you with regard to
different groups who may be
affected and to the
environmental impacts of your
proposal

the Scottish
Government’s
Consultation
on Short
Term Lets —
2019.

Short term
lets: licensing
scheme and
planning
control area
legislation
Business and
Regulatory
Impact
Assessment
(BRIA),
Scottish
Government,
November
2021.

Consultation
Responses

Short Term
Lets Impacts
on
Communities,
Scottish
Government,
October
2019.

Report to
Corporate
Policy and
Strategy
Committee, 7
August 2018,

Short Term

e Residential amenity as a
result of anti-social
behaviour, noise and other
nuisance;

An equalities impact assessment
was carried out as part of the
Scottish Government’s consultation
report in 2020

which stated there are no
potentially negative impacts to
equality groups as a result of the
introduction of a STL licensing
scheme.

Some consultation responses have
referred the Committee to existing
research and literature on a range
of issues including, but not limited
to, the following:

e Impact of STL licensing
scheme on local businesses
and wider tourist economy.

e Impact of self-catering sector
to the Scottish economy.

e Impact of STL sector on
communities

The titles and links to the above
research and literature are included
in the responses to the
consultation.

Page 116




Evidence

Available - detail
source

Comments: what does the
evidence tell you with regard to
different groups who may be
affected and to the
environmental impacts of your
proposal

Letting in
Edinburgh

e Consultation
Report on
Proposals for
a Licensing
Scheme and
Planning
Control Areas
for short-term
lets in
Scotland —
Scottish
Government
— December
2020.

e Report to
Planning
Committee,
23 February
2022 — Short-
Term Let
Area of
Control
Designation.

Public/patient/client
experience
information

Yes

Evidence of inclusive
engagement of
people who use the
service and
involvement findings

Yes

During the public consultation
exercises, information has been
provided from those who work in
the STL trade, including operators
and trade organisations, and those
who have identified themselves as
customers/users of STL
accommodation.

To encourage participation, the
public consultations were open to
all interested parties to contribute.

Page 117




Evidence

Available - detail
source

Comments: what does the
evidence tell you with regard to
different groups who may be
affected and to the
environmental impacts of your
proposal

Two separate rounds of public
consultation were held, totalling 14
weeks, in order to provide a
detailed and robust evidence base
from which to inform any decision
making.

Evidence of unmet No The consultation process did not

need produce evidence of significant
unmet demand for STL
accommodation.
However, some responses
highlighted that during certain
periods of the year, there is
significant demand for STL
properties.

Good practice Yes In forming a STL licensing policy,

guidelines the Council has referred closely to
the Scottish Government’s
guidance for ‘Short Term Lets in
Scotland Licensing Scheme’.
Some respondents to the
consultation process also
highlighted existing good practice
guides which are used by some
within the STL sector already.

Carbon emissions No

generated/reduced

data

Environmental data No

Risk from cumulative | No

impacts

Other (please The approach and decisions of

specify) other Scottish local authorities in

relation to implementing a STL

Page 118




Evidence Available — detail Comments: what does the
source evidence tell you with regard to
different groups who may be
affected and to the
environmental impacts of your
proposal

licensing policy, were considered
as part of this process.

Additional evidence No No
required

8. In summary, what impacts were identified and which groups will they
affect?

Equality, Health and Wellbeing and Human Rights Affected populations
Positive All groups

The introduction of a licensing scheme and licensing
policy specific to Edinburgh, will bring all
accommodation used for short-term letting into the
licensing system. This will allow all groups to participate
in the licensing process.

The introduction of a licensing scheme and associated
policy for STLs will help to improve the safety of STL
accommodation through mandatory and additional
licence conditions framework.

The STL licensing scheme and licensing policy will
provide a transparent decision-making process and
improve the feeling of control over what happens in
local communities.

The STL licensing scheme and licensing policy may
lead to an overall reduction in the number of STL
accommodation. This may have a positive impact by
increasing housing availability and may make housing
more affordable.

May improve feelings of community and personal safety
(e.g., unknown and frequently changing occupants,
noise and anti-social behaviour) through knowledge that

Page 119



appropriate scrutiny of STL accommodation has taken
place through licence application process.

Would allow the approved licensing policy to be applied
in order to determine the appropriateness of STL
accommodation

Some groups may experience a more pleasant
residential environment through regulation of STL
accommodation

The introduction of a STL licensing scheme may
improve access to the housing market for some people
or groups if the total number of STL properties is
reduced.

Negative

Requirement to engage in the licensing process may be
seen as a barrier to some people or groups.

The introduction of a STL licensing scheme and policy
could lead to a financial impact on operators, hosts and
those persons/groups or businesses which service the
STL sector.

The introduction of a STL licensing scheme and policy
could have a negative impact on people’s ability to use
their property in a particular manner.

The introduction of a STL licensing scheme and
licensing policy could lead to a reduction in the number
of STL accommodation in Edinburgh. This could
negatively impact the requirement for certain services,
such as cleaning and laundry services, thus affecting
local employment and well-being.

Environment and Sustainability including climate
change emissions and impacts

Positive
If the introduction of a STL licensing scheme and

associated licensing policy leads to an overall reduction
in the number of STL accommodation, this may result in

Affected populations

All groups

Page 120




less travel to Edinburgh by air, road or other means of
transport, thus reducing carbon emissions.

The introduction of a STL licensing scheme and
associated policy may have a positive impact on noise
pollution and other disturbances as a result of the STL
licence conditions framework.

The introduction of a STL licensing scheme and policy
may have a positive impact on residential amenity as it
would require STL premises to have adequate facilities
for the storage and disposal of refuge.

Negative

The licensing scheme and associated policy may push
STL accommodation out with the Council area, thus
increasing the amount of travel to and from the city.
This could lead to an increase in carbon emissions.

The licensing scheme and associated policy may
impact on the quality of housing and appearance of
areas if operators or hosts are no longer generating
income from STL use, thus creating a lack of incentive
for them to maintain the accommodation.

The licensing scheme and associated policy may result
in properties becoming vacant due to operators not
being successful in obtaining a STL licence.

Economic
Positive

If the introduction of a STL licensing scheme and
associated licensing policy leads to an overall reduction
in the number of STL accommodation in Edinburgh, this
could lead to operators being able to charge more for
their STL accommodation due to higher demand.

A reduction in visitor numbers to the city may lead to
some services and resources being more focused on
meeting the needs of residents in the city.

Affected populations

All groups

Page 121




The requirement to obtain a licence could lead to an
increase in demand for licensing consultancy services.

The introduction of a STL licensing scheme and policy
may give visitors confidence that STL accommodation
is regulated to an appropriate standard and lead to
increased visitors to the city.

Negative

If the introduction of a STL licensing scheme and
associated licensing policy leads to an overall reduction
in the number of STL accommodation in Edinburgh, this
could lead to higher costs for visitors. This could lead to
a decrease in the number of tourists and visitors to
Edinburgh.

A reduction in the number of STL accommodation, as a
result of the STL licensing policy, could have an impact
on businesses which serve the STL sector. E.g.,
cleaning and laundry services.

A reduction in the number of STL accommodation, as a
result of the STL licensing policy, has the potential to
negatively impact the tourism economy (including
restaurants, theatres, licensed premises, gig economy
venues etc) in Edinburgh. A reduction in numbers of
visitors to Edinburgh may affect employment
opportunities for residents and create a socio-economic
disadvantage, which would not only impact on the
worker and any other staff but also any family members
who are dependent upon their income. The continuing
increases to the cost of living (e.g. fuel, food & energy
costs), at the time of writing, was also noted and that
any loss of income would exacerbate any cost
increases for those affected.

As a result of the licensing scheme and associated
policy, existing operators of STL accommodation may
have to make significant changes to their property and
operation, resulting in high financial costs.

As a result of the licensing scheme and associated
policy, STL businesses may be forced to close. This
would lead to a loss of income for operators, employees
and those who service the industry.

Page 122




If a STL licensing scheme and associated licensing
policy places restrictions on operators ability to trade, it
may affect their ability to earn income through use of
their property as a STL. This would create a socio-
economic disadvantage.

If a STL licensing system and associated policy results
in an overall reduction of STL properties, this could
result in a fall in demand for licensing consultancy
services.

If a STL operator is unable to obtain a STL licence, this
could have a negative effect on the terms of the
mortgage arrangements for their property.

9. Is any part of this policy/ service to be carried out wholly or partly by
contractors and if so how will equality, human rights including children’s
rights, environmental and sustainability issues be addressed?

No

10. Consider how you will communicate information about this policy/ service
change to children and young people and those affected by sensory
impairment, speech impairment, low level literacy or numeracy, learning
difficulties or English as a second language? Please provide a summary of
the communications plan.

The Licensing Service currently deals with customers from a range of backgrounds.
This includes those affected by sensory impairment, speech impairment, low level
literacy or numeracy, learning difficulties or English as a second language.

As set out in the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of Short-term
Lets) Order 2022, the Council must introduce a licensing scheme for STLs from 1
October 2022. When the Regulatory Committee agree the STL policy, the licensing
service will communicate this in a number of ways. All respondents to the
consultation who indicated that they would be happy to contacted again in relation to
STLs, will be written to in order to inform them of the decision along with information
on the agreed STL licensing policy, conditions framework and any other appropriate
information. Furthermore, the Committee’s decision will be communicated using the
Council’s and Licensing Service’s social media accounts in addition to updates being
placed on the Council’s website. The Licensing Service will also include information

Page 123



of the Committee’s decision to those who have signed up for regular email updates
in relation to STL licensing. The decision will also be communicated to Community
Councils and other stakeholders such trade or tourism organisations, community
groups and online booking platforms.

Where customers require further support to access information in respect of STL
licensing, the licensing service will make the necessary reasonable adjustments to
cater for this. For example, translators can be provided for those customers whose
primary language is not English and who have difficulty understanding this
information.

11. Is the plan, programme, strategy or policy likely to result in significant
environmental effects, either positive or negative? If yes, it is likely that a
Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) will be required and the impacts
identified in the 1A should be included in this. See section 2.10 in the Guidance
for further information.

No.

12. Additional Information and Evidence Required
If further evidence is required, please note how it will be gathered. If
appropriate, mark this report as interim and submit updated final report once
further evidence has been gathered.

At this stage, it has not been established that any additional information of
evidence is required. Should the Regulatory Committee request further
information, this will be provided.

13. Specific to this IIA only, what recommended actions have been, or will be,
undertaken and by when? (these should be drawn from 7 — 11 above)
Please complete:

Specific actions (as a result of | Who will take Deadline for | Review
the llIA which may include them forward progressing | date
financial implications, (name and job

mitigating actions and risks of | title
cumulative impacts)

Include a copy of this llIA in the Chris McKee, 29
Regulatory Committee Report Regulatory Team September
due to be considered on Leader 2022

Page 124


https://www.gov.scot/policies/environmental-assessment/strategic-environmental-assessment-sea/

Specific actions (as a result of | Who will take Deadline for | Review
the llIA which may include them forward progressing | date
financial implications, (name and job
mitigating actions and risks of | title
cumulative impacts)

14. Are there any negative impacts in section 8 for which there are no
identified mitigating actions?

No

15. How will you monitor how this proposal affects different groups,
including people with protected characteristics?

It is proposed that the STL licensing policy is reviewed annually, or more frequently,
should circumstances require it. A review of the IIA and how the policy is affecting
different groups, including those with protected characteristics, will form part of that
work

16.  Sign off by Head of Service

Name

Date

17. Publication

Completed and signed lIAs should be sent to:

integratedimpactassessments@edinburgh.gov.uk to be published on the Council

website www.edinburgh.gov.uk/impactassessments

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board/Health and Social Care

sarah.bryson@edinburgh.gov.uk to be published at www.edinburghhsc.scot/the-

ijb/integrated-impact-assessments/

Page 125


mailto:integratedimpactassessments@edinburgh.gov.uk
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/impactassessments
mailto:sarah.bryson@edinburgh.gov.uk
http://www.edinburghhsc.scot/the-ijb/integrated-impact-assessments/
http://www.edinburghhsc.scot/the-ijb/integrated-impact-assessments/

Appendix 9 - Written Response to Second Consultation - Association of Scotland's Se;f Caterers

ASSC

ASSC Submission to City of Edinburgh Council Short Term Lets 2022 — Consultation 2

Founded in 1978, the Association of Scotland’s Self-Caterers (ASSC) are the leading source of
knowledge on short-term letting and holiday homes in Scotland and are the only trade body
representing the interests of the traditional self-catering sector. We represent over 1,400
members, operating tens of thousands of self-catering properties throughout Scotland, from city
centre apartments to rural cottages, to lodges and chalets, to castles. The ASSC commits its
members to maintaining the principles of “quality, integrity, cleanliness, comfort, courtesy and
efficiency” and to offering visitors to Scotland consistently high standards within their self-
catering properties.

Introduction

The Association of Scotland’s Self-Caterers (ASSC) welcomes the opportunity to respond to City of
Edinburgh Council’s second consultation on their short-term let licensing scheme. As the main trade
association for the self-catering sector in Scotland, the ASSC hopes that our expertise and insight can
help inform the approach taken by the Council. We have always strived to work collaboratively and
proactively with both local and national government stakeholders to ensure a balanced and
proportionate outcome for all. We wish to make clear that the ASSC is not averse to regulation; but
we do challenge policies that are pursued while lacking a firm evidence base which will damage the
livelihoods of our members, as is the case with this draft policy and consultation exercise.

If agreed, this proposed licensing policy will devastate the self-catering sector within the capital —a
vital source of alternative accommaodation for visitors to the city — and will have the effect of
jeopardising Edinburgh’s position as a Festival city and one which can host large events due to the
likely reduction in properties. It also puts at risk the substantial economic contribution made by the
self-catering industry, estimated at approximately £90m per annum by Frontline Consultants.! Given
the importance of ensuring a sustainable recovery for Scotland’s tourism industry, and the
significance of this measure for the livelihoods of our members, we would respectfully encourage
City of Edinburgh Council to rethink its approach and work as closely as possible with the sector and
to minimise the regulatory burden on small business.

Summary

We have incorporated our answers to the questions listed on the Council’s online portal into this
submission which also outlines our significant concerns with the proposed approach in the Draft
Short-Term Let Licensing Policy.

Overall, the ASSC maintains that:

e Edinburgh Council’s proposals amount to a de-facto ban on short-term lets despite assurances to
the contrary.

! Frontline Consultants, Economic Impact of Self-Catering Sector to the Scottish Economy (2021). See:
https://www.assc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Economic-Impact-Study%E2%80%93Scotland.pdf

Page 126



e The proposals will devastate the self-catering sector, a vital component of Scotland’s tourist
economy, and threatens the livelihoods of legitimate small business owners who have benefited
local economies for decades.

e Ifenacted in its present form, as aspects of the policy are ultra vires, this opens up the real
possibility of legal challenges to the Council.

e Thereis a presumption of bad practice in the short-term let industry in the draft document that
is unevidenced and there are multiple instances where the Council discriminates against
secondary letting compared to other types of short-term let.

e Many of the proposed additional conditions duplicate the mandatory conditions or existing
regulations and are unenforceable, burdening the licencing authority and individual operators
for no discernible benefit.

e The recovery of the tourism sector will be damaged by these plans, putting at risk the £90m per
annum boost that self-catering provides to the city.

e Edinburgh’s position as a Festival city will be jeopardised, as will its ability to host similarly large
events in the future.

ASSC Comments on City of Edinburgh Council Draft Short-Term Let Licensing Policy

STL Application Process

4.1

City of Edinburgh Council need to justify why they are only intending to grant one-year licenses to
secondary lets, when most other local authorities are proposing at least three-years for this type of
short-term let, with Glasgow City Council proposing five-years and North Ayrshire Council ten-years
respectively. Moreover, the reasoning behind the disparity in the length of a license between
secondary letting and other forms of short-term let — homesharing, homeletting, and homeletting
and homesharing (all three-years licenses) — ought to be explained by the Council.

4.2

A layout plan will necessitate an expensive piece of work by a contractor which will be another cost
on legitimate small businesses operating without issue for decades. This will be on top of the cost of
a licence fee, compliance with existing regulations, the mandatory and additional conditions, not to
mention other factors such as rising energy costs. Unless pertaining to maximum occupancy, there is
absolutely no need for a floor plan.

4.3f.

On the need for an Annual Emergency Lighting Certificate, City of Edinburgh Council provide no
explanation of why this is only required for secondary letting as opposed to other types of short-
term let. This is another inconsistency between different types of short-term let.

Notice of Application

4.7

The draft policy document does not set out the application fee for short-term let operators, nor does
it go into any level of detail in terms of the criteria in the processing of determining the fees. Other
local authorities, as part of their consultation process, have included estimated fees for stakeholders

Page 127



to comment on and the ASSC would argue that such figures, as well as an explanation behind the
criteria used, are absolutely integral to this exercise. Our industry cannot be expected to have any
confidence in the new system in their absence — how can we be expected to properly engage with
this consultation if we do not know the expected costs imposed on business? Moreover, it has been
impossible to set rates for future guests with an absence of knowing what licence fees should be.

Overall, the fees attached to short-term let licencing are meant to be based on the principle of cost
recovery — therefore, the ASSC believes that fees should not be set at a level greater than the
amount necessary to recover establishment and running costs. If a fee structure with costly,
disproportionately high fees is introduced at this critical time, this will reduce accommodation
capacity and will damage the industry at a time when we need to work towards a sustainable
recovery. Moreover, any fees proposed should be applicable to all types of short-term let — be it
secondary letting or homesharing — since licencing authorities will be assessing for the same
conditions.

We refer City of Edinburgh Council to Scottish Government guidance which highlights ways to keep
costs down, including: (a) economies of scale; (b) integrating service delivery with other housing and
licencing functions; (c) using online and digital verification where possible, for example through
photo and video evidence instead of a visit; and (d) taking a proportionate, risk-based approach to
checks and verification, for example in considering whether, when and how often visits to premises
are needed, especially in more remote and rural areas where the costs of such visits could be higher.

It is imperative that any fees are kept as low as possible given the environment many small
businesses find themselves in. In this regard, we wish to highlight our proposal which we believe
could assist with an efficient and cost-effective way of securing compliance with the Licencing Order.
The ASSC have worked in partnership with Quality in Tourism to promote a self-declaration model
with risk-based inspections by the licencing authority. Overall, this approach has four main
advantages:

e It minimises the work required by the licencing authority to set the system up and renew
licences;

e Allows the licencing authority to focus its inspection resources on a risk-based basis;

e Requires responsible behaviour and compliance by the operators; and

e Minimises the additional costs to operators (which will have to be absorbed as an additional
business cost and/or passed on to the very visitors we want to visit your area to boost our
economic recovery).

We understand that local authorities across the country are facing severe pressure on their
resources and we believe this system can go some way to help with the administrative challenges
associated with the licencing regulations. We would be delighted to meet with officials to discuss
this in further detail to see whether it would be appropriate for City of Edinburgh Council.

Page 128



Evidence of Operation as a STL before 1 October 2022

4.9

City of Edinburgh Council should outline what they mean by applicants being required to “certify”
that they have been operating a short-term let prior to 1% October 2022.

Temporary Licenses

4.11 & 4.12

There is no explanation provided as to why temporary licenses are deemed acceptable for home
letting, homesharing, and home letting and homesharing, compared to secondary letting. To uphold
the main principle of licensing — to ensure health and safety — there needs to be consistency
between all types of short-term let, otherwise this is severely undermined. This is another example
of the different treatment of secondary letting compared to other types of short-term let which
lacks reasoning.

Tenement / Shared Main Door Accommodation

4.16 & 4.17

The draft policy states that “tenemental accommodation, or those with a shared main door, are
suitable for secondary STL due to its character, location and risk of creating undue nuisance.” This is
yet another instance of the Council holding secondary letting to a different standard compared to
other types of short-term let. There is no real elaboration on why other types of short-term let may
be appropriate compared to secondary letting.

The ASSC strongly contend that this section is ultra vires, thereby opening up the possibility of legal
challenge. It is also beyond the scope of the licencing legislation and the policy intentions of the
Scottish Government. Licensing relates to the safety of an activity, whereas this is a planning
consideration. Furthermore, we firmly believe that both Options A and B would technically amount
to a de-facto ban on short-term letting within Edinburgh, contrary to assurances made by the
Council that this is not the case. We therefore strongly refute and reject Options A and B presented
by the Council in the draft policy and consultation.

In general, there is an important and crucial distinction between planning and licensing
considerations. Edinburgh Council’s draft policy states that “the key aims of licensing are the
preservation of public safety and order and the prevention of crime”, yet the policy drifts into
planning considerations, especially issues of use.

Overprovision / Cap on Numbers

On a related point, we note the recent comments made by the Leader of City of Edinburgh Council
Cllr Cammy Day regarding the possibility of a cap on numbers: “We will now progress implementing
the changes and the next step should be looking at whether we can apply a cap on numbers,
too.”?Additionally, Questions 4 and 5 in the Council’s licensing consultation relate to limitations on
the number of nights for which short-term lets could be used in each year.

2 Cllr Cammy Day quoted in Scottish Government, ‘Controlling short-term lets’, 01/08/22. See:
https://www.gov.scot/news/controlling-short-term-lets/

Page 129



First, as this relates to planning, capping numbers should not form part of the current consultation
relating to short-term let licensing. Second, the Council does not have the power to introduce such
measures on secondary letting so this should not be included in this consultation exercise on
licensing. Finally, it should be remembered that overprovision powers were withdrawn from the
Scottish Government’s licensing legislation in November 2021. This recognises that the
government’s objective with the regulations was about ensuring health and safety across all short-
term lets, not addressing housing issues. The Council should not be seeking means to reintroduce
this and instead focus on applying and enforcing the powers it already has at its disposal.

Temporary Exemptions

4.21

There is no explanation provided as to why temporary exemptions are deemed acceptable for home
letting, homesharing, and home letting and homesharing, compared to secondary letting. To uphold
the main principle of licensing — to ensure health and safety — there needs to be consistency
between all types of short-term let, otherwise this is severely undermined.

Accommodation Inspections

4.29

The Council should outline what they mean by a “risk-based approach” as well as the criteria for
inspection.

Compliance and Enforcement

4.38

What is a “general enforcement fee” and why is it needed? If this will be levied in addition to the
general license fee, this could quickly see costs mounting up for small business owners. While the
Council “notes Scottish Government guidance on frivolous or vexatious complaints”, this tilts the
balance towards community control of the entire process, with established businesses being at the
mercy of neighbourhood complaints.

Appendix 2 — Additional Conditions

We are extremely saddened that throughout the draft policy statement, there is a presumption of
bad practice against the short-term let industry, from issues such as anti-social behaviour to littering,
which we find incredibly disheartening and disappointing given the immense economic
opportunities the sector provides to the city, as well as the fact that many businesses in the area
have been a welcome part of the community for decades. Additionally, many of the additional
conditions are unenforceable and will merely burden the licencing authority when the Council’s
resources are already incredibly stretched. If City of Edinburgh Council cannot enforce these, it is
incompetent and leaves the Council open to judicial review. Many of the additional conditions are
part of the basic management of a property and could instead be delivered by a clear and robust
Code of Conduct, such as that devised by the ASSC.?

3 ASSC, Code of Conduct. See: https://www.assc.co.uk/policy/code-of-conduct/

Page 130



We disagree with the following proposed additional conditions:

STL1

This would appear to replicate the mandatory conditions.
STL2

This does not fit with the activity of self-catering.

STL3

This proposed condition is both unrealistic and unreasonable. With the arrival and departure times,
it is unfair to place the onus on operators on factors that are completely outwith their control, such
as delayed transportation. At the present time, due to difficulties faced by airport operators, as well
as industrial action on the railway network, many guests will arrive at their destination late due to no
fault of their own. Expecting licence holders to meet guests upon their arrival at the accommodation
shows a lack of understanding of how self-catering works. Self-catering is non-serviced
accommodation. A fuller definition of the activity is provided in our response to STL 5.

STL4

This has been drafted in a manner which would resemble a condition for a HMO, not short-term let
accommodation, and these are two completely different forms of activity and should be treated
accordingly.

STL5

This is unreasonable for two reasons. First, given the very nature of self-catering, operators cannot
be present at all times at their accommodation. At a basic level, self-catering provides non-serviced
accommodation which distinguishes it from other forms of tourist accommodation. A self-catering
property generally meets the following criteria: (1) a property that is available to rent by visitors on a
short-term basis for the purposes of a holiday or a short break; and (2) a self-contained unit with its
own cooking facilities, which may form part of a larger property, or be grouped with other units on
the same site. Second, owners cannot “prevent” the actions of individuals residing in their premises.
There is existing anti-social behaviour legislation which should be enforced should problems arise in
terms of short-term let accommodation.

Operators want harmonious relationships with neighbours and the local community —it is not in
their interest to allow any anti-social behaviour in their business. This is part of the basic
management of their property and there already is existing anti-social behaviour legislation that can
be utilised by councils to respond when complaints arise. For instance, the Antisocial Behaviour
Notices (Houses Used for Holiday Purposes) (Scotland) Order 2011 granted local authorities the
power to deal specifically with the problem of antisocial behaviour in properties let for holiday use.
However, this needs to be enforced, as the Cabinet Secretary for Housing Shona Robison MSP
stated: “We expect all relevant authorities to use the powers available to them to deal with antisocial

Page 131



behaviour”.# In addition to enforcing current regulations, this condition could easily be replaced by a
Code of Conduct for all short-term let operators in the city.

As an aside, this condition appears to recognise that anti-social behaviour is not limited to secondary
STLs but the Council ignores this for the purposes of the tenement restriction at 4.16 to 4.18 for
secondary letting only, which shows the inconsistent nature of this policy.

STL6

Prohibiting the use of keyboxes or other related devices is arbitrary. First, it should be recognised
that keyboxes are used for a variety of different purposes, not just to facilitate entry to a short-term
let — for example, they are readily utilised by carers. We would presume that City of Edinburgh
Council have no issue with keyboxes for this purpose but why should it be any different for short-
term lets? It is the same device affixed to a door used to enable entry.

Securing the agreement of all owners within a property will be near impossible to achieve.
Unanimity of agreement for any change to a property (e.g., repairs) is difficult to secure in other
contexts but would be especially so for keyboxes used by short-term let operators. We therefore ask
the following: will this become a general policy for all keyboxes within the local authority area, or do
the Council intend to solely discriminate against their use by short-term let operators?

Furthermore, City of Edinburgh Council need to take cognisance of how the pandemic has changed
the way operators interact with guests. There has been shift in consumer behaviour away from
traditional meet and greets between operator/guest towards information being shared
electronically and via apps. Indeed, due to specific Covid-19 legislation, it wasn’t always possible for
the two parties from different households to meet in-person — this is why many therefore chose to
use keyboxes to ensure guests could gain access to properties. Generally, the ASSC would encourage
its members to affix any keybox in a manner that is aesthetically appropriate as possible.

STL7

The language in this section states that the licence holder “must ensure”. While operators can and
will inform guests about rules applying to shared entrances/areas/doors, they cannot compel them
to comply.

On any additional conditions applying to noise and anti-social behaviour, which would cover both
STL5 and STL 7, there has to be a causal link to issues from those premises. Licencing authorities
cannot be allowed to set restrictions on premises where there is a perception there may be an

issue. Restrictions should not be put in place where there is potential or existing issues in the vicinity
of the premises unless it can be shown the issues occurring in the vicinity originated specifically from
the short term let premises.

4 Shona Robison MSP, in answer to Parliamentary Question S6W-03022, 01/10/21. See:
https://archive2021.parliament.scot/parliamentarybusiness/28877.aspx?SearchType=Advance&ReferenceNu
mbers=S6W-03022&ResultsPerPage=10

Page 132



STL8

This could be delivered by a Code of Conduct for short-term let operators rather than being an
additional condition.

STL9
The ASSC would appreciate further details as to why this condition is necessary.
STL10

The Council state the licence holder shall “ensure” — while operators can advise guests of refuse
collection day, they cannot compel them to comply. On a more practical point, we are dealing with
individuals in the city for a holiday and who will not wish to spend a large amount of time
familiarising themselves with waste management and recycling issues. Similarly, operators should of
course provide the necessary materials and advice in regard to waste disposal but expecting every
holidaymaker to follow this to the letter, especially when many may reside in areas with different
policies for recycling etc, is unreasonable.

There is no business incentive for self-caterers to rent out properties strewn with rubbish. Self-
caterers have provided well-maintained and clean environments for guests for decades and we
would like to see what evidence the Council holds to show that littering and waste disposal is a
specific problem of the self-catering industry compared to any other type of property. Finally, this
additional condition also raises the question of enforceability: how will the Council monitor
compliance?

STL11

Applying a condition that the licence holder must ensure that bedroomes, living room and hallway are
carpeted is disproportionate and is yet another cost levied on businesses. Again, there is an
inconsistency in the Council’s approach: why is this being asked of secondary letting only and not
other forms of short-term let? This would not be asked of a private landlord renting out a property
where noise complaints had been levelled by neighbours, so short-term lets operators should not be
discriminated against in this manner. Furthermore, from both a commercial and equalities
perspective, operators need to make their premises as accessible and inclusive for all of their guests.
For instance, carpeting can trigger conditions such as asthma and other adverse effects.

Fiona Campbell, CEO of the Association of Scotland’s Self-Caterers

E: fiona@assc.co.uk

Page 133



Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

OPINION OF COUNSEL
for
Edinburgh Council Policy Challenge Group
re

Draft Short Term Let Licensing Policy of City of Edinburgh Council

Gilson Gray
(Ref: IM)

August 2022

Page 134




Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

Introduction & Background

l. My instructing Agents represent Edinburgh Council Policy Challenge Group (“the clients™).
The clients are persons involved in the business of short-terms lets within the City of
Edinburgh.

2. InJanuary 2022 the Scottish Parliament approved the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982
(Licensing of Short-term Lets) Order 2022 (“the Order”). The Order came into force on 1*
March 2022 and introduces provisions in relation to the licensing of short-term lets in
Scotland. In general terms residential accommodation that is used in the course of a
business will require a license under the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (“the 1982
Act™)

3. In addition to the new licensing regime the Scottish Parliament has amended the principal
Scottish Planning Act, the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (“the 1997 Act”)
and also introduced the Town and Country Planning (Short-term Let Control Areas)
Regulations 2021 (“the 2021 Regulations™).

4. The Scottish Government has published guidance to planning authorities on establishing a
short-term let control area, which is found in Planning Circular 01/2021 (“the Circular”).
The 1997 Act allows planning authorities to designate all or areas of a planning authority as
control areas'. In so doing a planning authority should apply planning considerations, such
as lack of affordable housing for local residents’. The Scottish Government’s planning
guidance to hosts and operators of short-term lets is found in “Short Terms Lets in Scotland —

Planning Guidance for Hosts and Operators™ June 2021 (“the Planning Guidance™).

5. This Opinion does not consider the new planning framework that has been introduced but it is
important to note that there are two separate regimes in respect of planning and licensing.

Accordingly the Circular is clear that, in planning terms, the purpose of control areas is:

To help manage high concentrations of secondary letting (where it affects the
availability of residential housing or the character of a neighbourhood); to restrict or
prevent short-term lets in places or types of buildings where it is not appropriate; and
to help local authorities ensure that homes are used to best effect in their areas.

6. Similarly the Planning Guidance is clear that “use” is the critical issue that planning

authorities require to have regard to. The Planning Guidance states that:

! Section 26B of the 1997 Act

? Paragraph 2.9 of the Circular

Page 135




Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

This guidance is primarily concerned with change of use of a dwellinghouse to use
for short-term lets and whether the change is a material change of use’

7. These are relevant planning considerations relating to the use of premises, and require to be

distinguished from relevant licensing considerations and objectives.

8. The planning authority is separate from the licensing authority albeit each authority cannot
work blindly in isolation of the other. For example the 2022 Order provides' that a licensing
authority may refuse to consider an application if it considers that the use of the premises

would be a breach of planning control.
9. The Policy Note to the 2022 Order states that the policy objectives of the 2022 Order are:

...to ensure that short-term lets are safe and address issues faced by neighbours; and to
facilitate local authorities in knowing and understanding what is happening in their
area as well as to assist with handling complaints effectively.

10. The Scottish Government has also published guidance titled “Short Term Lets in Scotland
Licensing Scheme (March 2022)” for hosts and operators (“the Licensing Guidance™). The
Licensing Guidance mirrors the Policy Note in that both identify that the aim of the licensing

scheme is to ensure that all short-term lets are safe.

11. Licensing authorities require to have their licensing schemes ready to receive applications by
1¥ October 2022. The City of Edinburgh Council (“the Council”) has published a Draft
Short Term Let Licensing Policy (“the Policy™). The clients seek my Opinion on the terms
of the policy and in particular whether any terms may be wlfra vires. I understand that it is
the client’s intention to submit my Opinion when representations are lodged in respect of the

policy.
Relevant Legal Principles

12. Public bodies such as the Council have a discretion in the conduct of the Council’s affairs and
decision making.  However the Court of Session (“the Court”) retains a supervisory

jurisdiction in respect of exercise of the Council’s jurisdiction conferred by statute’ such as

? Paragraph 2.3 of the planning guidance
* Paragraph 6 of Schedule 2

* West v Secretary of State for Scotland 1992 SC 385

Page 136



Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

the approval or adoption of the Policy. The Court’s jurisdiction includes ensuring that the

Council does not exceed or abuse its powers’.

13. The Court will only interfere where the Council’s has acted unlawfully (w/tra vires). A
decision is unlawful where it is so unreasonable that no reasonable authority would have
reached the decision, often referred to as Wednesbury unreasonableness’. Unlawful decisions
may arise where relevant considerations have been omitted, or where a decision is irrational

or perverse.

14. A decision maker exercising public functions can be found to have acted unlawfully where it
fetters its discretion. In general terms a decision maker is at risk of acting unlawfully where
a decision is reached by adhering rigidly to a policy without consideration of whether any

exception should apply.

15. Where a public body, such as the Council, is required by statute to establish a policy there are
general principles that should be applied to avoid the risk of being found to have acted
unlawfully.

16. First that a policy should not be so rigid as to prevent the exercise of discretion during

decision making®.

17. Secondly that a policy should be consistent with the legislative provisions that heave given

rise to the policy’.

18. Thirdly that a policy should not be applied in a way to eliminate any discretion by the

decision maker'’.

19. Fourthly that in the application of the policies a blanket prohibition should not be applied''.

8 West at pages 412-413
7 Associated Provincial Picture Houses Ltd v Wednesbury Corp [1948] 1 KB 223

® Holt v Watson 1983 SLT 588 at 591; In R v Secretary of State for the Environment Ex Parte Halton DC (1983)
82 LGR 662 the Secretary of State for the Environment was held to have fettered his discretion in adopting a
policy of disallowing local objections to the allocation of land for a gypsy site.

® In Elder v Ross and Cromarty District Licensing Board 1990 SLT 300 a licensing board applied a new policy
which was not objectionable as it did not conflict with the Licensing (Scotland) Act 1976, and that the Board’s
practice had been to consider each application on its own merits regardless of the policy

' Cindarella’s Rockafella’s v Glasgow District Licensing Board 1994 SCLR 591 at page 599

3

Page 137



Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

20. When exercising its discretion a decision maker, such as the Council, must take into account
relevant considerations and not take into account irrelevant considerations'>. To fail to do so

renders a decision susceptible to legal challenge.

21. Where a decision maker has taken into account an irrelevant consideration it is not necessary
for an aggrieved person to show that the irrelevant issue was determinative in the decision
making process. It is enough to demonstrate that there was a real possibility of a different

decision”.

22. A public body in exercising its jurisdiction should not make decisions which are perverse or
irrational. A public body must not act perversely by reaching a decision that no reasonable
person in the position of the decision maker, properly considering the relevant material, could
have reached'. Irrationality has been described as where the conduct demonstrates an error

of reasoning which robs the decision of logic™.
Discussion

23. The Council has prepared the Policy in response to its requirement to introduce a licensing
scheme. In my opinion it is important to recognise that the short-term letting regime to be

introduced is an entirely new, and arguably ground-breaking, legislative framework.

24. There have been other measures in the UK generally to prevent loss of affordable housing
such as local residency restrictions, cessation of the sale of local authority housing, and use of
planning conditions and developer contributions. However the new short-term lets regime is
entirely new and separate from the other initiatives. The present circumstances differ from
policies which have evolved though years of practice and the determination of significant
numbers of applications. For these reasons 1 am of the view that the first/initial Policy
requires to be sufficiently flexible to enable proper discretion to be applied by the licensing
authority.

U See for example Bury v Kilmarnock and Loudon District Licensing Board 1989 SLT 110, where a blanket
policy requiring a licensing applicant to be present when an application was determined, without consideration
of whether this was necessary, was held to be unlawful (see page 112).

"2 Wordie Prop Co Ltd v Secretary of State for Scotland 1984 SLT 345 at page 348
¥ Bova v Highland Council 2013 SC 510 at para 57
" Seddon Properties Ltd v Secretary of State for the Environment (1981) 42 P & CR 26 at page 26

5 R (on the application of Norwich and Peterborough Building Society) v Financial Ombudsman Service [2002]
EWHC 2379 (Admin) at paragraph 59

A

Page 138




Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

25. A balance need to be struck between (i) a policy which is so vague in its terms as to offer no
real guidance or direction and (ii) a rigidly defined policy where there decision maker has no
discretion.  There are a number of issues in the Policy which that are capable of being

challenged as being unlawful as follows:

26. General-As noted above there is an important distinction between relevant planning

considerations and relevant licensing considerations. The Policy identifies that:

The key aims of licensing are the preservation of public safety and order and the
prevention of crime.

27. However the policy strays into planning considerations, and in particular issues of use. In
my opinion planning considerations are not relevant matters that should be included in the

Policy.

28. The Policy states that the Council will have regard to the terms of the Policy when
determining (licence) applications, and that the policy will be reviewed and revised when
necessary. As discussed above if the Council were to rigidly apply the policy without
considering the particular circumstances of an individual application then there is a real risk a

decision could be subject to a successful legal challenge.

29. Duration of Licence'*-It is not clear why there is such a significant difference in the duration

of a licence in respect of secondary STLs as opposed to home sharing and/or home letting

STLs. In the absence of reasons justifying such a significant difference this provision

appears unreasonable and illogical.

30. As far as  am aware there can be no data to support that it is appropriate or logical to impose
shorter durations of licences in respect of secondary letting. There is a blanket provision that
licences for secondary STLs should be subject to an annual application process with the time

and expense associated with such an application.

31. The issue is not simply the different durations but also the significant difference between 1
year and 3 years. It is not clear what measures will be employed to ensure annual

compliance of safety testing where a 3 year licence is issued.

32. Temporary Licences'-The Policy states that temporary licences of up to 6 weeks may be

appropriate to “...give first time hosts the opportunity to try out STL”.

e Paragraph 4.1 of the Policy

7 Paragraphs 4.10 to 4.15 of the Policy

Page 139




Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

33. It is not clear if this “try before you buy’ temporary licence will be available only once per
premises or once per host. There is also a presumption that temporary licences will be
suitable for home letting and/or home sharing but not secondary letting. This is the second
example of the different treatment of secondary letting from the other types of short-terms
lets, without any reasoning or logic. Unlike private residential tenancies a short-term let
provides more control to a landlord in terms of termination and also financial/tax benefits.
The Council appear to have determined that secondary letting STLs would and/or should not

be entitled to be treated on the same basis as other STLs in respect of temporary licenses.

34, For example an individual may own a second home that is located in Edinburgh which is not
the only or principal residence of the individual. That individual may wish a temporary
licence for a number of reasons such as letting out during the Edinburgh Festival or
Hogmanay. However the policy fails to treat such properties on the same footing as the

remaining STLs.

35. Tenement/Shared Main Door Accommodation-'*Under this chapter of the Policy the Council

once again approaches the treatment of applications for secondary STLs with a different
standard than that of other STLs.

36. In my opinion there are a number of statements which could be challenged as being both

unreasonable (in the Wednesbury sense) and illogical.

37. First that tenement properties (including properties with a shared main door) are ‘believed to
be’ unsuitable for secondary letting STL’s due issues of “character, location, and creation of
undue nuisance”. The Council do not seek to apply this requirement to any of the other types
of STL. It is entirely unclear why a tenement comprising (for example) 12 flatted
dwellings' with 1 (for example) secondary STL would create undue nuisance whereas 6
(again purely for example) home sharing or home letting STLs would not create any nuisance.
In the example of 6 home sharing STLs there would be up to an additional 6 persons or
families using the same shared entrance and close, whereas with the secondary STL there

would be no increase.

38. Secondly (using the same example) the character and location of the tenement does not alter
whether the STL is a secondary STL or any of the other types. It is illogical to conclude that

6 additional families in a tenement property in Stockbridge (for example) will, in all

*® Paragraphs 4.16 to 4.18 of the Policy

% 4 storey/floors with 3 flatted dwellings per floor

Page 140




Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

circumstances, have no impact on the prescribed criteria of character, location, nuisance yet
the Council appears to assume that a secondary STL will have that effect. Such reasoning is
perverse and illogical. ~ Whether the same family is occupying a tenement property as a
home share or secondary let for the month of July (for example) has no bearing on whether
nuisance such as noise is more likely to arise. It is equally perverse to assume that
neighbouring proprietors will not be more tolerant of nuisance simply due to the type of STL.
Indeed Additional Condition ST 7 does not distinguish between nuisance whether the STL is
secondary or another type of STL.

39. Thirdly, and related to the second issue, is that the Council have entirely omitted all other
STLs from this requirement for tenements. It does so on the basis that it “believes” that
tenements are unsuitable for secondary STL due to character, location and nuisance. There is
no data to support the Councils ‘belief”. The Council have therefore reached a conclusion

without evidence to support its position, and to do so is u/tra vires.

40. Fourthly that the Council has “concerns™ (again cited without evidence to support the
purported concern) that anti-social behaviour will be “exacerbated” given the close proximity
of other accommodation. Two issues arise from this. First that it is perverse to assume
(using the example above) that one person/family in a secondary STL will be anti-social,
whereas six persons/families are incapable of being anti-social, as the Council is considering
the type of let and not that it is people not the type of let that causes anti-social behaviour. [
have noted that “Additional Condition STL 5’ in respect of anti-social behaviour is not limited
to secondary STLs and accordingly the Council appear to recognise the issue of anti-social
behaviour is not limited to secondary STLs but ignore this for the purposes of the tenement
restriction in relation to secondary STLs. This is both inconsistent and illogical. Secondly
the Council use “exacerbate™ to suggest a pre-existing issue. However there may not be any
antisocial behaviour, Indeed a tenement could comprise an isolated detached villa split into
two unoccupied flatted dwellings.

41. In addition to the matters discussed above I am of the opinion that option B is unreasonable.
Simply obtaining consent from other owners does not address the Council’s concerns. Anti-
social behaviour and nuisance are unacceptable as a matter of public policy and cannot be
overcome by owners ‘opting-in’ to nuisance or anti-social behaviour. There is the additional
issue of what would happen if one of the tenement properties was sold during the term of a

licence, and also what rights tenants/occupiers could assert.

Page 141




Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

42. Temporary Exemptions™-The Council proposes that temporary exceptions can be granted for

up to 6 weeks for all STLs except Secondary STLs. This is a further example of the Council
acting without evidence and reaching a perverse conclusion. Using the example of a second
home it is entirely unclear why the letting of a second home for one month per year offends
the licensing objectives whereas letting the exact same dwelling under a different type of STL
during that same month to the same person would be acceptable. That appears simply to be a
penalty imposed on persons fortunate enough to own a second/holiday home, and may

demonstrate bias on the part of the Council.

43. Determining an Application®'-The Policy states that each STL application will be considered
on its own merits against inter alia the Policy. As noted above the application regime
depends on whether the STL is a secondary STL or not. In those respects the Policy is rigid.
By adopting the Policy in its current terms runs the real risk of a successful legal challenge in

an application for judicial review.

44, Additional Condition STL3**-There is an absolute requirement for a guest to be met at a

property if the guest is arriving between the hours of 9pm to 7am. The consequences of
breaching a condition could be significant and therefore STL3 should be subject to ‘best
endeavours’ or ‘reasonable practicability’ or a similar qualification, to avoid a risk of legal

challenge.

45. Additional Condition STL 11 -The Council requires that secondary STLs are carpeted in

certain rooms™., I have assumed that this condition is to reduce noise. In my opinion this is
another example of the unreasonableness of the Policy. First it is entirely unclear why noise
is acceptable where the let is not a secondary STL. It is perverse to assume that neighbouring
proprietors or occupiers will care what licence is held, but rather those persons will be
concerned about any nuisances, such as noise. Secondly that this requirement applies to all
secondary STLs. Accordingly a detached villa let on a secondary STL would require to be
carpeted with no obvious reason, and with the disadvantage that comes with hard floor

surfaces such as durability, and cleaning ability.

¥ Paragraph 4.20 of the Policy
*! Paragraph 4.33 of the Policy
2 Appendix 2 of the Policy
* Appendix 2 of the Policy

* Bedrooms, living room and hallway.

Page 142




Appendix 10 - Written Response to Second Consultation ECP Challenge ¢

Conclusion

46. It is my opinion that many aspects of the draft Policy are wltra vires. If the policy is
approved or adopted as currently drafted there will be good grounds for legally challenging
the Policy.

47. In my opinion the Council will find itself in an unenviable position if the Policy is approved
or adopted in its current terms. [ mention this as it is likely that there would be grounds for
individual challenges by property owners if the Policy is applied as rigidly as it is drafted, but
equally there would be scope for legal challenge by aggrieved neighbouring proprietors if the

Policy terms are not applied as drafted.

The Opinion of:
/ﬂ/ M N

Graham Dunlop

Advocate

Terra Firma Chambers
Parliament House

Edinburgh

31% August 2022

Page 143




Appendix 11 - Wriiten Response to Second Consultation - Federation of Small Businesses

fsb®

Experts in Business

Short Term Lets 2022 -
Consultation 2

A response from FSB Scotland

Federation of Small Businesses Scotland
September 2022




fsb®

Experts in Business

Overview

Short Term Lets (STLs) play a crucial role in cementing Edinburgh’s place as an
accessible, welcoming and vibrant global tourism destination. Modern travellers have
diverse needs and it is important that any destination city offers a wide range of
accommodation types, enabling leisure travellers, business travellers, families and
groups to gain an authentic experience of Edinburgh and soak up the history, character,
vibrancy and diversity that makes the city so unique.

At the same time, there are challenges in any tourism destination in meeting the
respective, and sometimes competing, needs of both visitors and residents. Visitors to
Edinburgh typically spend in the region of £1.4 billion each year and support almost
35,000 jobs in the city, so it is economically vital that the city provides accommodation
to meet the needs of modern travellers. However, it is also important that visitors are
accommodated in a way that ensures a harmonious mix with the city’s residents. Indeed
it is often this very mix and the hospitality of local residents that contributes to the
city’s cosmopolitan nature and keeps visitors coming back to the city time and time
again.

The City of Edinburgh Council is therefore right to consider the ways in which it can
manage any disruption caused by visitors to the city and, indeed, to consider the impact
on the city’s wider housing needs. Any strategy must be fully integrated into the city’s
long term tourism and housing strategies.

The Federation of Small Businesses (FSB) welcomes the opportunity to respond to the
council’s consultation on its proposed Short Terms Lets licensing policy.

Implementation Timescales

The proposed lead-in time for STL licences for existing properties is very short and could
cause problems with advance bookings for 2023. We would propose that instead of
businesses whose licence applications are rejected having to close from 1 April 2023,
the date should instead be extended to 1 October 2023. This would enable businesses
to fulfil bookings for next year’s busy summer period and throughout the Festivals. With
recent reports suggesting that high accommodation prices in Edinburgh may have had
a negative impact on some Festival attendances this year!, it would make sense to
provide additional certainty for 2023.

Licence Renewals

Similar problems will be encountered when a landlord comes to apply for a renewal of
an STL licence. The requirement to renew the licence every year for secondary lets

1 https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-scotland-edinburgh-east-fife-62708977

Page 145



fsb®

Experts in Business

could cause problems with bookings and we would propose that this licence should be
granted for three years, in common with the proposal for other accommodation types.

Presumption Against a Licence

Any proposed presumption against an STL licence for tenemented properties is
unwarranted. Each application should be judged on its individual merits. The alternative
of consent from all owners of all accommodation within a close is also unworkable, for
example, what if a new owner comes into a tenement in 10 years time and refuses
consent after a decade of peaceable occupancy? That would be manifestly unfair on the
landlord.

Mitigating Measures Employed by Landlords

Account should be taken of measures that property owners have taken to reduce any
potential negative impact on neighbours of the STL property. For example, a landlord
may have installed noise meters in the property in an effort to reduce any noise impact
on neighbouring properties. Such actions taken by the property owner should have a
material, and positive, impact on their licence application.

Evidence of Responsibility

Similarly, account should be taken of evidence of other responsible activity taken by
the property owner. This could include positive guest reviews, TripAdvisor ratings,
evidence of positive neighbour engagement, or membership of a relevant trade or
representative body.

Conclusion

Whilst the council’s proposed licensing policy is a good start, the Federation of Small
Businesses believes that it could be improved and made fairer by adopting the proposed
fine tuning measures. FSB is happy to discuss our submission further if required.

Further Information

For further information please contact Garry Clark, Development Manager - East of
Scotland, Federation of Small Businesses: garry.clark@fsb.org.uk

Page 146


mailto:garry.clark@fsb.org.uk




Appendix 12 - Text of Petition delivered by Living
Rent in Response to Second Consultation

The below petition attracted 1719 signatures, which were sent electronically.

One third of Scotland's short-term lets can be found in Edinburgh: each one of these
properties could and should be a long-term affordable home. The city of Edinburgh will
soon become a ‘short-term lets control zone’, but we need to make sure that this
scheme actually makes the changes we desperately need.

We ask that the new licensing scheme and control zone

1.
1. Bring downthe number of short-term lets in Edinburgh, not just capping
them.
2. Ensure robust enforcement of unlicensed short-term lets
3. Introduce meaningful penalties for holiday let landlords who fail to
comply with standards
4. Provide no ‘exemption period’loopholes to dodge regulations

Provide no exemption for purpose built student accommodation

Page 148



Appendix 13 - Edinburgh Festivals short term lets regulation response

EDINBURGH FESTIVALS:
RECOMMENDATIONS ON REGULATION OF SHORT-TERM LETTING

1. SUMMARY

Edinburgh’s major festivals support regulation of short-term letting due to problems for our city caused by
the rapid growth in such lets, especially those run commercially as businesses all year round.

We believe that the regulation of temporary accommodation needs to be set in the context of the
Council’s overall housing strategy to support affordability, in light of the serious year-round shortages
of accommodation and price escalations experienced by local tenants.

We would not be in favour of any measure that disrupts the Private Residential Tenancies legislation
introduced in December 2017 which was an important step forward in security of tenure for local
tenants.

We know that regulation can play a valuable role in addressing the anti-social behaviour problems
associated with some short-term lets to improve the quality of life for local residents.

We want to see the City of Edinburgh Council develop a temporary accommodation strategy, including
short-term lets regulation and encouraging more temporary peak season use of purpose built student
accommodation.

We welcome the fact that changing the use of an entire residential home in the city to short-term
letting will automatically require planning permission.

We believe that the main focus of any regulation of short-term lets should be on year-round
commercial letting - noting that brief periods of local people letting out all or part of their main homes
does not adversely affect long-term housing stock and such additional sources of income may be
increasingly important as the cost-of-living crisis escalates.

We estimate that residents may have benefited from letting nearly 20,000 bed spaces in their own
homes each night in August 2022 to festivals audiences and performers/participants - noting that this is
equal to around 75% of the city’s hotel stock and generates £3,360 per double room per household.

We believe that the process, timelines and conditions for temporary exemptions should be as light-
touch and rapid as possible - in the absence of any legal requirement to apply mandatory or additional
licence conditions to hosts who have been granted exemptions, it seems overly onerous to ask them to
deal with the same conditions as year-round commercial lets.

We think that any policy presumption against secondary letting in tenemental or shared main door
accommodation, should be informed by evidence from the initial operation of six-week temporary
licences to establish impact assessments.

The following sections set out our detailed recommendations for action to the City of Edinburgh Council
consultation on their draft short-term letting policy which is due to be implemented from 1 October 2022.

Page 149


https://consultationhub.edinburgh.gov.uk/sfc/short-term-lets-2022-consultation-2/

2. DETAILED RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Edinburgh’s accommodation needs
ACTIONS:

e We want to see the City of Edinburgh Council leading the development of a temporary
accommodation strategy including short term lets regulation that effectively targets problem areas,
while continuing to acknowledge its importance as part of the mix to deal with peak demand in the
August festivals season.

e Such a strategy should also include 1) brokering discussions with owners of purpose built student
accommodation about setting aside a percentage of their rooms for capped rate lets to festival
participants; and 2) exploring the scope for students and their private landlords to benefit from
mutually agreed temporary summer sub-letting, without affecting their security of tenure.

Measures for temporary accommodation obviously need to be set in the context of the Council’s overall
housing strategy to support affordability, in light of the serious year-round shortages of accommodation
and price escalations experienced by local tenants.

The introduction of Private Residential Tenancies in December 2017 was an important step forward in
security of tenure and we would not be in favour of any measure that would disrupt this.

While still retaining that security of tenure, it may however be possible to restore more temporary supply
during peak summer months — for example, by ensuring that new regulations promote responsible home
letting and home sharing, and by encouraging private student tenants and their landlords to agree
mutually beneficial temporary summer sub-letting arrangements that allow them to share the additional
income.

The shared 2030 Vision for a sustainable Festival City, published in July 2022, was agreed by City of
Edinburgh Council representatives as well as national government and agencies and all the major festivals.
It recognises that supporting the Festival City to develop successfully will require integrated multi-year
planning.

City policy on temporary accommodation is a key area where we could come together to support joined up
policy thinking to support Edinburgh residents facing into a recession and cost of living crisis. This would
help to protect an estimated city economic impact of at least £200m and 4,200 additional jobs while also
fundamentally supporting the existing 44,000 jobs in the city’s creative and leisure industries.

2.2 Regulation of commercial short-term lets
ACTIONS:

e We call on decision makers to gather the evidence and enable an impact assessment of both positive
and negative impacts for different regulatory options, before implementing any policy with wide-
ranging consequences.

¢ In the first instance, secondary lets with no previous complaints against them could be licensed for a
six-week trial period under the Council’s temporary licensing provisions - to enable CEC to develop
the evidence base on the overall numbers and patterns of secondary lets, and how many are leading
to anti-social behaviour - before a decision is taken on citywide policy for longer-term licensing.

Page 150



Edinburgh’s major festivals support regulation of short-term letting due to problems for our city caused by
rapid growth in short-term lets, especially those run commercially as businesses all year round.

We recognise the Council needs to tackle the two key problems highlighted by the Council leader of too
many homes in the city being lost to the holiday market; and issues of safety, anti-social behaviour and
noise for residents.

We welcome the leader’s commitment to better balance housing supply for local people all year round,
without stopping people from renting out rooms to performers during the festivals.

The main problem is secondary lets that are not an owner’s principal home and are being rented out
around the year. Growth in this type of short-term accommodation is not driven primarily by the few
weeks of peak festivals season, but by what landlords can earn from Edinburgh’s high visitor rates for most
months of the year.

This year-round commercial letting is where the main focus of regulation should be, since brief periods of
local people letting out all or part of their main homes during peak seasons offer income generating
opportunities without the city losing residential housing. Indeed, this additional source of income may be
increasingly important to local people as fuel bills and cost of living rise and the country falls into recession.

We are pleased to see that incoming regulation will enable the previous planning legislation to be properly
enforced, so that any existing secondary lets which are not main residences must have or apply for
planning permission for a change of use. We also welcome the fact that from now on, changing the use of
an entire residential home in the city to short-term letting will automatically require planning permission.

For CEC to consider a presumption against secondary letting in tenemental or shared main door
accommodation, this public policy decision should be informed by evidence from initial operation of the
licensing process that enables an impact assessment to be produced of both positive and negative impacts.

This could be done by gathering data through temporary six-week licensing provisions for an initial period.
Councillors would then have the evidence to enable them to demonstrate that a presumption against
secondary letting in tenemental or shared main door accommodation is required to deal with
substantiated problems while avoiding inadvertently cutting off economic benefits for local residents.

2.3 Informing evidence and impact assessment
ACTION:
e We ask officials to work with all the organisations who can help to draw better figures together.

We are not aware of a publicly available assessment bringing together the existing range of data and
estimates for visitor demand and supply, and data on the problems caused for neighbours by short-term
lets such as the number of complaints made to the Council about anti-social behaviour.

To contribute to developing an evidence base, Edinburgh’s Festivals have drawn together a very broad
picture of our understanding of demand during the peak August season of 25 nights, compared with an
estimate of visitor accommodation supply, informed by the following public information:

VisitScotland 2019 Edinburgh & Lothians factsheet

Edinburgh 2019 visitor accommodation study for CEC

Edinburgh Student Accommodation Report September 2020

CEC Planning Committee paper on Short-Term Lets Control Area Feb 2022

Page 151




We are aware that these will be very imperfect estimates, and could be much improved by City of
Edinburgh Council and industry experts working to develop the best possible intelligence, but we offer
these figures based on our estimated numbers of festival-goers and participants in 2022 as an illustration
of the potential order of magnitude of the situation.

e Interms of demand, our exercise has estimated that in 2022 there was a need for 54,000 bed spaces
each night of peak festivals season, of which over 9,000 bed spaces were for festival participants.

e On the supply side, our broad estimate is 68,300 available bed spaces to cover all visitor demand in
Edinburgh during the month of August, across serviced visitor accommodation and entire properties
listed on Airbnb.

e From pre-pandemic figures, August visitor numbers were split about equally between festivals and
wider city attractions. If half of the supply of year-round visitor accommodation is being used to meet
other demands, residents offering temporary home letting or home sharing may be benefiting from
letting nearly 20,000 bed spaces each night in August to festivals audiences and participants (equal to
75% of the city’s total hotel stock).

If local residents are benefiting from providing more than a third of the temporary accommodation
required in peak festivals season through home letting and home sharing, decisions that increase the
complexity of providing this temporary flexible accommodation would have substantial impacts on them.

To inform the Council’s decisions on licensing, there should first be an assessment of the positive and
negative impacts through investigating the number and pattern of temporary lets of different types, the
proportion of short-term lets creating problems for neighbours, and the potential effects of new measures.

2.4 Encouraging temporary home letting and home sharing
ACTIONS:

e We call for temporary licence conditions to be more light-touch, to incentivise short term letting
which retain properties as main residences and benefit the incomes of local homeowners.

e Any limit to the number of nights permitted for home letting should avoid disadvantaging workers
delivering the festivals, when it is likely that most of the anti-social behaviour problems that are the
intended target of licensing will be caused by short-term leisure visitors.

It is in the interests of the city to maximise the amount of responsible home sharing and home letting, to
bring economic benefits to residents of the city from its attractiveness as a visitor destination without
affecting residential housing stocks.

We therefore support the introduction of temporary licenses to enable trials of home letting and shared
letting. Temporary licenses should offer the benefits of a streamlined process, quicker timelines and fewer
conditions — otherwise there is little incentive for homeowners to use this option. Conditions need to be
proportionate to the length of time that licences are being issued for — it is overly onerous to expect all the
same measures to be taken for 6 weeks as for 52 weeks.

We also recognise the case for a limit when home letting on the number of nights per year. This allows
neighbours to be assured that the accommodation remains a main residence, while balancing the benefits
to homeowners’ income and city jobs of maximising flexible temporary accommodation capacity.

Any such limit should recognise the importance to the city of the peak season around the Edinburgh Fringe
and Edinburgh International Festival, where a seasonal increase of workers is needed before and after
August in order to prepare for and take down festival programmes and infrastructure. Accommodation for
production staff and technicians can be needed for up to 12 weeks.

Page 452



2.5 Simplifying temporary exemptions
ACTIONS:

e To support and encourage short-term home letting and home sharing during major events, we call on
policymakers to review and minimise the conditions to be applied to those local homeowners
granted temporary exemptions.

e ltis also vital for the exemptions process to be as rapid as possible, and much quicker than the draft
policy statement that the licensing service would determine temporary exemption applications
within three months. This would result in long delays before temporary home letting or home
sharing options could be advertised — acting as a serious disincentive for festival participants to
commit to investing in bringing work to Edinburgh if they have no visibility of accommodation
options until the last minute.

We welcome the Council’s intention to make temporary exemptions available during the peak festival
seasons of August and Hogmanay. Residents benefiting from offering temporary lets has always been an
essential ingredient in the city becoming a national and global cultural centre every August, and according
to the figures we have estimated this may account for over a third of the temporary accommodation
required for the 25 nights of peak season.

This form of short-term letting keeps financial benefits in the city and does not affect long-term housing
stock, so the policy should do everything possible to encourage responsible short-term home letting and
home sharing - especially given the cost of living crisis and impending recession. Every double room rented
for six weeks at £40 per person per night, for example, is worth £3,360 in income to a local household.

The process, timelines and conditions for temporary exemptions should therefore be as light-touch and
streamlined as possible, rather than applying the same process and conditions as for year-round
commercial letting.

As we understand it, there is no legal requirement to apply any mandatory and additional licence
conditions to those hosts granted exemptions, and it is overly onerous to expect all the same measures to
be taken for 6 weeks as for 52 weeks.

This will make it an unattractive option for local people who have formerly benefited from additional
income and new opportunities from sharing their homes or vacating them for short periods. Any
disincentive to responsible residents making properties available for the seasonal workforce will be a very
serious threat to the recovery of Edinburgh’s peak festival season.

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8.1

Regulatory Committee

2.00pm, Thursday, 29 September 2022

Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues —
Application Fees

Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

1. Recommendations

1.1 The Regulatory Committee is asked to approve the proposed fee structure in
relation to applications for Sexual Entertainment Venue (SEV) licences.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: Andrew Mitchell, Head of Regulatory Services

E-mail: andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 4208

*€DINBVRGH*

Page 479 THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL



mailto:andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk

Report

Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues —
Application Fees

Executive Summary

21

2.2

This report discharges an outstanding action from the Regulatory Committee
meeting of 31 March 2022 when Committee agreed to adopt a scheme to license
Sexual Entertainment Venues (SEVs) in Edinburgh. Committee instructed officers
to develop an application fee structure for SEVs. The proposed fees reflect the
anticipated costs to the Council associated with the administration and enforcement
of the licensing system.

The report also provides an update in relation to a petition for a judicial review of the
decision to adopt a licensing scheme for SEVs.

Background

3.1

3.2

3.3

Section 76 of the Air Weapons and Licensing (Scotland) Act 2015 (‘the 2015 Act’)
adds new sections (45A to 45C) to the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (“the
1982 Act”).

The Council resolved to license SEVs in terms of section 45B and Schedule 2 of the
1982 Act on 31 March 2022. Where a local authority resolves to license SEVs, the
provisions at section 45A of the 1982 Act require a SEV licence for premises where
the sexual entertainment is operated live, is for the direct or indirect financial benefit
of the organiser and is for the sole or principal purpose of sexual stimulation of
members of the audience.

The previous report fully sets out the background to adoption of the statutory
licensing scheme by the Council.

Main report

4.1

On 31 March 2022, Committee agreed to resolve that Schedule 2 of the 1982 Act
shall be effective within the City of Edinburgh for the purpose of licensing SEVs and
the licensing scheme would have effect from 1 April 2023. Furthermore, as required

2
Page 480


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s46807/3.1%20Minute%20of%2031%20March%202022.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=6383&Ver=4

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

by the 1982 Act, on 31 March 2022, Committee also agreed an appropriate number
of SEVs to be licensed within the city and a SEVs policy statement.

Ahead of the commencement of the licensing scheme for SEVs, the Council as
licensing authority is required to agree a fee structure for SEV applications, which
includes fees for both the grant and renewal of licences.

The Council function as licensing authority is funded directly by income raised from
licence application fees. The fees currently charged are normally approved by the
Council as part of the annual budget process. This Committee also has the
delegated authority to agree a licence fee structure or amend any existing structure.

The fees are intended to fully recover the costs of delivering a licensing scheme.
After consideration of the anticipated costs of administering and enforcing a
licensing regime for SEVs, officers propose application fees as follows:

New SEV licence

£1,752
Renewal SEV licence

These fees mirror the fees currently charged for licensed sex shops, which are also
licensed under the provisions of Schedule 2 of the 1982 Act. These fees would be
for a one year licence, as that is the maximum period permitted for a licence under
Schedule 2. If approved, the fee structure will thereafter be reviewed on an annual
basis in line with other licence categories, as part of the Council’s annual budget
process.

Judicial Review

In agreeing to adopt a scheme to license SEVs on 31 March 2022, Committee also
determined that the maximum number of SEV premises appropriate for the City of
Edinburgh Council area should be fixed at zero.

Following the Committee’s decision, on behalf of three SEV operators and one
individual, a Petition was lodged with the Court of Session for judicial review of the
Council’s decision to adopt a licensing scheme for SEVs and to set a limit of zero
for the number of SEVs permitted to operate in Edinburgh. Permission for the
Petition to proceed has recently been granted by the Court of Session and the
substantive hearing of the judicial review has been set for 1 December 2022. The
United Sex Workers Union has applied to join the judicial review and, at the time of
writing, a decision on whether permission will be granted has not been made by the
Court. Committee will be kept updated in relation to the ongoing court proceedings
and the outcome of the judicial review.

As required by the 1982 Act, the agreed SEVs resolution, policy and conditions
framework have been published on the Council’s website.

Page 481



5. Next Steps

5.1  If approved, officers will arrange for the agreed fee structure to be advertised and
communicated as appropriate.

6. Financial impact

6.1  The new fee structure will take effect from 1 April 2023 and will apply to any
application received on or after that date.

7. Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1 Officers will take steps to advertise the new fee structure as appropriate on the
Council’s website.

8. Background reading/external references

8.1  Air Weapons and Licensing (Scotland) Act 2015 — Sexual Entertainment Venues —
Proposed Resolution, Policy and Conditions — Update: Report to Regulatory
Committee on 31 March 2022.

9. Appendices

9.1  None.

Page 482


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s45934/7.1%20SEVs%20-%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s45934/7.1%20SEVs%20-%20Update.pdf

Agenda Iltem 8.2

Regulatory Committee

2.00pm, Thursday, 29 September 2022

Houses in Multiple Occupation - Fees Update

Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

1. Recommendations

Regulatory Committee is asked to:

1.1 Approve the proposed revised fee structure in relation to applications for Houses in
Multiple Occupation (HMO) licences; and

1.2  Note that a consultation on HMO licence conditions 011 and 012 is ongoing.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director - Place
Contact: Andrew Mitchell, Head of Regulatory Services

E-mail: andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 4208

*€DINBVRGH*

Page 483 THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL



mailto:andrew.mitchell@edinburgh.gov.uk

Report

Houses in Multiple Occupation - Fees Update

Executive Summary

21

2.2

This report provides the Committee with an update on work carried out to review the
current licence application fee structure for Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs).
The report provides an update following the introduction of three year licences in
2017, and makes recommendations about changes to the existing fee structure with
the overarching aim of driving up standards and ensuring that full cost recovery is
reflected in HMO fees

The report also provides an update on an ongoing consultation on HMO licence
conditions 011 and 012.

Background

3.1

3.2

In terms of the Housing (Scotland) Act 2006 (‘the 2006 Act’) the Council is required
to license HMOs where three or more individuals or families both live in a property
and share facilities therein. The Council is entitled under the 2006 Act to charge a
fee for an application for a HMO licence to cover the costs of operating and
enforcing the licensing scheme.

The HMO licence fee structure was last modified in 2019 (Appendix 1). Application
fees are based on occupancy capacity, with an option of a one or three year
licence. New HMO licences are normally granted for one year only, with a statutory
minimum period of six months. Existing licence holders applying for a subsequent
licence for an individual property are afforded the flexibility of being able to request
either a one or a three year licence.

Main report

4.1

4.2

On 23 August 2021 the Committee agreed that a review of the current HMO
application fees should take place, to consider whether any changes are required to
reflect the current costs to the Council of dealing with an application

The three year licensing system and fee structure, first approved in 2017, reflected
the growth in the number of larger shared accommodation properties and

Page 484



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

associated increased costs of inspection. It additionally sought to incentivise
landlords to improve the standard within the sector by allowing the grant of three
year HMO licences, at the same cost as a one year licence, to suitable properties
which had demonstrated compliance with legislation and conditions of licence. This
was on the basis that the work involved in processing and granting a licence for
three years would come at no extra cost to the Council. Unfortunately, this has not
proved to be the case as officers typically spend significantly longer on HMO
continuation applications in order for a three year licence to be issued.

The Licensing Service currently processes approximately 4,500 HMO applications
per year, 90% of which are renewals. On average, a HMO licence holder has held a
licence for a minimum of five years and therefore should be experienced at
complying with legislation and conditions of licence.

As reported to the Regulatory Committee on 23 August 2021, a review of the first
cycle of three year HMO renewals found that approximately 70% of applications
had not demonstrated continuous safety certification during the licensed period, as
required by condition HMO1 of the standard conditions of licence. Using this
snapshot as an indicator, officers were concerned that this may illustrate a wider
problem with standards being maintained by licence holders during the extended
three year period of licensing.

Due to Covid and the subsequent lockdown, it was anticipated that licence holders
would have difficulty sourcing contractors to carry out certification checks
throughout the lockdown period. Therefore, in order not to disadvantage licence
holders, in March 2021 the Committee agreed that licence holders submitting a
‘renewal’ application declaring that they had been unable to provide the required
continuous safety certification due to lockdown restrictions would have these
accepted with a temporary exemption from compliance with condition HMO1. This
exemption would apply for a maximum period of six months from the date on which
the application was lodged with the Council.

This pragmatic approach afforded licence holders an opportunity to obtain the
relevant documentation and to continue to submit renewal applications without
being disadvantaged due to circumstances out with their control. This temporary
change was in place until 31 December 2021.

Impact on officer time

Since the review, which was reported in August 2021, and taking into account the
effects of the pandemic, officers have found that gaps in safety certification continue
to exist in a significant number of HMO applications received.

In order to review the certification in a fair and transparent manner, officers using
delegated powers in terms of the Council’'s Scheme of Delegation to Officers
granted three year licences to applicants where continuous certification for any
dates prior to lockdown was evidenced in their applications. However,

Page 485



4.9

4.10

4.1

412

4.13

4.14

approximately 70% of applicants for renewal of existing HMO licences could not
demonstrate continuity of certification for this particular period.

Further measures to drive improvement and efficiency

One of the central reasons behind the introduction of a three year licence for HMOs
was to support further targeted enforcement work to ensure that all properties met
the required standard and complied with the legislative requirements set out in the
2006 Act.

It is therefore intended to introduce risk based inspections. This will enable officers
to target properties which are higher risk in terms of a number of factors, including
anti-social behaviour, enforcement action, complaints, noise disturbance etc.
Multiple visits may be required during a licence period. However, where a property
can demonstrate continuity of certification combined with an absence of complaints,
enforcement action etc, there may be only one visit during the licence period. The
proposed new inspection model will also help to drive up standards in the sector, as
it will require properties to be maintained to the required standard throughout the
licence period and not only when an inspection is scheduled during the application
period.

Proposed Fee Structure

The Council’s functions as a licensing authority are funded directly by income raised
from licence application fees. These fees are normally approved by the Council as
part of the annual budget process and are intended to fully recover the costs of
delivering a licensing scheme. This Committee has delegated authority to agree a
licence fee structure or to amend any existing fee structure.

Where an applicant for the continuation of a HMO licence has failed to demonstrate
continuous safety certification and a one year licence has been issued instead of
three, this has led to frustration on the part of certain licence holders. This is
because their expectation is to receive a three year licence for the same fee as a
one year licence, rather than to consider it a one year licence which has been
extended to three years licence for demonstrating compliance. The subsequent
complaints and dissatisfaction with this outcome are then the focus of the
applicant’s attention, rather than their failure to demonstrate compliance for a period
of three years.

To help address this issue, it is proposed to revisit the fee structure, with a one year
licence fee being introduced at a reduced rate. This will allow the opportunity for
applicants who are unable to show three years’ continuous safety certification
during the period of their previous licence to renew their licence, and to afford them
time to bring any expired certification in line with the HMO standard conditions
(Appendix 3). The minimum expectation is the ability to demonstrate certification for
a period of one year, in order to be considered for continuity of licence (renewal).

Those applicants who can demonstrate continuous safety certification for a period
of three years, along with compliance with all other conditions, will still be able to
apply for a three year licence at the same rate as currently set.

Page 486



4.15

4.16

417
4.18

It is hoped that this approach will act as a further incentive for improving standards
within the sector. Officers continue to develop a best practice guide for HMO licence
holders and will bring a report on this issue to Committee early next year.

HMO Conditions Consultation

On 28 February 2022, the Committee agreed that a consultation should take place
on whether conditions 011 and 012 of the HMO standard conditions should be
amended to require licence holders, and agents acting on their behalf, to annually
provide adjoining properties with emergency contact details. A public consultation
on this issue was launched on the Council’s Consultation Hub on 28 September
2022 and will close on 21 December 2022. Officers will report back to Committee
with the results of the consultation and recommendations in due course.

Best Practice Guide

The Committee was advised on 28 February 2022 that work would be undertaken
to develop a best practice guide for HMO licence holders and agents as an
additional tool to help improve standards in the sector. Work on this will be taken
forward in the autumn, and will include a meeting with agents. Officers will then
bring a report forward early next year for the Committee to consider the best
practice guide.

5. Next Steps

5.1  If agreed, officers will arrange for the new fee structure to be advertised and
communicated as appropriate. This will include direct contact with all HMO licence
holders and agents.

6. Financial impact

6.1  The new fee structure will take effect from 1 April 2023 and will apply to any
application received on or after that date

7. Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1 Officers have engaged with colleagues from other Council services to accurately

identify the effect of the proposed fee structure on resources and what further
impact these changes may have.

Page 487



8. Background reading/external references

8.1  Houses in Multiple Occupation — Service Update — 23 August 2021 — Regulatory
Committee

9. Appendices

9.1  Appendix 1 — Current HMO Licence Application Fees

9.2 Appendix 2 — Proposed Licence Application Fees

9.3 Appendix 3 — HMO Standard Conditions

Page 488


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s36455/7.3%20-%20Houses%20in%20Multiple%20Occupation%20Service%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s36455/7.3%20-%20Houses%20in%20Multiple%20Occupation%20Service%20Update.pdf

Appendix 1 — Current HMO Licence Application Fees

Valid — 2022/23 YRy RO

HOUSE IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION LICENCE
APPLICATION FEES

HMO kcence application fees are based on occcupant capacity with an option of a one

or three year licence as approved by the Couneils Regulatory Commitiee on 21 April
2017

Please nobe:

=  HMO hcences intheir first year rmay be granted for a mmirmum penod of § months
=« Existing hoences holders applyving for a second or subseguent application (renswal'| for
indwidual properties can apply for either a one or thres year icence *

* The grant of a three year licence will only be considersd for suitable properties on a case by case
basis and can be restricied to one year licence based on the following assessment criteria:

= Premiseslandionds that are subject to cngoing monitoring whens issues have been identSed
by coumncd officers

= Premiseslandionds that are subject to enforcement action

» Premiseslandiords where prewiows complainis have been upheld

= Premises that have failed to complete remedial work, dentified upon nspecton, within four
weeks from the first inspection date, without prior consent of the council

Fes
Number of Cocupanis "ESH%EIIII]

EEE{‘IGQ&&_& |'_:1|~:'| :::;'I'l:l:--l-:l:-m-hr_-.'-
.
=

N

Page 489



4150 ¥.ara
51-60 7,084
&1-70 3,288
71-80 2,304
£1-80 9,202
81-100 10,104
101-150 11072
151-200 12040
A01-250 13,008
251-300 13.87d
301-350 14,635
351-400 14 842
401450 16,830
451-500 17,848
501-550 18.818
201-600 18734
> 600 Ingrease of £967 per banding of 100
Percentage discount avalable for chanty registered with The Scottish Charity Regulator (OSCR)
and linked to homeless and { or vulnerable adult accommodation
Educational institutions — Property oweed and managed by a chanty registered  with The: Scottish
Charty Reguiabor (O5CR) would be considered eligible for a 50% fee reduction

MISCELLANEOUS FEES

CERTIFIED COPY LICENCE £R1 — per copy

Page 490



Appendix 2 — Proposed HMO Licence Application Fees

HMO licence application fees are based on occupant capacity with an option

of a one or three year licence as approved by the Council’s Regulatory
Committee on 29 September 2022

Please note:

e HMO licences in their first year may be granted for a minimum period of 6 months
e Existing licences holders applying for a second or subsequent application
(‘renewal’) for individual properties can apply for either a one or three year licence *

*The grant of a three year licence will only be considered for suitable properties on a case
by case basis and can be restricted to one year licence based on the following
assessment criteria:

e Premises/landlords that are subject to ongoing monitoring where issues have been
identified by council officers

¢ Premises/landlords that are subject to enforcement action

e Premises/landlords where previous complaints have been upheld

¢ Premises that have failed to complete remedial work, identified upon inspection,
within four weeks from the first inspection date, without prior consent of the council

e Premises where the landlord is unable to provide evidence of continuous safety
certificates for the property, during the term of the previous licence

Please note that all licence application fees are non-refundable, except in exceptional
circumstances. Application fees are based on the costs to the Council of processing a
licence application and delivering a licensing scheme. Therefore, where a licence is
restricted to one year based on an assessment of the above criteria, any refund of the
balance of the application fee will not be offered.

Number of Occupants Fee (£) Fee (£)
1 year application 3 year application

3 253 653

4 471 871

5 689 1,089
6 967 1,367
7 1,246 1,646
8 1,524 1,924
9 1,802 2,202
10 2,081 2,481
11 2,359 2,759
12 2,637 3,037
13 2,915 3,315
14 3,194 3,594
15 3,472 3,872
16 3,750 4,150
17 4,029 4,429
18 4,307 4,707

Page 491



19 4,585 4,985
20 4,864 5,264
21-30 5,469 5,869
31-40 6,074 6,474
41-50 6,679 7,079
51-60 7,284 7,684
61-70 7,889 8,289
71-80 8,494 8,894
81-90 9,099 9,499
91-100 9,704 10,104
101-150 10,672 11,072
151-200 11,640 12,040
201-250 12,608 13,008
251-300 13,576 13,976
301-350 14,285 14,685
351-400 14,544 14,944
401-450 16,480 16,880
451-500 17,448 17,848
501-550 18,416 18,816
551-600 19,384 19,784
>600 Increase of £567 per banding Increase of £967 per

banding

Percentage discount available for charity registered with The Scottish Charity Regulator (OSCR)

and linked to homeless and [ or vulnerable adult accommodation

Educational institutions — Property owned and managed by a charity registered with The Scottish
Charity Regulator (OSCR) would be considered eligible for a 50% fee reduction

CERTIFIED COPY LICENCE

£61 — per copy

Page 492

10



Appendix 3 — HMO Standard Licence Conditions

Houwsing | Scotland) Act 2006
Standard HMO Licensing Conditicons — Adopted 9 March 2012

HMCH

The licence holder must take steps o ensure that the property,
fittings and furmiture, including fire precautions, plumbing, drainage,
gas and elecirical installations, are maintained throughout the penod
of the licence to the standard required. The HMO owner should hawe
a systermn in place which prossdes. for continuity of safiety certification.

HMC2

The licence holder must ensure that advice to occupiers on acton 1o
be taken in the event of an emergency is clearly and promineniy
displayed within the living accommodation.

HINH_Ed

The licence holder must ensure that the physical standards for HMD |

living accommodation assessed as suitable by the local authonty
when approving the licence applicaton are met at all times.

HMO

The licence holder must ensure that the rmember of persons residing
in e premises shall not exceed [nsed umber] when operating as
an HMO.

HMCE

The licence holder must make the Licence, including any conditions,
available to oocupiers, or prospective oocupiers, within the premises
where it can be conweniently read by residenis.

HMOEG

The licence holder must ensure that achons o secure repossession
must be only by wid means.

HCT

The licenceholder must prossoe: each tenant with a cear statement,
in a fiormm they can understand and keep for reference, of what is
expected of them and what they can expect from the lcencshobder,
The agreement must accuabely describe the subect of let, the start
and end dates of the: agresrment, rent to be paid, period of witten
nodification of intention to enter the property (which shall not be less
than 24 hours ), and where the agreement is in the form of a lease
and the licence holder intents to retain a key for the propery, the
agreement will specy how the tenant will grant explicit pesmission
for the key 1o be used.

HINH_E

The licenceholder must act awiuly and reasonabey in requinng any
advanced payments, handling rents, retuming deposis, and making
deductons from deposits.

HMC3

The licenceholder must comply wath all refesant legislabon affecting
private secior residential tenancies, inchuding parbScipaton in any
communal repairs and rmaintenance, as per the Tenements

[ Scotland) Act 2004

Page 493

11



HMOHD

The licenceholder must manage the property in such a way as to
seck to prevent and deal effectively with any ant-social behaviour
by tenants to anyone efse in the HMO and in the locality of the
HMO.

HMU A

An emengency contact telephone number for the heenceholder
and'or management shall be available and notified to

the Council for 24-hour contact purposes for emengencies or
antisocial behawour from the property.

HMO2

The licenceholder shall give a neighbour notification to every
pcoupier in the same building as the licenceholder's presmises, and
any adjomi ises within 28 of the lcence holder's :
nfn%r're I]ﬂml'ﬂ F'Hndmment. This M|FEEEWH‘EIEI‘I‘EI#'H’E rRosH
licenceholder or managing agent. a contact address, day time
telephone number and an emengency contact nurnber.

HINCH

The use of the premeses shall be as authonsad from time o tme: by
the City of Edinburgh Council in testrs of the Bulding (Scotland) Act
2003,

HMO14

Adequate facdities must be prowided for the storage and disposal of
refuse, and recycding. The licenceholder shall make the teniants fully
aware of their responsiblites.

HMOH S

The licence holder must ensure that Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)
shall not be used or stored on the premises.

HINHC

‘The licence holoer shall comply with the curmrent reguiahaons
regarding maximum re-sale prices of gas and electiciy supplied, as
appropriabe.

HINCH S

VWhere the agreement between a tenant {or group of tenants ) and
the licence holder gives those tenants exdlusive access to specified
rooims in the premises, the licence holder should ensure those
rooms are fitted with a bewer kaich and secured with a sutable lock
and thumb turm mechanism or other appropnate locking mechanism.

HMO1 8

Any chimneysflues that are i use must be mamntaneddeaned
annually or in accordance with the mamfacturer's instructions. or,
where the flue is coversd by a Gas Safety Inspection, at a peniod
determined by a Gas Safe registerad engneer.

Page 494

12



	Agenda
	Notice of meeting and agenda
	Regulatory Committee
	2.00 pm, Thursday, 29th September, 2022
	Contacts
	1. Order of Business
	2. Declaration of Interests
	3. Deputations
	4. Minutes
	5. Rolling Actions Log
	6. Business Bulletin
	7. Executive Decisions
	8. Routine Decisions
	9. Motions
	Committee Members
	Information about the Regulatory Committee
	Further information
	Webcasting of Council meetings





	4.1 Minute of 27 June 2022
	5.1 Rolling Actions Log
	Rolling Actions Log
	Regulatory Committee
	28 September 2022


	Comments
	Actual completion date
	Expected completion date
	Action Owner
	Action
	Report Title
	Date
	No

	6.1 Business Bulletin
	7.1 Short Term Lets Licensing - Update After Consultation
	STLs- Update After Consultation on Proposed Policy and Conditions v0.26
	Appendix 1_STL Initial Consultation_Summary report
	Appendix 1 - STL Initial Consultation - Summary Report
	Short Term Lets 2022
	1: Your details
	2: Which of the following apply to you?
	3:  Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be  suitable or not suitable as short term lets, and give us your reasons why.
	4:  Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be  suitable or not suitable as short term lets, and give us your reasons why.
	5: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be suitable or not suitable as short term lets, and give us your reasons why.
	6: Is there any other type of property that you think would not be suitable as a short term let? Please tell us why you think this.
	7: Should the Council adopt additional conditions?
	8: Which issues should the conditions cover?
	9: Should children under the age of 10 count towards the occupancy of a premises?
	10: Should temporary licences be introduced?
	12: What additional conditions should be attached?
	13: Should temporary exemptions be introduced?  If you answer 'yes', the next question will ask you about the event types for which you think an exemption would be appropriate.
	14: What reasons do you think would justify an exemption?
	15: Should temporary exemptions have additional conditions?
	16: What additional conditions should be attached to temporary exemptions?
	17: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be suitable or not suitable for temporary exemption, and give us your reasons why.
	18: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be suitable or not suitable for temporary exemption, and give us your reasons why.
	19: Please tell us whether you think that these types of properties would be suitable or not suitable for temporary exemption, and give us your reasons why.
	20: Is there any other type of property that you think would be unsuitable for a temporary exemption? Please tell us why you think this.
	21: What are the positives of short term letting?
	22: What are the negatives of short term letting?
	23: Are there any further comments that you would like to make on any aspect of the licensing of short term lets?
	24: What do you feel is your national identity?
	25: What is your age?
	26: What is your sex?
	27: Do you consider yourself to be trans, or have a trans history?


	Appendix 2_STL Second Consultation_Summary Report
	Appendix 2 – STL Second Consultation – Summary Report
	Short Term Lets 2022 - Consultation 2
	1: Your details
	2: Which of the following apply to you?
	3: In terms of section 4.16 of the proposed policy in relation to short-term letting in tenement properties, we have set out two options. Please indicate which option you consider to be most suitable for Edinburgh.    “Secondary letting” means a short...
	4: Should the Council limit the number of nights for which short term let accommodation may be used in each year?
	5: How many weeks should the limit be set at?
	6: If you have any comments on the proposed Short Term Lets Licensing Policy, please provide these below.
	7: Do you have any comments on the proposed policy in respect of temporary licences? See 4.10 to 4.15 in the proposed policy below.
	8: Do you have any comments on the proposed policy in respect of temporary exemptions? 4.19 to 4.25 below.
	9: If you have any comments on the proposed additional licence conditions, please provide these below.
	10: Are there any further comments that you would like to make on any aspect of the licensing of short term lets?
	11: What do you feel is your national identity?
	12: What is your age?
	13: What is your sex?
	14: Do you consider yourself to be trans, or have a trans history?


	Appendix 3 – Summary of Written Responses to First Consultation
	Appendix 3 – Summary of Written Responses to First Consultation

	Appendix 4 – Summary of Written Responses to Second Consultation
	Appendix 4 – Summary of Written Responses to Second Consultation

	Appendix 5 - Draft Short Term Let Policy (Final v2)
	Appendix 6 – Mandatory Conditions of Licence for STL
	Appendix 6 – Mandatory Conditions of STL Licences

	Appendix 7 - Proposed Application Fees
	Appendix 8 - Integrated Impact Assessment
	Appendix 8 – Integrated Impact Assessment
	Integrated Impact Assessment
	City of Edinburgh Council Short Term Lets Licensing Policy

	Appendic 9_Written Response to Second Consultation – Association of Scotland’s Self Caterers
	Appendix 10_Written Response to Second Consultation – Edinburgh Council Policy Challenge Group
	Appendix 11 _Written Response to Second Consutlation_Federation of  Small Businesses
	Appendix 12 - Text of Petition delivered by Living Rent in Response to Second Consultation
	Appendix 12 - Text of Petition delivered by Living Rent in Response to Second Consultation

	Appendix 13 - Edinburgh Festivals short term lets regulation response
	7.1 - Appendix - STLs - Update After Consultation

	8.1 Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues - Application Fees
	Regulatory Committee
	2.00pm, Thursday, 29 September 2022
	Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues – Application Fees
	1. Recommendations



	Report
	Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues – Application Fees
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Background
	4. Main report
	5. Next Steps
	6. Financial impact
	7. Stakeholder/Community Impact
	8. Background reading/external references
	9. Appendices



	8.2 Houses in Multiple Occupation - Fees Update
	Regulatory Committee
	2.00pm, Thursday, 29 September 2022
	Houses in Multiple Occupation - Fees Update
	1. Recommendations



	Report
	Houses in Multiple Occupation - Fees Update
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Background
	4. Main report
	5. Next Steps
	6. Financial impact
	7. Stakeholder/Community Impact
	8. Background reading/external references
	9. Appendices

	Appendix 1 – Current HMO Licence Application Fees
	Appendix 2 – Proposed HMO Licence Application Fees
	Appendix 3 – HMO Standard Licence Conditions





